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SECTION | - GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Draft Letter of Offer uses certain definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider
when reading the information contained herein. Thefualhg list of capitalized terms used in tBigaft Letter of
Offer is intended for the convenience of the reader/prospective investor only and is not exhaustive.

Unless otherwise specified, the capitalized terms used irDtaift Letter of Offer shall hee the meaning as
defined hereunderReferences to any legislations, acts, regulation, rules, guidelines, circulars, notifications,
policies or clarifications shall be deemedto include all amendmentssupplementsor re-enactmentsand
modificationsthereto notified from time to time and any reference to a statutory provision shall include any
subordinate legislation made from time to time under guokision.

Providedthat termsusedin the sectionstchapterstitted i | n d Oy ter w fi 8 w o pad thig/Draft Letter of

Of f eFionamci al I nformationo, iStatement of Speci al
Dev el o pamekfinltssRelatedl n f o r ment 550585, 53, 161 and 171 respectively shall, unless
indicated otherwise, have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the respective sittmpss.

Company Related Terms

Term Description

ACompanyo, Vikas Lifecare Limited ("formerly known as Vikas Multicotpmited™), a public
Compafityloe limited company incorporated under thempanie#\ct, 1956 havingitsregistered
Comp anylésye @ officeatVikas Apartments, &, 34/1 East Punjabi Bagh New Delti0026 India.
iwe o, fous & o Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company.

fiArticl eso Artcles/ Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to

Association

fi A n nAuditéd Theauditedfinancialstatementsf our CompanypreparedinderGAAP for Fiscal

FinancialStatements 2018 2019 and2020andfor the nine and halfmonthis period endedJanuary 15.
2021, preparedn line with Ind AS notified under the Companies Act, 2013,
amended read with the @panies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201!
amended.

AAudit CommThe committee of the Board of Dit
committeen accordancevith Regulationl8 of the SecuritiesandExchangeéBoard
of India (ListingObligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201
a me n d $EBI Ligting Regulationsd ) and Section 177
2013. For Odr®dnagenherthegirmiagen pager3 of thisDraft Letter
of Offer.

AAudi t or 0 [/ Statutoryand peer review autlitof our Company, namely, M/&oyal Nagpal &
Audi t or 0/ # Co Chartered Accountants.

Auditoro

AiBoar do of A Board of directors of our Company or a duly constitutedrodgtee thereof.
Directorso

AChi ef Exec MrViayKumar Sharma, the Chief Executive Officer of our Company.

/| CEO 0

AChi ef Fi na Mr. Chandan Kumar, the Chief Financial Officer of our Company.

CFOOo

ACompany Se Ms. Rashika Guptahe Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of ol
Compl i ance Company.

ADi rect or (s Thedirector(s) onthe Board of our Company, unless otherwise specified.
AEqui ty Sha Aholderof Equity Shares

AEqui ty Sha Equitysharesobur Company ofleathace value o
AExecuti ve Executive directors of our Company.

il ndependen Theindependendirector(s)of our Companyjn termsof Section2(47)andSectior
Director (s) 149(6) of the Companies A@QD13.



Term
i K evlanagemat
Per somMkK&MP®

Materiality Policy

i Me mor aohdum
Associ AMo Aa
ANomi nadt i on
Remuneration

Commi tteebo

fi N eemecutive
Directorso
fi N eExecutiveand
IndependenDi r e c t
APromoter o

iPromoter G

=t

Regi stered

ARegi strar
Compani eso/
ifRestated F
Statement¥ fiRestated
Standalonéinancial
Statements

ARi ghts | ss
Committeeo
Rai sing Com

fiSharehol de
Sharehol der
fi St a keerhsodl d
Rel ati onshi

Issue Related Terms

Term
2009 ASBA Circular

2011 ASBA Circular
Abridged Letter of Offer

Allot/Allotment/Allotted
Allotment Account

Description

Key managememersonnebf our Companyin termsof the Companie#ct, 2013
and the SEBI | CDR Regul ations aw

Managemeni Key Managerial Personnélbeginningon page73 of this Draft

Letter ofOffer.

A policy adopted by our Company for identification of material litigation(s) for
purpose of disclosure of the same in Disft Letter of Offer.

Memorandum oAssociation of our Company, as amended from time to time

The committee of t he Board of d
NominationandRemuneratiofCommitteein accordancavith Regulationl9 of the
SEBIListingRegulationsindSectionl 78of theCompanieg\ct, 2013.Fordetails,
s e Our Managemeiitbeginningon pager 3 of this Draft Letter ofOffer.
Nonrexecutive Directs of our Company.

Non-executive and independent directors of our Company, unless otk
specified

The Promoters of our company namely Mr. Vikas Garg, Vikas Gitg, Ms.
Seema Garg, Ms. Sukriti Gariir. Vinod Kumar Garg, Vinod Kumaéarg HUF
Ms. Shashi Garg, Mr. Mldhav Garg For f ur t h@ur Prametéesa
beginningon paged2 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Individuals and entities forming paof the promoter and promoter groug
accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Theregistereaffice of ourCompanyocatedat G-1, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh Ne
Delhi-110026, India

Registrar of Compaas,Delhi situatedat 4" Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Plac
New Delhii 110019.

Restated standalone financial statementswfCompany for the Fiscals 201
2019and 2020 andadkr the nine and a halfmonths periodor the periodended
January 152021 prepared in accordancgith the CompaniesAct and restated
in accordancewith therequirements of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. For det;
s e Einarnicial Statementson pageB6 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

The committee constituted in the Board meeting dated February &, fae.
finalizing the term of the Issue and take all appropriate decision grwlagtét may
deem fit in relation to the Issue, in accordance with the applicable provisions
Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013.

The Equity Shareholders of our Company, from time to time.

The commi ttee of t he Boar d of D
Stakehol ders6 Relationship Commit:
SEBI Li sting RegulGutMaoagemeithégmmingah page
73 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Description

The SEBI circular SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated Decembel
2009

The SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 datepril 29, 2011

Abridged Letter of Offer to be sentto the Eligible Equity Shareholdersvith
respect to the Issue in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI |
Regulationsandthe Companies Act.

All otment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue.

The account opened with the Banker(s) to the Issue, into which the Appl
Money lying to the credit of the escrow account(s) and amounts blocl
Application Supportedoy Blocked Amountin the ASBA Account,with respec
to successful Applicants wibetransferred on the Transfer Date in accord

2



Term

Allotment Advice
Allotment Date

Allottee(s)
Applicani(s) / Investor(s)

Application

Application Form

Application Money

Application Supportedyp
Blocked Amount/ASBA

ASBA Account

ASBA Applicant / ASBA
Investor

ASBA Bid
Banker(s) to the Issue

Bankers to the Issue
Agreement

Basis of Allotment

Consolidated Certificate

Controlling Branches/
Controlling Branches of
the SCSBs
Demographic

Details

Description
with Section 40(3) of the Companiést.

Note, advice or intimation of Allotment sent to each successful Appligho
has been or is to be Allotted the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Isst
Date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to the Issue.

Person(s) who are Allotted Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Allotmen
Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and/or Renouncee(s) who make an applic
for the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue in terms ddthfsLetter
of Offer/Letter of Offer beingan ASBA Investor.

Application made trough (i) submission of the Application Form or plain pa|
Application to the DesignatedBranch of the SCSBsor online/ electronic
applicationthroughthewebsiteof theSCSB4if madeavailableby suchSCSBs)
underthe ASBA processor (ii) filling theonline Application Form available ol
R-WAP (instituted only for resident Investors, in the event the Investors ar
able to utilize the ASBA facility for making an Application despite their k
efforts), to subscribe to the Equity Shares at the IBgue.

Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form (including o
application form available for submission of application using tA& AP or
through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) unc
ASBA process) used by an Investor to make an application for the Allotme
Equity Shares in the Issue

Aggregate amount payable in respect of the Rights Equity Shares appliec
the Issue at the Issue Price.

Application (whether physical or electronic) used by ASBA Applicants to n
an Application authorizing a SCSB to block the Application Money in the AS
Account.

Account maintained with a SCSB and specified in the Agitbn Form or plain
paper application, as the case may be, for blocking the amount mentionec
Application Form or the plain paper application, in case of Eligible Eq
Shareholders, as the case may be.

As per the SBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January
2020, all investors (including renouncees) shall make an application for a
issue only through ASBA facility.

A Bid made by an ASBA Bidder including all revisions and modificatitireret:
as permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Collectively, the Escrow Collection Bank and the Refund Banks to the Iss
this case being [0].

Agr e e me nt entradirdody dnd gmongst our Company, the Regi
to the Issue and the Bankers to the Issue for collection of the Application N
from Applicants/Investors making an applicatithrough the RVAP facility,
transfer of funds to th&llotment Accountfrom the EscrowAccountandSCSBs,
releaseof fundsfrom Allotment Account to our Company and other persons
where applicable, refunds of the amounts colleétach Applicants/Invetors
andprovidingsuchotherfacilitiesandservicesasspecified in the agreement
The basis on which the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotiedsuccessfi
applicants in the | s Jermsofahedssddédgnnng
on pagé 72 of this Draft Letter of Offer

The certificate that would be issued for Rights Equity Shares Allotted tc
folio in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Sharesyisiqdi
form.

Such branchesof SCSBswhich coordinateBids under the Issue with the
Registrar and the Stock Exchange, a list of which is available on the web:
SEBI athttp://www.sebi.gov.in.

Detailsof Investordancludingthel n v e addesspamseofthel n v e dather.
husband, investor status, occupation and bank account details,appécable.


http://www.sebi.gov.in/

Term
Designated SCSB
Branches

Designated Stock
Exchange
Depository(ies)

Draft Letterof
Offer/DLoF/DLOF

Escrow Account(s)

Escrow Collection Bank

Eligible Equity
Shareholders

Issue / Rights Issue

Issue Closing Date
Issue Opening Date
IssuePeriod

Issue Price

Issue Proceeds
Issue Size

Letter of Offer/LOF

Net Proceeds

Non-ASBA Investor/Non-
ASBA Applicant

Non-Institutioral Bidders
or NllIs
Off Market Renunciation

Description

Sweh branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms submit
ASBA Bidders, a list of which is available on the website of SEE
http://www.sebi.govn/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=ye
n tmld=35, updatedfrom time to time, or at such other website as may be
prescribed by SEBI from time tame.

BSE Limited

NSDL and CDSL or any other depositoregistered with SEBI under th
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Particif
Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time read with the Depositorie
1996.

This draft letter of offer filedvith Stock Exchange, in accordance with the SE
ICDR Regulations, for their observationside SEBI Circular April 21, 2020
bearing number SEBI/HO/CFD/CIR/CFD/DIL/67/2020 and SEBI ICI
(Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2020, our Company has been exengpbe
fling the Draft Letter of Offer with SEBI.

One or more ndien and nornterest bearing accounts with the Escra
Collection Bank(sfor the purposes of collecting the Application Money frc
resident Investors making an Applicationatigh the RWAP facility.

Bankswhich are clearingmembersandregisteredwith SEBI asbankersto an
i ssue and with whom Escrow Accoun

Existing Equity Sharehdler s as on t he Record I
investors eligible to participate in the Issue exclude centa@nseashareholder
Forfurtherdetails seefiNoticeto Investor® beginningonpage9 of this Draft Lette
of Offer.

Issueof upto[ OElquity Share®offacevalueof 1eachof ourCompanyfor cash

atapriceof [pérRightsEquity Sharenot exceeding 4,980lakhson a rights
basistothe EligblEqui ty Sharehol ders of ou
Rights Equity Shares f oheldbwteerElgiblé

Equity Shareholdersf our CompanyontheRecor d Dat e i .

The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing
inclusive of both days, during which Applicants/Investors can submit 1
Applications, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

[ 6] per Rights Equity Share.
Gross proceeds of the Issue.
Amount not exce.eding 4,980 | akh

The letter of offer to be filed with the Stock Exchanges and submitted with

Proceeds of the | s sneeflstue lated@xpenses
further information ab ou®bjedtshoéthellssd
beginningon page47 of this DraftLetter of Offer.

Investors other tha\SBA Investors who apply in the Issue otherwise tt
through the ASBA process comprising Eligible Equity Shareholders hol
Equity Sharesin physical form or who intend to renouncetheir Rights
Entitlement in part or full an®enouncees.

An Investorother than a Retail Individual Investor or Qualified Institutional
Buyer as defined under Regulation 2(1)(jj) of the SEBI IGR&yulations.
The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertakenby the Investor by
transferring thenmhroughoff markettransferthrougha depositoryparticipant
in accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars isst
the Depositories, from time to time, and other applicable laws.


http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&in
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&in

Term

On Market Renunciation

QIBs orQualified
InstitutionalBuyers
R-WAP

Record Date
Refund Bank(s)

fiRegistrar

fiRegistraro

Registrar Agreement

Renouncee(s)

Renunciation Period

Retail Individual
Bidders(s)/Retail
Individual Investor(s)/
RII(s)/RIB(s)

Rights Entitlement

Rights Entitlement Letter

Rights Equity Shares

Description
The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by tr:
them over the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange thro
registeredstockbrokerin accordancevith the SEBI RightsissueCircularsand
the circularsissued by the Stock Exchange,from time to time, and other
applicable I aws, on or before [ 098]
Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the
ICDR Regulations.
Re gi s webbasedapplication platform accessibleat Error! Hyperlink
reference not validinstitutedasan optional mechanism in accordance \
SEBI circulars bearing reference numbers
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/552 dated April 22, 2021
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/13 dated January2D21,
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIRP/2020/136 dated July 24 2020
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78 dated May 6, 2020, for accessing/ subrr
online Application Forms by resident publitvestors

This platform is instituted only for resident Investors, in the event such Iny
are not able to utilize the ASBA facility for making an Application despite
best efforts
Designated date for the purpose of determining the Equity Shareholders eli
apply for Rights Equity Shares, b
The Barker(s) to the Issue with whom the Refund Account(s) will be open
this case being.
t Alankit Assignments Limited.

Agreement dated [ 0] entered into
relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the |
pertaining to the Issuacluding in relation to the RVAP facility.

Person(s) who has/have acquired the Rights Entitlement from the Eligible
Shareholders on renciation.

The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their F
Entitlements which shall commence
peri od shal | case lofoGnarket Renufciatjon Eligible Equity
Shareholderarerequestedo ensurahat renunciation through effiarket transfer
is completed in such a manner thhe RightsEntittementsarecreditedto the
demataccounbftheRenounceenorpr i or t o the | ssue
AnindividualInvestor(includinganHUF applyingthroughkarta)who hasapplied
for RightsEquity SharesandwhoseApplicationMoneyis notmorethan 200,000
in the Issue as defined undRegulation 2(1)(vv) of the SEBI ICDRegulations.

Thenumberof RightsEquity ShareshatanEligible Equity Shareholdeis entitled
to in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Eligible Ec
ShareholdeontheRecordDate being[ &(][ ®iphtsEquityShares or e v
([6]1]) Equity Shares held on [O0].

The Rights Entitlements with a se
account before the date of opening of the Issue, against the equity shares
the EquityShr ehol ders as on the Record
Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity Sharehc
The Rights Entitlements are also accessible through-MAR and on the webs
of our Company

Equity Shares of our Company to be Allotted pursuant to this Issue.



Term Description

SEBI Rights Issue Collectively, SEBI circular, bearing reference numt
Circulars SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, SEBI circ
bearing referenceumber SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March :
2021 SEBI circular bearing reference numl

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/552 dated April 22, 2020

Self-Certified Syndicate The banks registered with SEBI, offering services (i) in retatd ASBA, a list

Banksod or A Sf which is available on the website of SEBI
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=y
ntmid=34or
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.doRecognisedFpi=yes&
ntmld=35 as applicable, or such other website as updabedtime to time.

Stock Exchanges Stock exchange where the Equity Sisamee presently listed, being BSE and M

Transfer Date The date on which the amount held in the escrow account(s) and the &
blocked in the ASBA Account will be transferred to the Allotment Account, L
finalization of the Basis of Allotment, in asultation with the Designhated Sto
Exchange.

Wilful Defaulter A Company or person, as the case may be, categorized as a wilful defaulter
bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with
guidelines on wilful defaulterssued by the RBI, including any company whi
director or promoter is categorized as such.

Working Day All days other than second and fourth Saturday of the month, Sunday or a
holiday, on which commercial banks in Delhi are open for business;dea
however, with reference to (a) announcement of Price Band; and (b) Bid.
Period, Term Description the term Working Day shall mean all days, exclt
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on which commercial banks in De
open for businessand (c) the time period between the Bid/lssue Closing [
and the |isting of the Equity Sha
mean all trading days of the Stock Exchange, excluding Sundays and
holidays, as per the circulars issued by SEBI

Business and Industry related Terms or Abbreviations

Term Description

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate
Covid-19 Coronavirus Disease 2019

EVA Compounds EthyleneVinyl Acetate

FMCG Fast Moving Consumers Good
GDP Gross Domestic Product

GVA Gross Value Added

INR I ndi an Rupee ( )
MMT Million Metric Tonnes

PE Polyethylene

PP Polypropylene

PVC Polyvinyl chloride resins

Recycled Material Recycled Plastic Waste

TPR Thermoplastic Rubber

USA/US United States of America

USD/ US$ US Dollar

Food Preservatic Preservation an8torageof different kind of food grains and saplirfgs enhancin
and Storage thar/ i Itfed s

Conventional and General Terms or Abbreviations

Term Description
Alc Account


https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=35
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=35

Term
AGM
AlF

AS
BSE
CAGR
CDSL
CFO
CIN
CIT
CLRA

Companies Act, 2013

Companies Act
Companies Act 1956

CSR
Depository(ies)

Depositories Act
DIN

DP ID

EBITDA

EGM

EPF Act

EPS

ESI Act

FCNR Account

FEMA
Financial Year/Fiscal

FPIs

FVCI

GDP

Gol / Government
GST

HUF(s)

ICAI

ICSI

Income Tax Act/ IT Act

Ind AS

Indian GAAP
Insider Trading
Regulations
Insolvency Code

I NR or Inolian

Rupees
ISIN

Description

Annual generlameeting

Alternative investment fund, as defined and registered with SEBI und
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment F
Regulations, 2012

Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountantiai
BSE Limited

Compounded Annual Growth Rate

Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

Chief Financial Officer

Corporate Identification Number

Commissioner of Income Tax

Contract Labour (Regulation and AbolitioAgt, 1970.

Companies Act, 2013 along with rules made thereunder.

Companies Act, 1956, and the rules thereunder (without reference
provisions thereof that have ceased to have effect upon thieatmn of the
Notified Sections).

Corporate Social Responsibility

A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Bt
India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996.

The Depositdes Act, 1996

Director Identification Number

Depository Participantds Il dentifi
Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
Extraordinary General Meeting

Empl oyeesd Pr ovi dmeous PrdvisionglActal®s® Mi s
Earnings per share

Empl oyeesd State I nsurance Act, 1
Foreign Currency NoiResident (Bank) account established in accordance
the FEMA

The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read wi#s rand regulatiol
thereunder

The period of 12 months commencing on April 1 of the immediately prec
calendar year and ending on March 31 of that particular calendar year

A foreign portfolio investor who has been registeprsuant to the Securit
and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations

Foreign Venture Capital Investors (as defined under the Securities and E>
Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulatior@)Pfegistere
with SEBI

Gross Domestic Product

The Government of India

Goods and Services Tax

Hindu Undivided Family(ies)

Thelnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India

The Institute of Company Secretaradndia

Income Tax Act, 1961

The Indian Accounting Standards referred to in the Companies (
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Tre
Regulations, 2015, as amended

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, as amended

Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of India.

International Securities Identification Number



Term

IT

MCA

Mn / mn
Mutual Funds

N.A. or NA
NAV
Notified Sections

NSDL

NSE

p.a.

P/E Ratio

PAN

PAT

Payment of Bonus Act
Payment of Gratuity Act
RBI

RBI Act

Regulation S

SCRA

SCRR

SEBI

SEBI Act

SEBI AIF Regulations

SEBI FPI Regulations
SEBI ICDR Regulations
SEBI Listing Regulations

SEBI
Regulations
SEBI VCF Regulations

Securities Act

STT

State Government
Trademarks Act
TDS

US$/ USD/ UDollar
USA/ U.S./ US

U.S. GAAP
VAT
VCFs

w.e.f.
Year/Calendar Year

Takeover

Description

Information Technology

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Gol

Million

Mutual funds registered with the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange
of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996

Not Applicable

Net Asset Value

The sections of the Companies Act, 2013 that have been notified by theakt
are currently in effect.

National Securities Depository Limited

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Per annum

Price/Earnings Ratio

Permanent account number

Profit after Tax

Payment of Boas Act, 1965

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The Reserve Bank of India

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended

Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amendec
Securities ©ntract (Regulation) Act, 1956 of 1933, as amended

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 as amended

The Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI /
The Securities and Exchange Board of India A892

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investments F
Regulations, 2012, as amended

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Inve
Regulations, 204, as amended

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Dis
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disc
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Vent@apital Funds) Regulatior
1996

The United States Securities Act of 1933.

Securities Transaction Tax

The government of a state in India

Trademarks Act, 1999

Tax deducted at source

United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America
United States of America, its territories and possessions, any state of the
States of America and the District of Columbia

Generally Acceptag Accounting Principles in the United States of America

Value Added Tax

Venture capital funds as defined in and registered with the SEBI unc
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regul
1996 or the Securitieand Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investr
Funds) Regulations, 2012, as the case may be

With effect from

Unless context otherwise requires, shall refer to the twaleeth period endir
December 31



NOTICE TO INVESTO RS

The distribution of thisDraft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights
Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares to persons in certain jurisdictions
outside Indiamay be restrictel by legal requirementsprevailing in thosejurisdictions. Personsinto whose
possessiothis Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Fomay come are required

to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions. Our Cgrspaaking this Issue on a rights basis to

the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will dispatch through email and couri@rtfit etter of Offer / Abridged

Letter of Offer Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter only to Eligible Equity Sharehslidho have

a registered address in India or who have provided an Indian address to our Company. Fuihaft tieter

of Offer will be provided, through email and courier, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible
Equity Shareholdensho haveprovidedtheirindianaddresset our Companyor whoarelocatedin jurisdictions

where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each
case who make a request in this regard. Investorsisa access thBraft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter

of Offer and the Application Form from the websites of the Registrar, our Company, the Stock Exchanges, and
onR-WAP.

No actionhasbeenor will betakento permitthelssuein anyjurisdiction whereactionwould berequired forthat
purpose. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or
indirectly, and thiPraft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or any offering materials oedtsements

in connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in whole or in part, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance
with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt ofDhadt Letter of Offer or the Abridged

Letter of Offerwill not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer
and, in those circumstances, tBigaft Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer must be treated as sent
for information purposesnly and shouldnot be acteduponfor subscriptionto the Rights Equity Sharesand
shouldnotbecopied or redistributed. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy oDitdft Letter of Offer or the
Abridged Letter of Offer or ApplicatioRormshouldnot,in connectiorwith theissueof theRightsEquity Shares

or the RightsEntitlements, distribute or send ttisaft Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer to any
person outside India where to do so, would or might contravene local securities laws or regulahieri3rdft

Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form is received by any person in any such
jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they maseeklio subscribeo theRightsEquity Share®rtheRights
Entitlementgeferrad to in this Draft Letterof Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or the Applicati&orm.

Any person who makes an application to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares offered in
the Issue will be deemed to have declared, represemserhnted and agreed that such person is authdnsed
acquiretheRightsEntitlementsrtheRightsEquity Sharesn compliancewith all applicabldawsandregulations
prevailing in his jurisdiction. Our Company, the Registrar or any other person antlmghalf of our Company
reservesherightto treatanyApplicationFormasinvalid wheretheybelievethatApplication Formisincomplete

or acceptancef suchApplicationFormmayinfringe applicabldegalor regulatoryrequirementandwe shallnot
beboundto allot orissueanyRightsEquity Share®r RightsEntitlementn respecbf anysuchApplicationForm.

Neitherthe delivery of this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights
Entitlement Lettenor any salehereundershall, underany circumstances;reateanyimplicationthattherehas
beennoc hange in our Companyés affairs from the date
information contained herein correctasatanytime subsequero the dateof this Draft Letterof Offer andthe
AbridgedLetterof Offer and the Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter or the date ofrsfocmation.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS
LEGAL, TAX OR INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO
ADVERSE FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF
THE OFFER RIGHTS OF EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. ACCORDINGLY,
EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISORAND TAX
ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE
OFFER OF EQUITY SHARES. IN ADDITION, OUR COMPANY IS NOT MAKING ANY
REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF THE EQUITY SHARES
REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH
OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS.



NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

TheRightsEntitlementsandtheRightsEquity Sharediavenotbeerandwill notberegisteredinderthe Securities

Act or the securids laws of any state of the United States and may not be offered or sold in the United States of
America or the territunited State®o)r, peoxscseepsts iionn sa tthrea resod c t(
exemptfrom, theregistratiorrequirementsf the SecuritiesAct andapplicablestatesecuritiedaws. The offering

to which thisDraft Letter of Offer relatess not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of
any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the UBtegtdsor as a solicitation therein of an offer

to buy any of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement. There is no intention to register any portion of the
Issue or any of the securities described herein in the United States or to conduct afeuiblicaf securities in
theUnited StatesAccordingly,this Draft Letterof Offer/ AbridgedLetterof Offer andtheenclosed\pplication

Form and Rights Entitlement Letters should not be forwarded to or transmitted in or into the United States at any
time. Inaddition,until the expiry of 40 daysafter the commencemenaf the Issue,an offer or saleof Rights
Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares within the United States by a dealer (whether or not it is participating in the
Issue) may violate the regiation requirements of the Securitigst.

Neither our Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation from any
person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting alfi our beh
has reason to believe is in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application
Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be postmarkée: United States or otherwise dispatched from

the United States or any otherigdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing

for the Rights Equity Shares Issue and wishing to hold such Equity Shares in registered form must provide an
address for registration of these Equity Shares in India. ©omp@ny is making the Issue on a rights basis to
Eligible Equity Shareholderandthis Draft Letter of Offer / AbridgedLetterof Offer andApplication Formand

Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who havdiam &aldress.

Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared,
represented, warranted and agreed that, (i) it is not and that at the time of subscribing for such Rights Equity
ShareortheRightsEntitlementsjt will notbe,in the United Statesand(ii) it is authorizedo acquirethe Rights
Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable lawsgartations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat any ApplicatiormFas invalid which: (i) does not include the
certification set out in the Application Form to the effect that the subscriber is authorised to acquire the Rights
Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in compliance with all applicable laws and regulatioagpéars to us or

our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where a registered Indian address
is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such
ApplicationForm mayinfringe applicabldéegalor regulatoryrequirementsandour Companyshallnotbebound

to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Apgtization

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or soldrty person in the United States.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Certain Conventions

Al references t oDrafiLeitdriofdDffer areotathie &Repobdéicdf India and its itegitories and
possessions and all references herentboe fiGover nment o0, Al ndi an Gover nmen
or the AState Governmento are to the Government of

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all referencesDmattisetter of Offer to the

6US6 or o6U.S.6 or the o6United Statesd are to the Un

Unlessotherwisespecified,anytime mentionedn this Draft Letterof Offeris in IndianStandardlime ( I8To ) .
Unless indicatd otherwise, all references to a year in briaft Letter of Offer are to a calendgear.

A reference to the singular also refers to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever
applicable.

Unless stated otherwise, all referesite page numbers in thidraft Letter of Offer are to the page numbers of
this Draft Letter ofOffer.

Financial Data

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the financial information and financial ratios in this
Draft Letter of Offerhas been derived from oRestated=i nanci al St at ementFimancilFor det
Informatiord beginningon pageB6 of this Draft Letter of OfferOu r  C o mfimanciay y&ea commences on

April 1 and ends on March 3df the next year. Accordingly, all references to a particular financial year, unless

stated otherwise, are to the twelve (12) month period ended on March 31 of that year.

The Gol has adopted t helndlABd)i ,a nwhaicc o uwamith éhenlgtermatiosain gleand d s
Financi al Reporting Standards of tIFRS0O) namrdnadbtohaéd
Section 133 of the Companies Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as

a me n d e thd AStRoled )i. AuditeéFinancial Statements of our Company ttee FinancialYearended
March2018is prepared under GAABnd forMarch 2019 and March 2020 and thiee and halfmonths period
endedJanuary 15, 202havebeenpreparedn accordancevith Ind AS, as prescribedunderSection133 of

Companies Acteadwith thelnd AS Rulesandothertherelevantprovisionsof the Companie#\ct andrestatedn

accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses
(revised) 2019, issued by the ICAI. Our Company publishes its financial statemdRtpées.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, anydiscrepancies anytablebetweerthetotal andthe sumsof theamountdisted

aredue toroundingoff and unlessotherwisespecified all financial numbersin parenthesisepresennegative

figures.Our Companyaspresente@ll numericaliinformationin the FinancialStatementi wholenumbersand
inthisDraftLet t er of Offer in fAlakho units keentooamalitbh ol e n
represent iakh. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million repred¢d®®,000.

Therearesignificantdifferencedetweerind AS, US GAAP andIFRS.We havenot providedareconciliationof
thefinancialinformationto IFRSor US GAAP. Our Companyhasnotattemptedo alsoexplainthosedifferences

or quantify their impact on the financial data included in Briaft Letter of Offer, and you are urged to consult
your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact omamcfal data. Accordingly, the degree to
which thefinancial informationincludedin this Draft Letter of Offer will provide meaningfulinformationis
entirelydependent other e a dlievel db familiarity with Indianaccountingpoliciesandpractices)nd AS, the
CompaniesAct and theSEBI ICDR RegulationsAny relianceby personsot familiar with theseaccounting
principlesandregulations on our financial disclosures presented irttat Letter of Offer should accordingly
be limited. For further id r ma t i d-imanciaklrdogmatioro beginningon page86 of this Draft Letter of
Offer.

Certainfigures containedin this Draft Letter of Offer, including financial information, have beensubjectto
roundedoff adjustmentsAll figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off to one or two
decimals. Howevenyhereanyfiguresthatmayhavebeensourcedrom third-partyindustrysourcesarerounded
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off to other thartwo decimalpointsin their respectivesour@s,suchfiguresappeain this Draft Letter of Offer
roundedoff to such numbeof decimalpointsasprovidedin suchrespectivesourcesln this Draft Letterof Offer,

(i) the sumor percentage changd certainnumbers mayot conformexactlyto the toal figure given;and (ii)

the sunof thenumberdn a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for
that column or row. Any such discrepancies are due to rounding off.

Currency and Units of Presentation

All refererces to:

T ARuperdsarii | N&d R saretd IndianRupeetheofficial currencyof the Republicof India;

1T AUSDO or AUS$O or A$0 are to United States Doll ar,
America; and

Our Company has presented certamerical information in thiPraftLet t er of Of fer i n fAl a
or in whole numbers. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000. All the numbers in the
document have been presented in lakh or in whole numbers wheraitbens have been too small to present in

l akh. Any percent agRi ako b @&@usBusiness ,Msafnta gfeamretnht 6isn Dii s cus
Analysisof Financial Conditionsand Resultsof Operatiord andelsewherén this Draft Letter of Offer, unless

otherwise indicated, have been calculated based on our Restated Finéorciadtion.

Exchange Rates

This Draft Letter of Offer contains conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that have
been presented solely to comply witletSEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be construed

as a representation that these currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any
particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periddslicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between
the Indian Rupee and other foreign currencies:
(in )

Sr. Name of the Currency As of March 31, 2021 As of March 31, 2020 As of March 31, 2019

No.
1. 1 United States Dollar 73.50 75.39 69.17
(Source: RBI reference rate)
*Exchange rate as on March 29, 2019, as RBI reference rate is not available for March 31, 2019 and March 30,
2019 being a Saturday and Sunday, respectively.
**Exchangerate ason March 28, 2018,asRBI referencerate is nat availablefor March 31,2018,March 30,
2018andMarch 29, 2018 being a Saturday and public holidays, respectively.

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used Drtfid_etter of Offer has been obtained or dedv
from publicly available information as well as industry publications and sources.

Industry publications generally state that the information contained in such publications has been obtained from
publicly available documents from various sources betigeebe reliable but their accuracy and completeness

are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Although we believe the industry and masiest data

in this Draft Letterof Offer is reliable it has nobeenindependentlyerified by us. Thedatausedn thesesources

may havebeenreclassifiedby us for the purposesf presentationData from thesesourcesmay also not be
comparable. Such data involves risks, uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on
variousf act or s, i ncl ud iRmslgFadtoedegianingon mgelB8ofthés Drafi Letter fof Offer.
Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based solely orirfocmation.

The extent to which the marketandindustrydatausedin this Draft Letterof Offer is meaningfuldependsnthe
readerdés familiarity with and understanding of the
standard data gathering methodologies initldestry in which the business of our Compagonducted, and
methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different inchastrges.
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FORWARD - LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Draft Letter of Offer containscertainfi f o r-leakingls t a t e rRerwad Baking statementappear

throughout thiraftLet t er of Of fer, includi ng, wRiskHadast,Oufi mi t at
Busines8 aMand@égement s Discussion and Anal ysis oofanHKi nan
findustry Overview . Folrovmkidng statements include statements

objectives, goals, strategiefyture events,future revenuesor financial performance,capital expenditures,
financingneedsplansor intentiongelatingto acquisitions,ourC o mp a compikttivestrength@ndweaknesses,

ourC o mp a bugiress strategy and the trends our Company anticipates in the industries and the political and
legal environment, and geographical locations, in which our Company operatethemnidformation that is not
historical information. These forwatdoking statements generally can be identified by words or phrases such

as #fai mo, Afanticipateo, Abel i eveo, fifcontinueo, fican
iodgdgti veo, Apl anod, Apotential o0, Aiprojecto, Apursuedod
iforecasto, Atargeto, or other words or phrases of s

objectives, plans or goalsf our Company are also forwatoloking statements. However, these are not the
exclusive means of identifying forwatdoking statements.

All statements regarding our Companyb6s expected fin
proects are forwartboking statements. These forwdmbking statements include statements as to our
Companyb6s business strategy, pl anned projects, reve

financial or operating projections or forecasteew business and other matters discussed iDthis Letter of

Offer thatare nothistorical facts. These forwardooking statementgontainedin this Draft Letter of Offer
(whethermadeby our Company or any third party), are predictions and inveh@vn and unknown risks,
uncertainties, assumptions and other factors that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of
our Companyo be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or
implied by suctorwardlooking statements or othprojections.

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forlwaking statements due to risks or
uncertaintiegssociateavith ourexpectations withespecto, butnotlimited to, regulatorychangegertainingto
the industry in which our Company operates and our ability to respond to ¢herability to successfully
implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, the competition in our industry and markets, technological
changespurexposueto marketrisks,generakeconomicandpolitical conditionsin Indiaandgloballywhichhave
an impact on our business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation,
unanticipated turbulence in interest ratfEgsgign exchange rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the
performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in laws, regulations and taxes, incidence of
natural calamities and/or acts of violence. Important factors that coutet @tual results to differ materially
from our Companyb6s expectatifolowingi nclude, but are no
Uncertainty of the continuing impact of the COVID pandemic on our business and operations;
Any disruption in our sources of fundimg increase in costs of funding;
Engagement in a highly competitive business and a failure to effectively compete;
We are affected by volatility in interest rates, adversely affecting our net interest income;
An adverse determination in an ongoing litigatto which Company is a party
A downturn in the utility of our products to the industries we cater to;
A reduction in the demand of our products and/or competing products gaining wider market
acceptance;
Loss of one or more of our key customers and/ppkers;
An increase in the productivity and overall efficiency of our competitors;
An adverse change in the regulations governing our products and the products of our customers;
A significant fall in the global price of our products and/or a significeset in the global price of
our raw materials; and
1 A decrease in the demand for the products of our customers in which our Products are used and/or

a downfall in production activities.

= =4 88881

= =4 =8 =4

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual resdiffetr from our estimates and expectations,

s e RiskfFactord ,OurfiBusines3 a NMdnd@égement 6s Discussion and Anal y:¢
Results of Operatiogsheginning on pages8, 64 and 154 respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer. By their

nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually
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occurs in the futuréds a result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

We cannot assure investors that the expectations reflected in these fluwkand statements will prove to be
correct. Given these uncertainties, investoes cautioned not to place undue reliance on such fordwakihg
statements and not to regard such statements as a guarantee of future performance.

Forwardlooking statementseflectthe currentviews of our Companyasof the dateof this Draft Letterof Offer

andare nota guaranteeof future performanceThesestatementsare basedonthema n a g e Maliefstardds
assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available information. Although we believe the assumptions
upon which theséorwardlooking statementarebasedarereasonableganyof theseassumptionsouldproveto
beinaccurate, and the forwatdoking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Neither our
Company, our Directors, our Promoter, the Syndicate Member(s) nof dreiraespective affiliates or advisors

have any obligatioto updateor otherwisereviseany statementseflectingcircumstancearisingafterthe date
hereofor to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions domeotoc
fruition.

In accordancevith the SEBIICDR Regulationspur Companywill ensurehatinvestorsareinformedof material

developments from the date of thisaft Letter of Offer until the time of receipt of the listing and trading
permissions fromhe StockExchange.
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SUMMARY OF LETTER OF OFFER

The following is a general summary of the terms of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction with and is
qualified by the more detailed information appearing in this Letter of Offer, includength e c t i ®isks t i t |
Factor® , Thefilssué i Capi t al 0 ,®bjécts oftthe risede, OurfiBusiness , Inddstry Overview ,
fiOutstanding Litigation and Material Developmeits a Tiedns df thdssu@ beginningon paged8, 39,45,

47,64, 55162and172respectively.

1.

Summary of Industry

As per an estimate of the Indian government, the per capita plastics consumption will be doubled by
2022, this will result in presumably a surrogate measure for economic advancement and increased
advanced manufacturing. With an increasedtaglananufacturing and consumption, India is seen as one

of the biggest markets for Plastic Recycling businless d i a 6-proceskiray smwdustry has over 30,000

units and an annual turnover of Rs 2.25 lakh crore, according to the All India PlasticaManuti r e r s 6
Association (AIPMA).

For further details, pindestysOxerview HeginningtorpageS56af this hapt e
Draft Letter of Offer.

Summary of Business

We are engagk in the business omanufacturingrecycling materials and trading of Polymer
CompoundsWe are an I1ISO 9001:28 compliant CompanyJntil year 2019, our Company was only

engaged in the business of trading Polymer compouuaisCompany in the year 2019 cpleted the
acquisition of O6Recycled and Trading Compounds I
through demerger under the scheme of arrangemer
Tribunal. Pursuant to completion of said demerger, thityeghares of the Company were listed at the

Stock Exchanges, both at the National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exmhévhaye 8,2019.

For further detail s, OlureBaseess beginfirey orpaige®4 of thisDraft ha pt e |
Letter of Offer.

Our Promoters

The Promoters of our compamye Mr. Vikas Garg, Vikas Garg HUF, Ms. Seema Garg, Ms. Sukriti
Garg, Mr. Vinod Kumar Garg, Vinod Kumar Garg HWs. Shashi Garg aniir. Vaibhav Garg

Objects of the Issue

The details oproceedf the Issuareset forthin the following table:

Particulars Amount (in lakhs)
Gross Poceeds from the Iss#ie 4980.00*
Less:Adjustment of Uhsecured bans against therfittement ofPromotes 924.00
Less: Estimatedssue related expenses 80.00
Net Proceeddrom the Issue 397800

Theintended use of the Net Proceealsthe Issuédy our companwreset forthin the following table:

Particulars Amount (in lakhs)
Meeting Capital Expenditure for Food Preservatiod Storagé&nit 1470.00
Meeting Working Capital Requirements 1500.00
Loan Repayment 36800
General corporate purposes 640.00
Total Net proceeds 397800
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For further details, please see the chapter fit@hjects of the Issdebeginning on pagé?7 of thisDraft

Letter of Offer.

Summary of Restated Financial Information

Following are the details as per the Restated Financial Infanmas at and for the Financial Years
ended on March 31, 2018, 2019 and 2020 anditresand half mont6s period endedanuary 15, 2021

(7 in

Particulars January 15, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 201¢
Authorised Share Capital 6700.0( 6700.0( 6700.0( 6700.0(
Paidup Capital 6634.9! 6634.9! 6634.9! 6634.9!
Net Worth attributable 1

Equity Shareholders 6,658.9: 5,35227 9,024.8° 16,235.7.
Total Revenue 5,327.2. 15,818.9. 21,918.4i 20,089.3
Profit after tax 7.2¢ 139.7: 207.71 148.2¢
Earnings per Share (basic 0.001: 0.021: 0.031: 0.022:
diluted) (in

Net Asset Value per Equ 1.0C 0.81 1.3¢ 2.4t
Share (in )

Total Borrowings 4,316.2° 4,055.0¢ 3,923.9: 2,003.2¢

Summary of Outstanding Litigation

A summaryof the pendingtax proceedingsandothermateriallitigations involving our Company,our

Promoter, our Directors is provided below:

Litigations involving our Company

i)

Cases filed by ou€Eompany:

Nature of Litigation Number of matters outstanding

Criminal matters Nil
Direct Tax matters Nil
Indirect Tax matters Nil
Actions taken by regulato Nil
authorities

Material civil litigations 2

*To the extent quantifiable
Cases filed against our Company:

Nature of Litigation

Criminal matters 1
Direct Tax matters# Not ascertainab
Indirect Tax matters 1
Actions taken by regulatory Nil
Authorities

Material civil litigations Nil
*To the extent quantifiable

#Outstanding Direct Tax Demands are as set out below:

1. Demand of Rs. 4,82,930 for A.Y. 2all6under sectio 143(3);

2. Demand of Rs. 45,03,140 for A.Y. 2 under section 143(3);

3. Demand of Rs. 29,23,280 for A.Y. 2a18Bunder section 143(3); and
4

Demand of Rs. 1,00,35,520 for A.Y. 2@DBunder section 143a

Amount involved*(in Rs.)
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

6,94,83,67

Number of matters outstanding Amount involved* (in Rs.)

6,20,72:
1,86,28,41(®
88,40,60!

Nil

Nil
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10.

11.

For further det ail s, OupstareiaglLdigatiore and Mabtegal DelVelpnedtsr
beginning on pag&62 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Risk Factors

Pl ease see tRiskFactdrapbhb egi b n itldagthisDiaft letiegad Offer.

Summary of Contingent Liabilities

Pl ease see t hRestatdl &ipahcal Irforntatiatbegiening drpage86 of the Restated
Financial Information irDraft this Letter of Offer.

Summary of RelatedParty Transactions

Pl e a s e Resmtede Finandial Informati@gnbeginning onpage 86 of the RestatedFinancial
Informationin this Draft Letter ofOffer.

Issue of equity shares made in last one year for consideration othitan cash

ti

Our Company has not made any issuances of Equity Shares in the last one year for consideration other

than cash.
Split or consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year
Our Company has not carried any split or consolidation of EquityeShardast one year.

However, prsuant to passing a special resolution through postal ballot on Jup@2D®ur Company

obtained shareholders' approval to consolidia¢eface value of our equity shares from Rs. 1 to Rs. 5

per sharend authorized thed&rd of Director to take necessary steps as may beeddgniHowever,
such resolutiors kept in abeyancand has not been acted upon till date
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SECTION Il T RISK FACTORS

An investment in our Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You sheefidllg consider each of the

following risk factors and all other information set forthintbis aft Letter of Offer, incl
Ailndustry Overviewo, AiManagement 6s Di scussion and
Operation®, "N Sel ected Statistical I nformationo and fAFina
Equity Shares.

Therisks and uncertaintiesdescribedbeloware not the only risks that we currently face. Additional risks and
uncertaintiesot presenthknownto usor thatwecurrentlybelieveto beimmaterialmayalsoadverselyaffectour
businessfinancial condition, results of operations and cash flows. If any or some combination of the following
risks, or other risks that are not currently known etibved to be adverse, actually occur, our business, financial
condition and results of operations could suftée trading price of, and the value of your investment in, our
Equity Shares could decline and you may lose all or part of your investmette Textent the COVHR9
pandemic adversely affects our business and financial results, it may also have the effect of increasing many of
the other risks described in this section, such as those relating tpayonent or default by borrowets.making
aninvestmentiecisionwith respecto this Issue youmustrely on your ownexaminatiorof our Company and the

terms of this Issue, including the merits and risks involved. You should consult your tax, financial and legal
advisors about the consequencesmfravestment in our Equityharesand its impact on yau

This Draft Letter of Offer also contains forwalabking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our
results could differ materially from such forwalabking statements as a result of eéntfactors, including the
considerations described below and elsewhere in this Draft Letter of Offer.

Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial
or other implications of any of éhrisks described in this section. Unless the context otherwise requires, in this
section, refsnemMoartworgewedss fiw our Company.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

BUSINESS RELATED RISKS

1. The novel coronavirus (Covid9) pandemic outbreak and stepskian control the same have
significantly impactedour businessresults of operations,financial condition and cashflows and
further impact will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain

The rapid and diffused spread of COVID and globbhealth concerns relating to this outbreak have
had a severeegativeimpacton all businessesncludingthe chemicalindustryin which our Company
operatesand from whereit derivessubstantiarevenuesand profits. The COVID-19 pandemiccould
continueto have an impact that may worsen for an unknown period of time. Currently, there is substantial
medical uncertaintyegardingCOVID-19 andill anycureis found,this pandemienaycontinue tacause
unprecedented economic disruption in India and in tis¢ o€ the world. The scope, duration and
frequency of such measures and the adverse effects of CGO¥tBmain uncertain and could evere.

At this point of ti me, our Company cannot predi
normalcy, or aall. Further if in case due to any consequent wave of Coronavitasgitermlockdown
isimposedn thecountryor the state in which we perform of business mayfacehugelossesandour
busines®perationsouldbeseverely impacted.

2. There are otstanding litigations involving our Company which, if determined against us, may
adversely affect our business and financial condition.

As on the date of thiBraft Letter of Offer, our Company is involved in certain legal proceedings. These
legal proceenhgs are pending at different levels of adjudication before various courts and tribheals.
amounts claimed in these proceedings have been disclosed to the extent ascertainable and include
amounts claimed jointly and/or severally from us and/or othdiegaias the case may be. We cannot
assure youhat these legaproceedingswill be decidedin favour of our Company.or that no further

liability will ariseoutof these proceedings. We may incur significant expenses in such legal proceedings
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and we may ave to make provisions in our financial statements, which could increase our expenses and
liabilities. Any adverse decision may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

A summaryof the pendingtax proceedingsand othe materiallitigations involving our Companyis
provided below:

0] Cases filed by ou€ompany:

Nature of Litigation Number of matters outstanding  Amount involved*(in Rs.)
Criminal matters Nil Nil
Direct Tax matters Nil Nil
Indirect Tax matters Nil Nil
Actions taken by regulato Nil Nil
authorities
Material civil litigations 2 6,94,83,67

*To the extent quantifiable

(i) Cases filed against o@ompany:
Nature of Litigation Number of matters Amount involved* (in Rs.)
outstanding

Criminal matters* 1 6,20,721
Direct Tax matters# Not ascertainab 1,86,28,410.
Indirect Tax matters 1 88,40,60!
Actions taken by regulatory Nil Nil
Authorities

Material civil litigations Nil Nil

*To the extent quantifiable

#Outstanding Direct Tax Demands are as set oldvire

1. Demand of Rs. 4,82,930 for A.Y. 2al6under section 143(3);

2. Demand of Rs. 45,03,140 for A.Y. 2d& under section 143(3);

3. Demand of Rs. 29,23,280 for A.Y. 2a18Bunder section 143(3); and
4. Demand of Rs. 1,00,35,520 for A.Y. 2@DBunder section B&a

** The Directorate of Enforcement, Delhi Zonal Office, New Delhi has issued a provisional attachment
order ('Order™") bearing number 04/2020 and file number ECIR/106/DZ017 under Section 5(1) of the
Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 200P{1LA ") against our Company, its then Director Mr.
Vishal Garg and other third parties. Through the said attachment, our bank account SBN@&&niq

Vihar, New Delhi maintained with has been attached for an amount of Rs. 6,20,721/

For further details, pleasee f er A Out st anding Liti gatpageb6l@ofthen d Ma't
Legal and Other Information sectiomthis Draft Letter ofOffer.

3. Any disturbance in or shutdown of our Manufacturingacility may have a material adverse effect
on our entire manufacturing operations and consequently, our business, financial condition and our
results of operations.

Our manufacturing perations are based out of our manufacturiagjlity locatedat GZ 83, Vigyan
Nagar,RIICO Industrial area, Shahjahanpur, Alwar, Rajasth#s on the date of this Prospectus, the
manufacturing facility is dedicated towards the manufactur®obdfmer Compoundand Recycling
Materials For furt her d e tbhajinningon pagedef this Oraft LetRuosOffere s s 0

Our manufacturing operations and consequently our business is dependent upon our ability to manage

the manufacturing facility, which is subject to operating risks, includingethbeyond our control, such
as the breakdown and failure of equipment or industrial accidents, localised social unrest and natural
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disasters. In the event there are any disruptions at our manufacturing facility, due to naturai@d®an
disasters, workdrce disruptions, regulatory approval delays, fire, failure of machinery, lack of access to
assured supply of electrical power and water at reasonable costs or any significant social, political or
economic disturbances, our ability to manufacture our ptsduay be adversely affected.

Any contravention of or nanompliance with the terms of various regutgtapprovals applicable to the
manufacturing dcility may also require us to cease or limit production until suchcoompliance is
remedied to the safaction of relevant regulatory authorities. We cannot assure you that we will not
experience work disruptions in the future resulting from any dispute with our employees or other
problems associated with our employeesl the labour involved in our mamgturing fcility, which

may hinder our regular operating activities and lead to disruptions in our operations, which could
adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.

Any shortfall in the supply ofour raw materials or an increase in our raw material costs, or other
input costs, may adversely affect the pricing and supply of our products and have an adverse effect
on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The success of our emtions depends on, among other things, our ability to source raw materials at
competitive prices. Raw materials are subject to supply disruptions and price volatility caused by various
factors such as the quality and availability of raw materials, ccyréinctuations, consumer demand,
changes in domestic as well as international government policies and regulatory sanctions.

We seek to source our raw materials from reputed suppliers and typically seek quotations from multiple
suppliers. We do not haverigterm contracts with our suppliers. We typically purchase raw materials

on a purchase order basis. Consequently, we may be required to regularly negotiate prices with our
suppliers in case of significant fluctuations in raw material prices. The absEtmegterm supplier
contracts subjects us to risks such as price volatility, unavailability of certain raw materials in the short
term and failure to source critical raw materials in time, which would result in a delay in manufacturing
of the final prodat. Further, we cannot assure you that we will be able to enter into new arrangements
with suppliers on terms acceptable to us, which could have an adverse effect on our ability to source raw
materials in a commercially viable and timely manner, if atvellich may impact our business and
profitability. Our suppliers may also be unable to provide us with sufficient quantity of raw materials, at
prices acceptable to us, for us to meet the demand for our products. While, we typically sell our products
to ourcustomers on a purchase order basis, given that we have long term relationships with many of our
customers, our ability to pass on increases in the costs of raw materials and other inputs to our customers
may be limited. We are also subject to the rigk time or more of our existing suppliers may discontinue
their operations, which may adversely affect our ability to source raw materials at a competitive price.

If we are unable to purchase the raw materials from such suppliers for any reason inaiedtog d
cessation of operations by such suppliers, disputes with such suppliers, or if there is a substantial increase
in the prices charged by such suppliers, there can be no assurance that we will be able to identify
alternative suppliers for our raw matds at similar cost and other terms of purchase.

Any increase in raw material prices may result in corresponding increases in our product costs. A failure
to maintain our required supply of raw materials, and any inability on our part to find alternatess

for the procurement of such raw materials, on acceptable terms, could adversely affect our ability to
deliver our products to our customers in an efficient, reliable and timely manner, and consequently
adversely affect our business, results of of@na and financial condition.

Our agreements with lenders for financial arrangements contain restrictive covenants for certain
activities and if we are unable to get their approval, it might restrict our scope of activities and impede
our growth plans.

Our Company has entered into agreements for our borrowings with certain lenders. These borrowings
include secured fund based and {fond based facilities. These agreements include restrictive
covenants which mandate certain restrictions in terms of osindss operations such as change in
capital structure (including this present proposed Rights Issue), formulation of any scheme of
amalgamation or reconstruction, declaring dividends, further expansion of business, granting loans to
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directors, repaying saced loan and unsecured loans, undertake guarantee obligations, which require
our Company to obtain prior approval of the lenders for any of the above activities. We have applied to
all the relevant lenders for consentbigectioncertificateto undertakehelssue As ondateof thisDraft

Letterof Offer, weareyetto receive consenstUndertaking the Issuithoutsuchconsentgonstitutes

breachof covenantunderthe relevantfinancing documentswhich entitlesthe respectivelenderto
considerthis Issueas an eventof defaultunderthe loan agreementandthey may call up the entire
outstanding amount and make it payable forthwith at their discretion. We cannot provide any assurance
that our lenders will not enforce their rights relating to ourableof financial covenants, or grant us
waivers with respect to any such breaches. The occurrence of any of the events mentioned above can
adversely affect our business, results of operations and finanaidition.

Our clients operate in various indust segments/verticals and fluctuations in the performance of the
industries in which our clients operate may result in a loss of clients, a decrease in the volume of
work we undertake or the price at which we offer our services. This can further lead pemnidency

on a limited number of clients, which may expose us to a high risk of client concentration.

For the FY ended MarcBil, 2020andnineand halimonttés periodendedlanuary 152021,ourtop ten
customergontributedd8.63% and81.98%, respectivelyandourtop five customergontributedr5.13%6
and69.5%, respectivelytowardsour revenue from operations, respectively. Our business operations
are highly dependent on our customers and the loss of any of our customers from any industry which
we cater® may adversely affect our sales and consequently on our business and regdtatidns.

While we typically havelong termrelationshipswith our customersasanindustrypractice we do not

enter into long terms agreements with most of our custormeisthe success of our business is
accordingly significantlglependenbnusmaintaininggoodrelationshipsvith ourcustomersTheactual
revenuesarned by our Company may differ from the estimates of our management due to the absence
of long-term agreemnts. The loss of one or more of these significant or key customers or a reduction

in the amount of business we obtain from them could have an adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows. We cannot assurdgbwe will beable to maintain

historic levels of business and/or negotiate and execute long term contracts on terms that are
commercially viable with our significant customers or that we will be able to significantly reduce
customer concentration in theure.

A decline in our clients6é busi ne ®aeipdmdndforoumnce n
product We are also exposed to fluctuations in the performance of the industries in which our significant
clients operate.

Our clients may ats decide to reduce spending on services due to a changing economic environment
and other factors relating to the industry in which they operate. For instance, in this period of pandemic
wherein allthe industriesare facing a slowdown and cashcrunch due to the lockdown and other
restrictiondmposed by several State Governments has resultant in a widespread impact on the industry.
In view of the present situation, a number of our clients have halted their business operations which
could prompt them to ceasusing our services, thereby resulting in loss of our market share. A loss of
any of our significant clientele, a decrease in the volume of work our clients outsource to us or a decline
in our prices may materially and adversely affect our business,tmgmes;afinancial condition, results

of operations and prospects.

We operate in a highly fragmented and competitive industry and increased competition may lead to
a reduction in our revenues, reduced profit margins or a loss of market share.

We operate im highly competitive industry, dominated by a large numbergdnized andnorganized
players. Increased competition from other organized and unorganize@dhiydogistics providers may
lead to a reduction in our revenues, reduced profit margiadass of markethare.

Our success depends on our ability to anticipate, understand and address the preferences of our existing

and prospectivelientsaswell asto understan@volvingindustrytrendsandour failure to adequatelylo
socould adverselgaffect our business.
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10.

In areas of business or verticals whersare a new entrant suchmsnufacture of Recycling Materials,

we may beunable to compete effectively with our competitors, some of whom may have more
experience. Other factors that couléeaf our ability to maintain our levels of revenues and profitability
include the development of an operatiamaldelsimilaror superiotto oursby acompetitor. Our inability

to compete effectively could affect our ability to retain our existifgntsor attractnewclientswhich
mayin turn materiallyandadverselaffectour businessfinancial condition, results of operations, cash
flows andprospects.

Our Company has experienced negative cash flow in the past and may continue to do so in the future
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition, cash flows
and results of operations.

Our Company has experienced negative net cash flow in operating, investing and fiaaticitigs in
the pastFollowing are the details of our cash flow position during thettagtefinancial yearsand nine
and half montés period ending January 15, 2Q24sed on restated financial statements are

(T in 1l akhs

Particulars January 15, March 31, March March 31,

2021 2020 31, 2019 2018
Net cash flow from operating 5.06 377.05 -1,159.19 -2,318.44
activities (A)
Net cash flow from / (used in) 129.69 -139.86 1.68 -227.87
investing activities (B)
Net cash flow from / (used in) -140.55 -369.93  1,299.67 2,544.03

financing activities (C)
We may incur negative cash flows in the future which may have a material adverse effect on our
business, prospects, results of operations and financial condtiotiurther detailspleaserefer to
fiRestatedrinancial Informatiord beginningon pages6 of this Draft Letter oDffer.

Our Company has posted negative profits in the past.

Our Company has in the past incurred losses. There qamdmsurance that we will be able to maintain
the profitability in future. The details are as mentioned below:

(T in | akhs
Particulars January 15, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2021 2020 2019 2018
Total Comprehensive 1,300.19 -3,67260 -7,210.75 3647.41

Income for the period

For furtherdetailspleasereferto fiRestated-inancial Informatiord beginningon page86 of this Draft
Letter ofOffer.

Our business strategies and expansion plans may be subject to various unfamdlierand may not
be successful.

Our business strategies include widening our customer base by entering into new geographies and
strengthening our relationships wi tOhr Bosings8 e xi st i
Business Strate@y o0 n 64 dlgese strategies require us to expand our operations to other
geographical areas and in new industry verticals. Risks that we may face in implementing our business
strategy in these markets ynsubstantially differ from those previously experienced, thereby exposing

us to risks related to new markets, industry verticals and clients. The commencement of operations
beyond our current markets and industry verticals is subject to various risldimgclinfamiliarity with

pricing dynamics, competition, servi@nd operationalissuesas well as our ability to retain key
managemerandemployeesTherecanalso be nassurance that we will not experience issues such as
capital constraints, difficulti in expanding our existing operations and challenges in training an
increasing number of personnel to manage and operate our expanded business, or that we will be able
to successfully manage the impact of our growth on our operasindadanageriatesoucesandcontrol
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11.

12.

13.

systemsWe may not be able to successfullynanagesome orall of the risks associatedavith suchan
expansionnto newgeographicahreasandnewindustryverticals, which may place us at a competitive
disadvantage, limit our growth oppuonities and materially and adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financiabndition.

Misconduct or errors by manpower engaged by us could expose us to business risks or losses that
could adversely affect our business prospects, resufltgperations and financial condition.

Misconduct or errors by manpower engaged by us could exjgosédusiness risks or losses, including
regulatory sanctions, penalties and serious harm to our reputation. Such misconduct includes breach of
security equirements, misappropriation of funds, hiding unauthorized activities, failure to observe our
stringent operational standards and processes and improper use of confidential information. It is not
always possibléo detecr detersuchmisconductandtheprecautionsve taketo preventanddetecsuch
misconduct may not be effective. Consequently, our ability to control the workplace environment in
such circumstances is limited. The risks associated with the deployment of manpower engaged by us
across loctons include, among others, possible claims relating to; actions or inactions, including
matters for which we may have to indemnify our clients; our failure to adequately verify personnel
backgrounds and qualifications resulting in deficient servicelsiréaof manpower engaged by us to
adequately perform their duties; errors or malicious acts or violation of health and safety regulations;
criminal acts.

These claims may give rise to litigation and claims for damages, which could bsotisieming. Thse
claimsmayalsoresultin negativepublicity andadverselympactourreputatiorandbrandname Further,

we may be forced to indemnify our clients against losses or damages suffered by our clients as a result
of negligent acts of manpower engaged byWe may also be affected in our operations by the acts of
third parties, including subontractors and service providers. Any claims and proceedings for alleged
negligence as well as regulatory actions may in turn materially and adversely affect duarntagur
reputation, and consequently, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In the past, there have been instances of delays and-filomgs of certain forms which were required
to be filed as per the reporting requireents under the Companies Act, 2013 to RoC.

In the past, there have been certain instances of delays in filing statutorystarimas dorm DIR-12
etc.as per the reporting requirementsderthe CompaniesAct, 2013with the RoC, which havebeen
subsequaetly filed by payment ofinadditionalfee asspecifiedby RoC.

No showcausenoticein respecto the abovehasbeenreceivedby our Compantill dateandexceptas

stated irthis Draft Letterof Offer, no penaltyor fine hasbeenimposedby anyregulabry authorityin
respecto the same. It cannot be assured, that there will not be such instances in the future or our
Company will not comminy furtherdelaysor defaultsin relationto its reportingrequirementsor any
penaltyor fine will notbeimposed by any regulatory authority in respect to the same. The happening of
such event may cause a matesfédct on our results of operations and finanpiadition.

As the securities of our Company are listed on Stock Exchanges in India, our Companyjsduo
certain obligations and reporting requirements under the SEBI Listing Regulatiamsl comply with
other SEBI regulations Any non compliances/delay in complying with such obligations and
reporting requirements may render us liable to prosecutamd/or penalties.

The Equity Shares obur Company are listed on BSE aNSE, therefore we are subject to the
obligations and reporting requirements prescribed under the SEBI Listing Regudatibosmply with

other applicable Regulations framed by SEBuUr Companyendeavorsto comply with all such
obligations/reporting requirements, however there have been instances in the past- of non
disclosures/delayed disclosurasderSEBIListing Regulationsuch as delayed filings under 23)d
Regulation 3®f SEBI Listing Regulationandotherdelayed compliancenderRegulation 74(5) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations§ &bt
compliancewhich might havebeencommittedby us, may resultinto Stock Exchangesand/orSEBI
imposingpenalties, issuing warnings and show cause notices against us and/or taking actions as provided
under the SEBI Act and Rules and Regulations made there under and ap@EBbGirculars. Any
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14.

15.

16.

17.

such adverse regulatory actiondmvelopment could affect our business reputation, divert management
attention, and result in a material adverse effect on our business prospects and financial performance
and on the trading price of the Equiéhares.

Our Company requires significant ammt of working capital for a continuing growth. Our inability
to meet our working capital requirements may adversely affect our results of operations.

Ourbusinessequiresasignificantamountof working capital. Any delayin processingur paymentdy

our customersnayincreaseour working capitalrequirementFurther,if a customerdefaultsin making
payment for the services provided by us, on which we have devoted significant resources, it could affect
our profitability and liquidity and decrease thapdal reserves that are otherwise available for other
uses. We may file a claim for compensation of the loss that we incurred pursuant to such defaults but
settlement of disputes generally takes time and financial and other resources, and the outiteme is o
uncertain. In general, we take provisions for bad debts, including those arising from such defaults based
primarily on ageing and other factors such as special circumstances relating to special customers. There
canbe no assurance that such paymeriltoe remitted by our clients to us on a timely basis or that we

will be able to effectively manage the level of bad debt arising from defaults. All of these factors may
result, or have resulteth increasen the numberof receivablesindshorttermbomrowings.Continued
increasen working capital requirements may adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations. We may also have large cash flows, including among others, litigation costs, adverse
political conditions, foreign exchangisks and liability claims. Moreovewe may require additional
finance facility in the future to satisfy our working capitakeds.

Our Company does not have any documentary evidence for the educational qualifications and
experience of our Directors.

Our Directorsare unable to traaelevant documents with respectheir educational qualifications and
their experienceDue to lack of documents and relevant information from the aforementioned Directors,
we have reliedipon their Biodatgrovided to uss is required under the SEIRIDR RegulationsFor
furtherdetails,pleaserefertothec h a p t e Our Manageneedt bedinningon pager3 of this Draft
Letter ofOffer.

We require certain approvaland licenses inthe ordnary course of business, and any failure to
obtain or retain such approvals in a timely manner, or comply with applicable laws, may materially
and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

We require certainpprovals, licenses, registrations and permissions for operating our business in India,
if we fail to apply, obtain or retain any of these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof, in a timely
manner, our business may be adveraéfigcted.

In relationto ourfacility and the Objects of the Issuse are required to maintain and avail certain
approvals and licenses. We cannot assure you that we will receive all the required certifications or that
we will able to maintain the validity of the quality dédations that have previously been awarded.

Further, government approvals and licenses are subject to numerous conditions, of which some may be
onerous and may require us to undertake substaatiapliancerelated expenditureChanges in laws

and reglations, more stringent enforcement or alternative interpretation of existing laws and regulations
in geographies in whickve currently operatemay make compliancewith all applicablelaws and
regulationsmore challenging ancdcould affect us adverselyby tighteningrestrictions,reducingour
freedomto do businessincreasingour costs of doing business, or reducing pnafitability.

Failure to comply with applicable laws or regulations, obtain and maintain any licenses, permits and
approvalsecessaryo operateour busines®r non-compliancewith anyconditions imposethereunder

can lead to civil, administrative or criminal penalties, including but not limited to fines or the revocation
of permits and licenses that may be necesairgur business adfities.

Our Companyhasnot yet applied for the registration of the logwr any of the intellectual property
that it useswith the registrar of Trademarks
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Our Companyas not yet applied for the registration of the logo v-care  or any of the intellectual
property that it uses. Any failure to get the same registered in our name may cause qayttheidim
and may lead to litigation and our business operations could be affected. Even if our trademarks are
registered, we may not be able to detect anytlnmized use or infringement or take appropriate and
timely steps to enforce or protect our intellectual property, nor can we provide any assurance that any

unauthorized use or infringement will not cause damage to our business prospects.

Our growth andour financial results may be affected by factors affecting ttieemicaland plastic
industry in India.

Our financial results are influenced by the macroeconomic factors determining the growth of the Indian
economy as a whole and tbleemicaland plastidndustryin particular.

Periods of slowdown in the economic growth of India has significantly affectethémaicaland plastic

sector in the recent past. Any further downturn in our industry and/or changes in governmental policies
affecting the growtlof this sectormayhaveanadverseeffectonthedemand foour servicesvhichmay
haveanadverse effect on our results of our operations. Especially, during the ongoing pandemic, the
economy as a whole has withstood the worst impact of extended lockddwedarction in the flow of
income.Chemicaland Plasticsector industries may see a downside in the current situation and an
adverse and direct impact could fall on our business operations, demand of our services, revenue and
financial condition.

Our Promoter, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel have interests in our Company other than
reimbursement of expenses incurred or normal remuneration or benefits.

Our Promoter, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, may be deemed to be interested in our
Compaly, inadditionto theregularemuneratiomr benefitsyeimbursementsf expensed:quityShares

held by them or their relatives, their dividend or bonus entitlement, benefits arising from their
directorship in our Companykor further details pleaserefer to fiRestatedrinancial Informatiord
beginningon page86 of this Draft Letter ofOffer.

Therecanbeno assurancéhatour Promoter Directors,Key ManagemenPersonneWill exercisaheir

rights asshareholdert thebeneft andbestinterestof our CompanyOur Promotemandmemberf our
Promoter Group will continue to exercise significant control over our Company, including being able to
control the composition of our Board of Directors and determine decisions recgiiriptg or special
majority voting of shareholders, and our other shareholders may be unable to affect the outcome of such
voting. Our Directorandour Key ManagemenPersonneinaytakeor block actionswith respecto our
businesswhich may conflict withthe best interests of our Company or that of minadfigreholders.

Our Promoter and members of the Promoter Group have significant control over the Company and
have the ability to direct our business and affairs; their interests may conflict with yateriests as a
shareholder.

After the completion of the Issue, our Promoter and the members of the Promoter Group will hold
approximatelyf 0% of the paieup equity share capital of our Company assuming full subscription to
the RightEntitlemenin thelssue OurPromotermndthemember®fthePromoteiGroupholdingEquity

Shares in our Company, have undertaken to fully subscribe forRigtits Entitlement. They reserve

the right to subscribe for their Rights Entitlement pursuant to any renunciation made by any member of
the Promoter Group to another member of the Promoter Group. Such subscription for Equity Shares
over and above their ights Entitlement,if allotted, may resultin an increasein their percentage
shareholdingabovetheir current percentage shareholding. So long as the Promoter has a majority
holding, he will be able to elect the entire Boartt control most mattersaffeding us, including the
appointmentand removal of the officers of our Company, our business strategy and policies and
financing. Further, the extent of the Promoterods
prevention of a change of managerner control of our Company, even if such a transaction may be
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beneficial to the other shareholders of our Company.

We have certain contingent liabilities and our financial condition and profitability may be adversely
affected if any of these contingetitibilities materialize.

As of January 152021, our contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) as
disclosed in the notes to our Restated Financial Information aggs¢gaté37.71lakhs. The details of
our contingent lialtities are as follows:

Particulars ( in | a
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts
Under Tax laws 79.31
Custom Duty 88.41
Bank Guarantees issued by the bank on behalf of the company 270.00

Total 437.71

Forfurtherdetailsof cortingentliability, seethesectiontitied* fAFinancial Informatiord beginningon
pageB6ofthisDraft Letter of Offer. Furthermore, there ch@no assurance that we will not incur similar
or increased levels of contingentdilities in thefuture.

We have in past entered into related party transactions and we may continue to do so in the future.

As of January 15, 2021we have entered into several related party transactions with our Promoter,
individuals and entities formgna part of our promoter group, our Directors and the entities in which
they hold directorships. In addition, we have in the past also entered into transactions with other related
parties. Our Company has entered into related party transactions fingtend halfmonths period
endedJanuary 152021 andthe FiscalendedMarch 31, 2020.For further details, pleaseeferto the
chaptettitled ' fiRestated Financial Informati@rbeginning orpage86 of this Draft Letter of Offer

Whil e we believe that al/l our related party trar
we cannot assure you that we may not have achieved more favorable terms had such transactions been
entered into with unrelated parties. There can bagssurance that such transactions, individually or

taken together, will not have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of operations and
financial condition, including because of potential conflicts of interest or otherwise. In addition, ou
business and growth prospects may decline if we cannot benefit from our relationships with them in the
future.

In addition to our existing indebtedness for our existing operations, we may incur further
indebtedness during the course of business. We adrassure that we would be able to service our
existing and/ or additional indebtedness.

AsonJanuary 15,2026 ur Companyo6s t ot alis f4316.26lakbsals additioion d e bt e
the indebtedness for our existing operations, we may incur further indebtedness during the course of our
business. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain further loans at favorable terms. Increased
borrowings,if any, mayadverselyaffectour debtequity ratio andour ability to borrowat competitive

rates. In addition, we cannot assure you that the budgeting of our working capital requirements for a
particular yeawill beaccurateTheremaybesituationsvherewe mayunderbudgeburworking capital
requirements, which may lead to delays in arranging additional working capital requirements, loss of
reputation, levy of liquidated damages and can cause an adverse effect on 8amnsash

Any failure to servie our indebtednes®r otherwiseperform our obligationsunder our financing

agreements entered with our lenders or which begntered into by our Company, could trigger cross

default provisions, penalties, acceleration of repayment of amdueatsnder sch facilities which may

cause an adversdfecton our businessfinancial conditionandresultsof operationsFor detailsof our
indebtedness, pl e as e Capmtdlimton $tatemedabeginnmdpmapagelstof t i t | e o
this Draft Letter ofOffer.
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Our Company has taken certain unsecured loans from financial institutions, which may belleta
at any time.

AsonJanuary 15,2021 our Company has outstandilomg88akinssecur e
which have been extended by certain financial institutions and may be recalled by them at any time. In
the eventany of suchlendersseé a repaymenbpf anytheseloans, ourCompanywould needto find

alternative sources of financing, which may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, or at

all. If we are unable to arrange for any such financing arrangemenisay not have ade@te working

capital toundertakenew projectsor completeour ongoingprojects.Therefore any suchdemandmay
adverselyaffect our business, financial condition and results of operations. For further details, see
fiCapitalization Statemeabeginningon pagel60 of this Draft Letter ofOffer.

Our future fund requirements, in the form of further issue of capital or securities and/or loans taken
by us, may be prejudicial to the intest of the Shareholders depending upon the terms on which they
are eventually raised.

We may require additional capital from time to time depending on our business needs. Any further issue

of Equity Shares or convertible securities would dilute the sbétigly of the existing Shareholders and

such issuance may be done on terms and conditions, which may not be favourable to the then existing
Shareholders. If such funds are raised in the form of loans or debt or preference shares, then it may
substantiallyincrease our fixed interest/dividend burden and decrease our cash flows, thus adversely

affecting our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our success largely depends upon the knowledge and experience of our Promoter, Directors and our
Key Managerial Personnel. Loss of any of our Directors and key managerial personnel or our ability
to attract and retain them could adversely affect our business, operations and financial condition.

Our Company depends on the management skills and geidanour Promoter and Directors for
developmentof businessstrategies,monitoring its successfulimplementationand meeting future
challenges. Further, we also significantly depend on the expertise, experience and continued efforts of
our Key ManageriaPersonnel. Some of our employees have been associated with our Company since
a long period of time and have been integral to the growth and in the success of our Company. Our
future performance willlepend largelpn ourability to retainthe continuedserice of our management

team. Ifoneor more of our Directors or Key Managerial Personnel are unable or unwilling to continue

in his/ her present position, it could be difficult for us to find a suitable or timely replacement and our
business could be adwgely affected. There is significant competition for management and other skilled
personnel in the industry in which we operate, and it may be difficult to attract and retain the personnel
we require in the future. There cdie no assurancehat our compettors will not offer better
compensatiopackagesndincentivesto such Key Managerial Personnel. In the event we are not able

to attract and retain talented employees, as required for conducting our business, or we experience high
attrition levels which ee largely out of our control, dfrwe are unable to motivate and retain existing
employees, our business, financial condition and operations may be adversely affectedhé&ior

details on our Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, please refer tohtept er Qui t | ed
Managementbeginningon page73 of this Draft Letter ofOffer.

Our inability to procure and/or maintain adequate insurance cover in connection with our business
may adversely affect our operations andbfitability.

Our operations are subject to inherent risks and hazards which may adversely impact our profitability,
such asatural disasterPuring the Fiscal 20120, our company suffered loss of stock amounting to
Rs. 1.03 crore due to fire broke atir godown in RajastharPresently, we have obtained certain
insurancepolicies. The said policies insurstock, building, furniture, fittings, from earthquekfire,

shock, terrorism, et@ here are many events that could cause significant damagesdperations, or
expose us to thirparty liabilities, whether or not known to us, for which we may not be insured or
adequately insured, which in turn may expose us to certain risks and liabilities. Theeecassurance

that our insurance policies Wibe adequate to cover the losses in respect of which the insurance had
been availedrurthertherecanbe no assurancéhatanyclaimundertheinsurancepoliciesmaintained

by uswill be honored fully, in part, or on time. If we were to incur a sigaificliability for which we
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were not fully insured, it could adversely affect our results of operations and finaositadn.

Our Company is subject to foreign exchange control regulations which can pose a risk of currency
fluctuations.

During the finawial year 20120, aur Companyhad foreign exchange earnings of Rs. 3,11,75,689
(inflow) and outgo of Rs. 76,46,757.57 (outflow)accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed
under FEMA. Due to noreceipt of such payments in a timely manner,@ompany may fail to adhere

to the prescribed timelines and may be required to pay penalty to the appropriate authority or department
to regularize the payment. Further, our international operations make us susceptible to the risk of
currency fluctuationswhich may directly affect our operating results. In case we are unable to adhere
to the timelines prescribed under the applicable laws or are unable to mitigate the risk of currency
fluctuation, it could adversely affect our business, results of opesafioancial conditions and cash

flows.

Our ability to pay dividends in the future may be affected by any material adverse effect on our future
earnings, financial condition or cash flows.

Our ability to pay dividends in future will depend on our earsjrfghancial condition and capital
requirements. Our busineissworking capital intensive ande are required to obtain consents from
certain of our lenders prior to the declaration of dividend as per the terms of the agreements executed
with them. We maye unable to pay dividends in the near or medium term, and our future dividend
policy will depend ormur capitalrequirementandfinancingarrangements respecbf our operations,
financial condition and results of operations. For furthdetails, pleae refer to the chapter titled
fiDividend Policy and t he ACdpialeatienrStatermebtbegirthingon pages84 and 160
respectively, of thi®raft Letter ofOffer.

The deployment of funds is entirely at our discretiand as per the details mentioned in the chapter
titled AObjects of the | ssueod.

As the issue size shall be |l ess than 10,000 |
it isnot required that a monitoring agency be appointed by our Comjsaioyerseeing the deployment

and utilisation of funds raised through this Issue. Therefore, the deployment of the funds towards the
Objects of this Issue is entirely at the discretion of our Board of Directors and is not subject to monitoring
by externalindependent agency. Our Board of Directors along withRigits IssueCommittee will

monitor the utilisation of Issuproceedsandshallhavetheflexibility in applyingthe proceedsf this

Issue Howeverthe management of our Company shall not havepihweer to alter the objects of this

Issue except with the approval of the Shareholders of the Company given by way of a special resolution
in a general meeting, in the manner specified in Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013. Additionally,
the dissentinghareholders being those shareholaee havenot agreedo the proposatto vary the
objectsof this Issue,our Promotershallprovide themwith anopportunityto exit at suchprice,andin
suchmannerandconditionsasmaybespecifiedby the SEBI, in repect to the same. For further details,

pl ease refer t oObjettseof tioeHsadgabegammingdn ipagdd eotithis'DraffiLetter of

Offer.

We have not commissioned an industry report for the disclosures madeesin tit h
Overviewd and made disclosures on t
not been independently verified by us.

apter title
he basis of

We have neither commissioned an industry report, nor sought consent from the quotés seelse

for the disclosures whi ch IndestydOvdarview b e fDelit betes i n  t h €

of Offer. We have made disclosures in the said chapter on the basis of the relevant industry related data
available online for which relevaobnsents have not been obtained. We have not independently verified
such data. We cannot assure you that any assumptions made are correct or will not change and,
accordingly, our position in the market may differ from that presented irDtiaif Letter d Offer.

Further, the industry data mentioned in thisft Letter of Offer or sources from which the data has

been collected are not recommendations to invest in our Company. Accordingly, investors should read
the industry related disclosure in tigaft Letter of Offer in this context.
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ISSUE SPECIFIC RISKS

32. Our Company will not distribute th®raft Letter of Offer and Application Form to certain overseas
Shareholders who have not provided an address in India for service of documents.

Our Companywill dispatch thidDraft Letterof Offer, the AbridgedLetter of Offer, RightsEntitlement

Letterand Appl i c atQOffering Materialsd )( tthee siuch Sharehol ders w
address in India for the service of documents. The Offering Materialsotitlie distributed to addresses

outside India on account of restrictions that apply to the circulation of such materials in various overseas
jurisdictions. HowevettheCompanieg\ct requirescompanies$o servedocumentatanyaddressywhich
maybeprovided by the members as well as throegimail. Presently, there is a lack of clarity under

the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules thereunder, with respect to the distribution of Offering Materials

to retail individual shareholders in overseas jurisdictisgre such distribution may be prohibited

under applicable laws of such jurisdictions.

33. SEBI has recently, by way of circulars dated January 22, 2020, May 6, 2020 and January 19, 2021,
streamlined the process of rights issues. You should follow the irtdtoms carefully, as stated in
such SEBI circulars and in thiDraft Letter of Offer.

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders
has recently been introduced by the SEBI. Accordingly, theegsotor such Rights Entitlements has
been recently devised by capital market intermediaries. Eligible Equity Shareholders are encouraged to
exercise caution, carefully follow the requirements as stated in the SEBI circulars dated January 22,
2020, May 6, P20 and January 19, 202hd April 22, 2021and ensure completion of all necessary
steps in relation to providing/updating their demat account details in a timely manner. For details, see
fiterms othe Issué beginningon pagel72

In accordancevith Regulation77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulationsreadwith the SEBI Rights Issue
Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in
dematerialized fornonly. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Companyshall credit the Rights
Entitlementdo (i) thedemat accountef the Eligible Equity Shareholder$olding the Equity Shares

in dematerialisedorm; and (ii) a dematsuspensescrowaccountopenedby our Company, for the

Eligible Equity Shareholdersvhich would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares
held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b)
Equity Shares held in the account of IEPFhauty; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity
Shareholder which are frozen or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar
on the Record Date; ofd) credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or he) t
ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including anypmoggedings.

34. The RWAP payment mechanism facility proposed to be used for this Issue may be exposed to risks,
including risks associated with payment gateways.

In accordancewith SEBI Relaxation Circulars, a separateWRAP facility (accessible at
www.alankit.com), has been instituted for making an Application in this Issue by resident Investors
(only in the event such Investors are not able to utilize the ASBA facility foingaln Application
despite their best efforts). FurthersVIRAP is only an additional option and not a replacement of the
ASBA process. On RVAP, the resident Investors can access and fill the Application Form in electronic
mode and make online payment wgsthe internet banking or UPI facility from their own bank account
thereat. For details, séeTer ms of-Makiendg sesuean Applicatioen thro
based ApplicaitWAd®Pw ) P Ipaéyfomngan gagdl 7R of this Draft Letter of Offer

Such payment gateways and mechanisms are faced with risks such as:

i keeping information technology systems aligned and up to date with the rapidly evolving
technology in the payment services industries;

scaling uptechnology infrastructure to meet requirements of growing volumes;

applying risk management policies effectively to such payment mechanisms;

keeping usersd data safe and free from secur

E ]
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i effectively managing payment solutions logistand technology infrastructure.

Further, R-WAP is a new facility which has been instituted due to challenges arising out of the
COVID -19 pandemic. We cannot assure you that-®/AP will not suffer from any unanticipated
system failure or breakdown or dely, including failure on part of the payment gateway, and
therefore, your Application may not be completed or may be rejected. These risks are indicative
and any failure to manage them effectively can impair the efficacy and functioning of the payment
mechanism for this Issue. Since Application process through RVAP is different from the ASBA
process, there can be no assurance that investors will not find difficulties in accessing and using
the R-WAP.

The entitlement of Equity Shares to be allotted to ines applying for Allotment in physical form,
will be kept in abeyance.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the option to receive the Rights Equity Shares in
physical formwill notbe availablaftera periodof six monthsfrom thedateof coming into force of the
SEBIICDR Regulations, i.e., May 10, 2019. Since, the Rights Equity Shares offered pursuant to this
Issue will be Allotted only after May 10, 2019, the entitlement of Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted to
the Applicants who have apptidor Allotment of the Rights Equity Sharesphysical form willbekept

in abeyance in electronic mode by our Company until the Applicants provide details of their demat
account particulars to tHeegistrar.Pursuanto a pressreleasedatedDecembe3, 2018issuedby the

SEBI, with effectfrom April 1, 2019, a transfer of listed Equity Shares cannot be processed unless the
Equity Shares are held in dematerialized form (except in case of transmission or transposition of Equity
Shares).

Any future issuane of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other eqdibjked securities by
our Company may dilute your shareholding and any sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or
members of our Promoter Group may adversely affect the trading price of the EQligres.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares
by ourCompanymaydilute your shareholdingn our Companyadversehaffectthetradingprice of the

Equity Shares and our ability to raisapital through an issue of our securities. In addition, any
perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of the
Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that we will not issue additional Equity Sherebsfgosal of

Equity Shares bgny of our Promoter and Promoter Group, or the perception that such sales may occur
may significantly affect th&radingprice of the EquitySharesWe cannotassureyou thatour Promoter
andPromoterGroupwill not disposef, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares inftiere.

You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from tHeqalt/o

shares of an Indian company are generally taxable in India. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment
of long-termcapitalgainstaxin India, in additionto paymentof STT, on the saleof any Equity Shares

heldfor morethan12months STTwill beleviedonandcollectedby adomesticstockexchang@nwhich
theEquity Shares are sold. Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equityheldi@sa period

of 12 months olesswill besubjectto shorttermcapitalgainstaxin India. Cagtal gainsarisingfromthe

saleof the Equity Shares may be partially or completely exempt from taxation in India in cases where
such exemption is providechderatreatybetweerindiaandthecountryof which theselleris aresident.
Generally,Indiantax treaties do not i mit I ndi ads abil:i
residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on gains
made upon the sale of the Equity Shares.

You may not receive thEquity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue until fifteen days after the date
on which this Issue closes, which will subject you to market risk.

The Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue may not be credited to your demat account with the
depogtory participants until approximately 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. You can start trading
such Equity Shares only after receipt of the listing and trading approval in respect thereof. There can be
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no assurance that the Equity Shares allocated uowth be credited to your demat account, or that
trading in the Equity Shares will commence within the specified time period, subjecting you to market
risk for such period.

There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed in a timely manneatoall which may
adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, final approval for listing and trading of the Equity Shares
will not be granted by the Stock Exchanges until after those Equity Slearebéen issued and allotted.
Approvalwill requireall relevantdocumentsauthorizingtheissuingof Equity Sharego be submitted.

There couldeafailure or delayin listing theEquity Sharesn StockExchangesAny failure or delayin
obtaining the aproval would restrict your ability to dispose of your Equity Shares. Further, historical
trading prices, therefore, may not be indicative of the prices at which the Equity Shares will trade in the
future which may adversely impact the ability of our shalddrs to sell the Equity Shares or the price

at which shareholders may be able to sell their Equity Shares at that poime.of

Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability to exercise-@meptive rights under
Indian law and could theeby suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, any company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares
pre-emptiverightsto subscribeandpayfor a proportionatenumberof sharego maintaintheir exising
ownership percentages prior to the issuance of any new equity shares, unlessmgipeerights have
been waived by the adoption of a special resolution by holders offtughs of the shares voted on
such resolution, unless our Company hasiobthgovernment approval to issue without such rights.
However, if the law of the jurisdiction that you are in does not permit the exercise of stanree
rights withoutusfiling an offering document or registration statement with the applicableiytin
such jurisdiction, you wilbeunable to exercise such peenptive rights unlesae make such a filing.
We may elect not to file a registratistatemenin relationto preemptiverightsotherwiseavailableby
Indianlawto you.To theextent thayou are unable to exercise gmptive rights granted in respect of
the Equity Shares, yoproportional interests in us would beduced.

Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may adversely
affect the value obur Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Indian Rupees on the Stock Exchanges. Any dividends
in respecof our Equity Shareswill alsobe paidin Indian Rupeesandsubsequentlgonvertednto the
relevant foreign currency for repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange
rates during the timthatit takesto undertakesuchconversiommayreducethe netdividendto foreign
investorsin addition, any adverse movementcirrency exchange rates during a delay in repatriating
outside India theproceeds from a sale of Equity Shares, for example, because of a delay in regulatory
approvals that may be required for the sale of Equity Shares may reduce the proceeds reegivigd by
shareholders. For example, the exchange rate between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated
substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future, which may
adversely affect the trading price of our Equity i®saand returns on our Equity Shares, independent of
our operating results.

Sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or other significant shareholder(s) may adversely affect the
trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any instance of disinvestments of equityasds by our Promoter or by other significant shareholder(s)
may significantly affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Further, our market price may also be
adversely affected even if there is a perception or belief that such sales of Equity Sharescar.

Rights of shareholders under Indian laws may be more limited than under the laws of other
jurisdictions.

dian |l egal principles related to corporate
ar e

I n
sharehol der s 0 from tigobet tisat wowddyappty itof af cennpany in another jurisdiction.
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Shareholdersé rights including in relation to cl
s h a r e hrightsdrelertlse@ws ofothercountriesor jurisdictions.Investoramay havemoredifficulty

in asserting their rights as shareholder in an Indian company than as shareholder of a corporation in
another jurisdiction.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

44. The outbreak of Novel Coronavirus, or outbreak of any other severe communicablesiseould
have a potential impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The outbreak, or threatened outbreak, of any severe epidemic causedvituses (particularly the

Novel Coronavirus) could materially adversely affect rallebusiness sentiment and environment,
particularly if suchoutbreaks inadequatelgontrolled.Thespreadf anyseverecommunicablalisease
mayalsoadversely affect the operations of our customers and suppliers, which could adversely affect
our busiress, financial condition and results of operations. The outbreak of Novel Coronavirus has
resulted in authorities implementing several measures such as travel bans and restrictions, quarantines,
shelter in place orderand shutdowns. These measures hawegatcted and may further impact our
workforce and operations, the operatiadsour customersandthoseof our respectivevendorsand
suppliers.Thereis currently substantial medical uncertainty regarding Novel Coronavidusapid
increasean severecass anddeathavheremeasuresakenby governmentdail or arelifted prematurely,

may cause significant economic disruption in India and in the rest of the world. The scope, dardhtion
frequencyof suchmeasureandtheadverseffectsof Novel Coronavirs remainuncertainrand could be
severe. Our ability to meet our ongoing disclosure obligations might be adversely atfestetd our

best efforts. If any of our employees were suspected of contracting Novel Coronavirus or any other
epidemicdiseasethis could requireus to quarantinesomeor all of theseemployeesor disinfectthe
facilities used for our operations. In addition, our revenue and profitability could be impacted to the
extent that a natural disaster, health epidemic or other outbreaktharidian and global economy in
general.

The outbreak has significantly increased economic uncertainty. It is likely that the current outbreak or
continued spread of Novel Coronavirus will cause an economic slowdown and it is possible that it could
cau® a global recession. The spread of Novel Coronavirus has caused us to modify our business
practices (includingmployedravel,employeenorklocationsandcancellatiorof physicalparticipation

in meetings, events and conferences), and we may takerfaxtions as may be required by government
authorities or that we determine are in the best interests of our employees, customers, partners, and
suppliers. There is no certainty that such measures will be sufficient to mitigate the risks posed by the
outhkreak, and our ability to perform critical functions could be harmed.

The extent to which the Novel Coronavirus further impacts our results will depend on future
developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new informatbn wh
may emerge concerning the severity of the coronavirus and the actions taken globally to contain the
coronavirus or treat itsnpact,amongothers Existing insurance coverage may not provide protection

for all costs that may arise from all such possivents. We are still assessing our business operations
and system supports and the impgdotel Coronavirusnay haveon our resultsandfinancial condition,
buttherecanbe no assurance that this analysis will enaléo avoid part or all of any impafrom the

spread of Novel Coronavirus or its consequences, including downturns in business sentiment generally
or in our sector in particular. The degteavhich NovelCoronavirusmpactsourresultswill dependn
futuredevelopmentsyhich arehighly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including, but not limited to,

the duration and spread of the outbreak, its severity, the actions taken to contain the outbreak or treat its
impact, and how quickly and to what extent normal economic and operating cosidiio resume. The

above risks can threaten the safe operation of our facilities and cause disruption of operational activities,
environmental harm, loss of life, injuries and impact the wellbeing opeaple.

Further in case the lockdown is extendead;auld result in muted economic growth or give rise to a
recessionaryeconomicscenario,in India and globally, which could adverselyaffect the business,
prospects, results of operations and financial condition o€ounpany.

45. Significant differences eist between Ind AS, Indian GAAP and other accounting principles, such as
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US GAAP and International Financi al Reporting St
familiar with and consider material to their assessment of our financial condition.

Our restated summary statements of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020 and restated summary
statements of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity

for the Fiscals 2020 have been prepared in accordanbeheitindian Accounting Standards notified

under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Ind AS Rules and restated in accordance

with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Circular and the Prospectus Guidance Note.

We have not attempted to qudy the impact of US GAAP, IFRS or any other system of accounting
principles on the financial data included in thisaft Letter of Offer, nor do we provide a reconciliation

of our financial statements to those of US GAAP, IFRS or any other accountiogplas. US GAAP

and IFRS differ in significant respects from Ind AS and Indian GAAP. Accordingly, the degree to which

the Restated Financial Information included in tbisaft Letter of Offer will provide meaningful
information is entirely dependentdnéeé r eader 6s | evel of familiarity
SEBI ICDR Regulations. Angelianceby persons notamiliar with Indianaccountingpractices orthe
financialdisclosurepresented in thiBraft Letter of Offer should accordingly Bienited.

Political, economic or other factors that are beyond our control may have adversely affect our
business and results of operations.

The Indian economyis influencedby economicdevelopmentsn othercountries.Thesefactorscould

depress economic acitiy which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Any financial disruption could have an adverse effect on our business and future
financial performance.

We are dependent on domestic, regional and gkdmnomic and market conditions. Our performance,
growthandmarketprice of our Equity Sharesareandwill be dependento alargeextentonthehealthof

the economy in whiclve operate. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of
India. Demand for our services may be adversely affected by an economic downturn in domestic,
regional and globaconomies.

Economic growth is affected by various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance
of trade movements, namely exporéndand and movements in key imports, global economic
uncertainty and liquidity crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates, and annual rainfall which affects
agricultural production.

Consequently, any future slowdown in the Indian economy could harnbusiness, results of
operations and financial condition. Also, a change in the government or a change in the economic and
deregulation policies could adversely affect economic conditions prevalent in the areas in which we
operate in general and our busimés particular and high rates of inflation in India could increase our
costs without proportionately increasing our revenues, and as such decrease our operating margins.

A slowdown in economic growth in India could cause our business to suffer.

We are ncorporated in India, and all of our assets and employees are located in India. As a result, we
are highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and our results of operations are
significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian eaqogoA slowdown in the Indian economy

could adversely affect our business, including our ability to grow our assets, the quality of our assets,
and our ability to implement our strategy.

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and henasalis of operations, may include:
any increase in Indian interest ratesrdiation;

any scarcity of credit or other financinglirdia;

prevailing income conditions among Indian consumers and |digrorations;

changes i n | ndi andretarypelicies; t r ade, fiscal or
political instability, terrorism or military conflict in India or in countries in the region or

= =448
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globally, including icountrlesydi ads various neigh
1 prevailing regional or global economic conditioaag
1 other significant regattory or economic developments in or affectindia

Any slowdown in the Indian economy or in the growth of the sectors we participate in or future volatility
in global commodity prices could adversely affect our borrowers and contractual counterphidies.
turn could adversely affect our business and financial performance and the price of ouSEags/

Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of
corporate and tax laws, may adversely affect dusiness, prospects and results of operations.

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. Such

changes, including the instances mentioned below, may adversely affect our business, results of
operations angrospects, to the extent that we are unable to suitably respond to and comply with any

such changes in applicable law and policy.

The Government of India has issued a notification dated September 29, 2016 notifying Income
Computation and Disclosure Stand d s (Al CDSo0) , thereby creating
computation of taxable income. The ICDS became applicable from the assessment year for Fiscal 2018
and subsequent years. The adoption of ICDS is expected to significantly alter the way companies
compue their taxable income, as ICDS deviates from several concepts that are followed under general
accounting standards, including Indian GAAP and Ind AS. In addition, ICDS shall be applicable for the
computation of income for tax purposes but shall not Ipdicgble for the computation of income for
minimum alternate tax. There can be no assurance that the adoption of ICDS will not adversely affect
our business, results of operations and financial condition.

1 the Gener al Ant GAARY p i H a waade lefReaivedrem Apiil 1, 2017.

The tax consequences of the GAAR provisions being applied to an arrangement could result in
denial of tax benefit amongst other consequences. In the absence of any precedents on the
subject, the application of these pigignsis uncertain. If the GAAR provisions are made
applicable to our Company, it mhgve an adverse tax impact on us.

1 a comprehensive nation@lSTregime that combines taxes and levies by the Central and State
Governments into a unified rate structusdich came into effect from July 1, 2017. We cannot
provide any assurance as to any aspect of the tax regime following implementation of the GST.
Any future increases or amendments may affect the overall tax efficiency of companies
operating in India and ay resulin significantadditionaltaxesbecomingpayablelf, asaresult
of aparticulartaxrisk materializing, the tax costs associated with certain transactions are greater
than anticipated, it could affect the profitability of sudnsactions.

In addition, unfavourable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new laws,
rules and regulations including foreign investment laws governing our business, operations and group
structure couldesultin usbeingdeemedo bein contraventionof suchlawsor mayrequireusto apply

for additional approvals. We may incur increased costs and other burdens relating to compliance with
such new requirements, which may also require significant management time and other resources, and
any falure to comply may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects. Uncertainty
in the applicabilityjnterpretatioror implementatiorof anyamendmento, or changen, governinglaw,
regulation or policy, including by reason of anetse, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial
precedentmay be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may affect the viability of our
current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future.

Any increase in taes and levies, or the imposition of new taxes and levies in the future, could increase
the cost of production and operating expenses. Taxes and other levies imposed by the central or state
governmenté India thataffectourindustryincludecustomaluties, exciseduties,salesax, incometax

and othetaxesgdutiesor surchargesitroducednapermanentrtemporanpasisfromtimetotime. The

central and state tax scheme in India is extensive and subject to change from time to time. Any adverse
changs in anyof the taxeslevied by the central or state governmentsmay adverselyaffect our
competitivepositionand profitability.
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Financial instability in both Indian and international financial markets could adversely affect our
results of operations anfinancial condition.

The Indian financial market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions

in other countries, particularly in emerging market in Asian countries. Financial turmoil in Asia, Europe,

the United States and elgleere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. Although
economic conditions are different in each countr
can have an adverse effect on the securities of companies in other coukttgss in investor

confidence in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in in the
Indian economy in general. Any global financial instability, including further deterioration of credit
conditions in the U.S. marketould also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial
disruptions may occur again and could harm our results of operations and financial condition.

The Indian economy is also influenced by economic and market conditions in other courtiges.
includes, but is not limited to, the conditions in the United States, Europe and certain economies in Asia.
Financial turmoil in Asia and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy.
Any worldwide financial instability mayause increased volatility in the Indian financial markets and,
directly or indirectly, adversely affect the Indian economy and financial sector and its business.

Although economic conditions vary across markets, loss of investor confidence in one emerging
economy may cause increased volatility across other economies, including India. Financial instability
in other parts of the world could have a global influence and thereby impact the Indian economy.
Financial disruptions in the future could adversely cffeur business, prospects, financial condition

and results of operations. The global credit and equity markets have experienced substantial dislocations,
liquidity disruptions and market corrections.

There are concerns that a tightening of monetary ypaticemerging markets and some developed
markets will lead to a moderation in global growth. In response to such developments, legislators and
financial regulators in the United States and other jurisdictions, including India, have implemented a
number ofpolicy measures designed to add stability to the financial markets. However, the overall long
term impact of these and other legislative and regulatory efforts on the global financial markets is
uncertain, and they may not have had the intended stabilefiegts. Any significant financial
disruption in the future could have an adverse effect on our cost of funding, loan portfolio, business,
future financial performance and the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Inflation in India could have an adversefect on our profitability and if significant, on our financial
condition.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future.
India has experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increasatianftan contribute to an increase

in interest rates and increased costs to our business, including increased costs of salaries, and other
expenses relevant to our business.

High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to adelyastimate or control

our costs. Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to pass
on to our customers, whether entirely or in part, and the same may adversely affect our business and
financial condition. Irparticular, we might not be able to reduce our costs or increase our rates to pass
the increase in costs on to our customers. In such case, our business, results of operations, cash flows
and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Further, the Gohas previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation rates, and it is
unclear whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian inflation
levels will not worsen in the future.

Foreign investors are subjedb foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our
ability to attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.

As an Indian Company, we are subject to exchange controls that regulate borioworgign
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currencies, including those specified under FEMA. Such regulatory restrictions limit our financing
sources for our projects under development and hence could constrain our ability to obtain financing on
competitive terms and refinance existinglébtedness. In addition, we cannot assure you that the
required approvals will be granted to us without onerous conditions, or at all. Limitations on foreign
debt may adversely affect our business growth, results of operations and financial condition.

Further, under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between
non residents and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the
pricing guidelines and reporting requiremeredfied by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are
sought to be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or
fall under any of the exceptions referred to above, then the prior approval of the RB2 vaéljldired.
Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into
foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance
certificate from the income tax #nority. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the
RBI or any other government agency can be obtained on any particular terrafi.or at

Any downgrading of |Indiab6s debt rating by an in
financing.
Any adverse revisions to Indiaés credit ratings

adverselyaffect our ability to raise additional overseasfinancing and the interestrates and other
commercial termatwhich suchadditionalfinancingis available.This could haveanadverseeffecton

our ability to fund our growth on favourable terms or at all, and consequently adversely affect our
business and financial performance and the price of our E§uéayes.

Changing laws, rules ad regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax
laws, may adversely affect our business, prospects and results of operations.

The regulatoryandpolicy environmentin which we operateis evolving and subjectto change Such

changes may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects, to the extent that we are
unable to suitably respond to and comply with any such changes in applicable law and policy. For
example, the Government of India implemented a compsedemational goods and services tax

( @STo ) r e gi mefromvduly h 20&7ftHatecombinedmultiple taxesandleviesby the Central

andState Governmentato a unified tax structure.

Our business and financial performance could be adversely affbgt@any unexpected or onerous
requirements or regulations resulting from the introductionG&T or any changes in laws or
interpretation oéxistinglaws,or thepromulgatiorof newlaws,rulesandregulationgelatingto GST,as

it isimplemented. The @&ernment has enacted the GAAR which have come into effect from April 1,
2017.

The Government of India has announced the union budget for Fiscal 2021 and the Ministry of Finance
has noti fied t hdinaRde Aanc eo nAcMa,r czh0 22070, dssenOr@clived pur s L
from the President, and the Finance Act will come into operation with effect from July 1, 2020 There is

no certainty on the impact that the Finance Act may have on our business and operations or on the
industry in which we operate. Wannot predict whether any amendments made pursuant to the Finance

Act would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Unfavourableehanges in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of fews, rules and

regulations including foreign investment and stamp duty laws governing our business and operations
could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws and may require us to apply for
additional approvals. For instance, thep&me Court of India has, in a decision clarified the
components of basic wages, which neeldgoonsideredby companieswhile making providentfund
paymentsOur Companyhasnot maderelevant provisions for the same, as on date. Any such decisions

in future or any further changes in interpretation of laws may have an impact on our results of operations.
Further, a draft of the BiHdsomas Da¢m Pnotedudc o®c
Sabha on December 11, 2019, which is currentigdheeferred to a joint parliamentary committee by

the Parliament. We may incur increased costs and other buedatisgto compliancewith suchnew
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requirementswhichmayalsorequiresignificantmanagement time and other resources, and any failure
to comply may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects.

Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or change in,
governing law, regulation or policy, including by reason of an absencea, lamited body, of
administrative ojudicial precedenimaybetime consumingaswell ascostlyfor usto resolveandmay
impact theviability of our current businesses or restrict our ability to grow our businessesfirutie

The occurrence of natual or manmade disasters could adversely affect our results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition. Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence
could adversely affect the financial markets and our business.

The occurence of natural disasters, including cyclones, storms, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis,
tornadoes, firegxplosionspandemialiseaseand manmadedisastersincluding actsof terrorismand

military actions, could adversely affect our results of operatioash flows or financial condition. In
addition, any deterioration in international relations, especially between India and its neighbouring
countries, may result in investor concern regarding regional stability which could adversely affect the
price of he Equity Shares. In addition, India has witnessed local civil disturbances in recent years and
it is possible that future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic or political events in India
could have an adverse effect on business.

Sweh incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a
higher degree of risk and could have an adverse effect on our business and the market price of the Equity
Shares.

We are subject to regulatory, economi@csal and political uncertainties and other factors beyond
our control.

We are incorporated in India and we conduct our corporate affairs and our business in India.
Consequently, our business, operations, financial performance will be affected by iraézsst
government policies, taxation, social and ethnic instability and other political and economic
developments affecting India.

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations may include:

1 any exchange rateuttuations, the imposition of currency controls and restrictions on the right
to convert or repatriate currency or export assets;
| any scarcity of credit or other financing in India, resulting in an adverse effect on economic

conditions in India and scargibf financing for our expansions;

prevailing income conditions among Indian customers and Indian corporations;

epidemic or any other public health in India or in countries in the region or globally, including

i n | ndi adighboningcountries; s

hostle or war like situations with the neighboring countries;

macroeconomic factors and central bank regulation, including in relation to interest rates

movements which may in turn adversely impact our access to capital and increase our borrowing

costs;

decline in India's foreign exchange reserves which may affect liquidity in the Indian economy;

downgrading of I ndiab6s sovereign debt rating

difficulty in developing any necessary partnerships with local businesses on commercially

acceptale terms and/or a timely basis.

1 Any slowdown or perceived slowdown in the Indian economy, or in specific sectors of the
Indian economy or certain regions in India, could adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition and grece of the Equity Shares.
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Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets.

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other
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countries, particularly eerging market countries in Asia. Although economic conditions are different
in each country, investorsé reactions to devel
securities of companies in other countries, including India. A loss of invastéidence in the financial
systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets and,
indirectly, in the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability could also have a
negative impact on the Indiatonomy. Financial disruptions may occur agail could harm our
business, our future financial performance and the prices of the Biates.

The recent outbreak of Novel Coronavirus has significantly affected financial markets around the world.
Any other global economic developments or the perception that any of them could occur may continue
to have an adverse effect on global economic conditions and the stability of global financial markets,
and may significantly reduce global market liquidity aedtrict the ability of key market participants

to operate in certain financial markets. Any of these factors could depress economic activity and restrict
our access to capitakhich couldhaveanadverseffectonour businessfinancialconditionandreaults

of operationsand reducehe price of our Equity SharesAny financialdisruptioncouldhaveanadverse
effectonourb usi ness, future financi al performance,
Shares.
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SECTION 1l T INTRODUCTION
THE | SSUE

This Issue has been authorised through a resolution passed by our Board at its meetingdimigaon 6, 2021
andpursuant to Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Batther, the Issue of equity shares on right basis to the
existing shareholders uadthis Rights Issue has been approved by the shareholders of the company through
Postal Ballot held on March 14, 20Zhe following is a summary of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction
titledl7f8Ter ms

with and is qualified entirely by, the information detailed i t h e

of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Particulars
Equity Shares proposed to be issued
Rights Entitlement

Fractional Entitlement

Record Date
Face value per Equity Shares

Issue Price per Rights Equity Shares
IssueSize
Dividend

Equity Shares issued, subscribed and
paid up prior to the Issue

Equity Sharessubscribedand paid-up
after the Issue (assumindull
subscription for and allotment of the
Rights Entitlement)

Equity Shares outstanding after the
Issue (assuming full subscription for
and Allotment of the Rights
Entitlement)

Money payable at the time of
Application

Scrip Details

Use of Issue Proceeds

Terms of the Issue

Pl ease refer

Issue Shedule

chapter

Details of Equity Shares
Up to[ OHquity Shares
[ 6Hquity Share for esry[ Ofllly paid-up Equity Share(s) he
on the Record Date
[ 6]
[ 6]

1

[ OperEquity Share(including a premiumof [ Oper Equity
Share)
| ssue not498Xaklkese di ng

#To be adjusted as per the Rights Entitlement ratio
Such dividend as may be declared by our Board anc
shareholders, as per applicable law
66,34,95,495 Equity Shares. For details, 'Seapital Structuré
beginning on pagé5 of this Draft Letter of Offer
[ & Equity Shares

#Assuming full subscription

ISIN: INE161L01027

BSE: 542655

NSE: VIKASMCORP

For details pl eas e Objetta the I$sd
beginningon page47 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

For details please refer to the chapterlti eférmsiof the Issd
beginningon pagel 72 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

tTermg olfitee Issdgagmmireyan pagedl 42 of thid Drdift Letter of Offer.

Thesubscriptiorwill openuponthecommencemertdf thebankinghoursandwill closeuponthecloseof banking

hours on the dates mentionleelow:

Event
Issue Opening Date

Last Date for On Market Renunciation of Rights [

Issue Closing Date

Indicative Date

[

O« O¢ O«

[
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated "#kshatha Management Consultafrivate Limited"on November 9, 1995

as a private limited company under the Companies Act, 1956 and was granted the certificate of incolpgoration
the Registrar of Companiellational Capital Territoryf Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi. Subsequently, the
name of our Company was changed\ishathaServices Private Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation
consequent upon change of name gated by the Registrar of Companilstional Capital TerritonDelhi

and Haryana at New Delhi on May 29, 2001. Thereafter, on December 29, 2008, vide a fresh certificate of
incorporation granted by the Registrar of Compamietional Capital Territorypelhi and Haryana at New Delhi,

the name of the Company was changed to Moonlite Technochem Private Limited.

Our Company was then converted into a public limited company upon the receipt of approval from the Central
Government and changed its name to Mid@rTechnochem Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation
consequent upon change of name was granted by the Registrar of Comnigatice®l Capital Territonpelhi

and Haryana at New Delhi on November 1, 2016. Subsequent to the conversion, oanZaggn changed its

name to Vikas Multicorp Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name was
granted by the Registrar of Companilgtional Capital TerritoryDelhi and Haryana at New Delhi on January

24, 2017.

Pursuanto the order of the National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench, New Delhi dated October 31, 2018
approving the Scheme of Arrangement, the 6Recycl ed
Ecotech Limited6é was dhelimtedgaddacqtinec by ouv Chmpany. Eucsoanteo
completion of said demerger, the equity shares of the Company were liskéayd®, 2019at the NSE and the

BSE.

The name of our Company has again changed to Vikas Lifecare Limited and a fresh teedifinaorporation
datedApril 9, 2021was issued under the seal of Registrar of Companies, Delhi.

Registered and Corporate Office, CIN and registration number of our Company
G-1, 34/1,

East Punjabi Bagh,

Delhii 110026

Telephone 011-40450110

Website www.vikaslifecarelimited.com

Corporate Identity Number: L25111DL1995PLC073719

Registration Number: 073719

E-mail: info@vikadifecarelimitedcom

Address of the RoC

Our Company is registered with the RB€Hi, which is situated at the following address:
Registrar of Companies

4th Floor, IFCI Tower

61, Nehru Place

New Delhi- 110019

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Ms. Rashika Gupta

Vikas Apartments, &, 34/1 East

Punjabi Bagh New Delh110026, hdia
Telephone011-40450110

E-mail: cs@vikaslifecarelimited.com

Board of Directors of our Company

Set forth below are the details of our Board of Directors as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer:

40


mailto:info@vikasmulticorp.com
mailto:cs@vikaslifecarelimited.com

Name Age
Ms. Richa Sharma 31

Designation
Chairman
Independent Director

Address
D-2/32, Street No. 5, Mahavir
Enclave, New Delhi 110045

Mr. Vivek Garg 46 Managing Director ~ House no. 10, Road No. 4, East
Punjabi Bagh, Punjabi Bagh, We
Delhi, Delhi 110026
Mr. Vikas Garg 47 Non-Executive- House no. 7, Road No. 41, Wes
Non-Independent Punjabi Bagh, Punjabi Bagh,
Director West Delhi, Delhi 110026
Mr. Vijay Kumar 52 Executive Director House No. 1075, Sector 10,
Sharma Chief Executive Housing Board Faridabad, Secta
Officer - 7, Faridabad, Haryanal21006
Ms. Meena Bansal 31 Non-Executive- House No. 617, Near Dayal
Independent Director Market, Alipur, North West
Delhi, Delhi- 110036
Mr. Pankaj Kumar 32 Non-Executive- D-40, D Block, Raja Puri, Delhi
Gupta Independent Director 110059

DIN

08709599

00255443

00255413

08721833

08400953

07003962

Fordetailedprofile of our Directors,pleaseeferto the chaptettitied AOur Managemeritbeginningon page73 of

this Drat Letter ofOffer.

Chief Financial Officer

Chandan Kumaisthe ChiefFinancialOfficer of our CompanyHis contactetailsaresetforth hereunder.

G-1, 34/1,

East Punjabi Bagh,

DelhiT 110026

Telephone +91 97111 79715
E-mail: cfo@vikaslifecarelimied.com

Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue of our Company:
Registrar to the Issue

Alankit Assignments Limited

2E/21, Jhandewalan Extension,

New Delhi110055

Telephone 011- 42541234, 23541234

Facsimile 011- 23552001

E-mail: info@alankit.com rta@alankit.com
Website www.alankit.com

Contact person:Mr. Vijay Pratap Singh

Investor grievanceemail id: vijaypsl@alankit.com
SEBI Registration No: INR000002532

Lead Managers to the Issue

Mark Cor porate Advisors Private Limited

404/1, The Summit Business Bay, Sant Janabai Road (Service Lane),
Off W. E. Highway, Vile ParleEast), Mumba400057.
Telephone#91-22-2612 3207/08

E-mail id: info@markcorporatedvisors.com

InvestorGrievances-mail id:
investorgrievance @ markcorpogaivisors.com

Contact PersonMr. Manish Gaur

Website www.markcorporateadvisors.com

SEBI registration number: INM000012128
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Legal Advisor to the Issue

Rajani Associates, Solicitors

204-207, KrishnaChambers

59, New Marine Lines

Mumbaii 400020

Telephone: +91 (22) 4096 1000

E-mail id: sangeeta@rajaniassociates.net
Contact Person: Ms. Sangeeta Lakhi

Statutory and Peer Review Auditor of our Company:

M/s Goyal & Nagpal & Co, Chartered Accountants
20-A Street No.6

Dheeraj ViharKarala

New Delhi110085

Telephone 09811952775

Email: goyalnagpalol@gmail.com

Contact Person VirenderNagpal

Membership No.: 416004

Firm Registration No.: 018289C

Peer Reviav Certificate No.: 012761

Bankers to the Issue/ Refund Bank
[ 6]

Designated Intermediaries
SelfCertified Syndicate Banks

Thelist of banksthathavebeemotified by SEBIto actasSCSBdor the ASBA processs providedatthewebsite

of the SEBI https:/www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=ated updated from

time to time. For details on Designhated Branches of SG&8Bacting the Application Forms, refer to the website

of the SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=9as Allotment, the
amountvill be unblocked and the account will be debited only to the extent required to pay for the Rights Equity
Shares Allotted.

Inter -se Allocation of Responsibilities

The Company has appointbtark Corporate Advisors Private Limitess solenerchant bankeo thelssue and
hence there is no intese allocation of responsibilities.

Investor grievances

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for atssyeé postssue related
matters such as nerceipt of Letters of Allotment/ sharcertificates/ demat credit/ Refund Orders, etc.

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre
Issue or postssue related matters. All grievances relating to the ASBA processMAR may beaddressed to

the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSB (in case of ASBA process), giving full details such as name,
address of the Applicant, contact number(sinal address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or demat
account, number ofduity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of ASBA process) or amount debited (in
case of RWAP process), ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSB where the Application
Forms, or the plain paper application, as the case may bsuvastted by the Investors along with a photocopy

of the acknowledgement slip (in case of ASBA process), and copy ofttimewledgemer(in case of RWVAP

process). For details on the ASBA process atMRP p r o c €esns pfthe lssele e g i pagéli2g o n
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of this Draft Letter of Offer

Credit Rating

As this is an Issue of Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.

Debenture Trustees

As the Issue is of Equity Shares, the appointment of Debenture trustees fuieie
Monitoring Agency

As the net proceeds of the | ssue wil/l be | ess than
required that a monitoring agency be appointed by our Company.

Filing

SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of CapitdDeatbsure Requirements) (Fourth
Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per which the
threshold of filing of Draft Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the
rightsissuesizeunderRegulatior3 (b) of the SEBIICDR Regulation$asbeenincreasedrom Rupeegencrores

to Rupees fifty crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, this Draft Letter of Offer will be
filed with the StockExchangesandnotwith SEBI. However the Letterof Offer will be submittedvith SEBI for
information and dissemination and will be filed with the StBgkhanges.

Changes in Auditors during the last three years

There has been no change in the statutory auditorg @@mpany during the three years immediately preceding
the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Issue Schedule

Last Date for credit of Rights Entitlements [ 0]
Issue Opening Date [ 0]
Last date for On Market Renunciation of Rights [ 0]
Entitlements #

Issue Closing Date* [ ©
Finalization of Basis of Allotment (on or about) [ O
Date of Allotment (on or about) [ O
Date of credit (on or about) [ P
Date of listing (on or about) [ O

# Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation throughaidét transfer is
completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees
on or prior to the Issue Closirgate.

Our Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may
determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue
Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue
ClosingDate.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, have
not provided the details their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to provide
their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue
Closing Datej.e., [ 0] t o e n ab | teEnttlénentscby wag of transbef fromn theederRat sgdpense
escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the Issue Closieg Dafed | .
Investors are advised to ensure that the Application Forms are submitted on orheckssad Closing Date. Our
Company, the Lead Managers or the Registrar will not be liable for any loss on accountsabmission of
Application Forms on or before the Issue Closing Date. Further, it is also encouraged that the applications are
submittedwell in advance before Issue Closing Date, due to prevailing C&l@lBelated conditions. For details
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on submitting Ap gérmscoathe Issue Précess af snaking an éApplication in thesue
beginning on pader2of this Draft Letter of Offer

The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such
respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registravatlankit.comafter keying in their
respective details along with other securithrmsontr ol
of the IssueCredit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Sharehdldgiiering on page

172 of this Draft Letter of Offer

Pleasaotethatif no Applicationis madeby the Eligible Equity Shareholdersf RightsEntitlementson or before
IssueClosing Date, such Rights Entitlements shall get ld@s®d shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing
Date. No Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements
were purchased from market and purchaser will lose the premium paid to acquire the Ritbiadfs. Persons

who are credited the Rights Entitlements are required to make an Application to apply for Equity Shares offered
under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares offered Lesder

Minimum Subscription

In accordance with Regation 86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, for this Issue the minimumaaiption which

is required to be achieved is of at least 90% of the IsigegeOur Company does not falhderthe exemption to
Regulation 86(1) which has been inserted by the Secudtid Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2020.

If our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of at3€&sf the Issueize or the subscription
level falls belowd0%, afer the Issue Closing Date on accoohtheques being returned unpaid or withdrawal of
applications, our Compegy shall refund the entire subscription amount received wihilays from the Issue
Closing Date. If there is delay in making refunds beyond qsfod as prescribed by applicable laws, our
Company will pay interest for the delayed period at rates pbestunder applicable laws. The above is subject
to the terms mentioned und@ssue Related Informatidrbeginningon pagel72 Draft Letter of Offer

Appraising Entity

Noneof the purposedor which the Net Proceedsireproposedo be utilized havebeenappraisedy anybanks
or financial institutionor anyother independeratgency.

Underwriting
This Issueis notunderwrittenandour Companyhasnot enterednto any underwritingarrangement

44


http://www.alankit.com/

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer and after giving effect t
the Issue is set forthelow:

S. Particulars Amount (in L adath)s

No.
Aggregate value Aggregate value

at nominal value at IssuePrice

A.  Authorised Share Capital

100,00,00,00Equi ty Shar es leath 10,000.00 NA
B. Issued, Subscribed and PaiUp Share Captal before the Issue

66, 34,95, 495 Equity Sha 6,634.95 NA
C.  Present Issue in terms of thiDraft Letter of Offer (1)

Uptol] 6Bqui ty Sheackes of [ © [ 6]
D. Issued, Subscribed and PaidJp Share Captal after

the Issue

[ 6] Equity Shares of f a [ ©
E. Securities Premium Account

Before the Issue 1,063.12

After the Issu@ [ &

DThe present Issue has been authorised by the Board of Directors vide a resolutesh gtass meeting held

on February 06 2021 Further, the Issue of equity shares on right basis to the existing shareholders under this
Rights Issue has been approved by the shareholders of the company through Postal Ballot held on March 14,
2021.

AThe Eyjuity Share Capital after the Issue includes the full value of the Rights Equity Shares allottddsnahe
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NOTES TO CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter and Promoter Group in thelssue:

Our Promoter and Promoterr@iip have undertaken to subscribe, jointly and/ or severally to the full
extent oftheir Rights Entitlemenandsubscribeo the full extentof anyRights Entitlementhatmaybe
renounced in their favour by any other Promoter or member(s) of the Prdsmnotgy of our Company.
Such subscriptiofor Equity Sharesoverandabovetheir RightsEntitlement;if allotted,mayresultin an
increase irtheir percentageshareholdingAny suchacquisitionof additional Rights Equity Sharess
exemptin terms of Reguléon 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulations as conditions mentioned therein
have been fulfillednd shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company in
accordance with provisions of the TakeoRegulations.

The additional subscrin by the promoters shall be made subject to such additional subscription not
resulting in the minimum public shareholding of the issuer falling below the level prescribed in
Regulation 38f the LODR/ SCRR.Our Companyis in compliancewith Regulation38 of the SEBI

Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements
pursuant to théssue.

The exrights price of the Rights Equity Shares as per Regulation 10@){b¢ Takeover Regulations
is [ 6] pskare. equi ty

Shareholding Pattern of our Company as per the last filing with the Stock Exchanges in compliance
with the provisions of the SEBI Listingegulations:

0} The shareholding pattern of our Company, asMamch 31, 2021 can be accessed on the
website otthe BSEhere and the NSHere
(ii) The statement showing holding of Equity Shares of persons belonging to the category

APromoter and Promoter Gr-io pledge of anccehcurdbrancg t h e
thereon, as oMarch 31, 202]1can be accessed on thebsite of the BSEereand the NSE
here

(iii) The statement showing holding of securities (including Equity Shares, warrants, convertible
securities) of persons belonging to the cat
holding more than 1% of the &dtnumber of Equity Shares as Biarch 31, 2021as well as
details of sharewhich remain unclaimed for public can be accessed on the website of the
BSEhereand the NSkere

Details of shares lockeid, pledged, encumbrance by promoters and ptengroup:

The details of shares loe&in, pledged, encumbrance by Promoters and PromoteupgXan be
accessed on the website of the B&fFeand the NSkere
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE
Our Company intends to utilize the Net Proceeds from the Isazds the following objects:

1. Meeting Capital Expenditure for Food Preservatod Storagénit;

2. Meeting Working Capital Requirements

3. Adjustment of Uhsecured bans against theriitlement ofthe Promotes;
4. Prepaymendf Loans availed by our Company; and

5. General Corporate Purposes.

Themain objectclause 0ofMOA of our Company enables us to undertake the existing activities and the activities
for which the funds are being raised throtigé Issue. Further, we confirm that the activities which we have been
carrying out till date are in accordance with thgectclause of outMOA.

IssueProceeds

The details ofssueProceeds are set forth in the following table:

Particulars Amount (in lakhs)
Gross Poceeds from the Isste 4,98000*
Less:Adjustment of Uhsecured bans against therfiittement ofthe Promotes 924.00
Less: Estimatedssue related ¥penses 78.00
Net Proceeddrom the Issue 3.97800

# assumingdull subscription and allotment
*The issue size will not exc€edd80 lakhs. If there is any reduction in the amount on account of or at the time of finalisation of issue price
andRights Entitlements Ratithe me will beadjustedagainstGeneral Corporate Purpose

One of our PromoteShareholder namely Mr. Vikas Galwas lent an unsecured loan to our company
aggr eg ab2d482gakhs.oMr. Vikas Garg has requested our Company to adjust the entire outstanding
unsecur ed | oa m2433ylakhsyanstthis entitienteiat, including additional subscriptibaniy

vide letter dateddpril 19, 2021 The aforesaid loan has been used for the augmentatiexisting working
capital requirements as certified by Statutory Auditlds Goyal Nagpal & Co.yide certificate dged April 27,

2021 The Rights Issue Commett in its meeting held ofpril 30, 2021has accepted his request for conversion

of unsecured loan aggregating @24 lakhs into equity shares.

Requirement of Fundsof the Net Proceeds

The intended use of théet Foceeds of the Issusy our Companys set forth in the following table

S. No. Particulars Total estimated amount
to be utilised (inlakhs)

1. Meeting Gipital Expenditure for Food Preservatemd Storagénit 147000

2. Meeting Working Capital Requirements 1500.00

4. Prepaymenbf Loans availed by our Company 3638.00

5. General Corporate Purposes 640.00

Total 3978.00

Means of Finance

Our Company proposes to meet the entire requirement of funds for the objects of the Issue from the Net Proceeds.
Accordingly, our Comany confirms that there is no requirement to make firm arrangements of finance through
verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance for the aforesaid object, excluding the
amount to be raised from the Issue.

The fund requiremerdnd deployment are based on our management estimates and has not been appraised by

any bank or financial institution or any other independent agencies. The fund requirement above is based on our
current business plaand our Company may have to revise ghestimates from time to time on account of
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various factors beyond our control, such as market conditions, competitive environment and interest or exchange
rate fluctuations. Consequently, our Compaimegtfps fund
revision in the future at the discretion of our management

Details of the Objects of the Issue

The details in relation to objects of the Issue are set forth herein below.

1. Meeting Capital Expenditure foFood Preservation and Storadgénit
As part of our growth strategy our Compamy 0 p 0 s e s 147@akhs of thé NesReoceettsward
meeting capital expenditure for food preservatmad Storagénit and the detailsre set forth herein
below

S. Nature of Expenses Approx Remarks, if any

No. Amount

in Lakh

1 Agricultural Land(24Kanal or 3 Acre or 12000Mtrs ot 1230.00 Agreement of sale dated April 2(
of one 4th share in undivided property at Kha 2021 entered into by armbtween
No0.66/3(80),4(80),5(80),6(80),7(80),8(80),13(8 Mr. Jai Hind KumarGupta S/e
0),14(80),15(80),16(80),17(80),18(80). AND 11 Mr. Chandu Lal Gupta and ou
share of 8K14\2(2-0),15(80),66\23(8-0),24(80),25(8 Company (AVi k
0),,874\2(8-0),3(80), = all total land measuring 82 kan Limitedo).

,1,e.10.25 acres =41000 mtrs , situated at villsigenoli
,tehsil Rai ,Distt. Sonipat, Haryana)

2 Settingup of temporaryas well apermanenstructure  210.00 An averageexpenses of Rs 3
covering 7 Acres of Lanfbr preservation and storing ¢ lakh per acre is estimated
different kind of food grains arghplings

3 Construction of Col&torageto preserve Agri produce 25.00

4 Contingencies 35.00 This expenses is on account

various kind ofEquipmentused
in storage and preservation lik
Fork lift, Weighing Machine
Total 1500.00
Less Advance paid/to be paid forAgriculture Land 30.00
Net Total 147000

Our Promoters, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel do not have any interesiindipeirchased fdfood
Preservatiorand StoragéJnit. Theapprox. amount given urdpoint no 2,3 and4 above are estimated by the
management of the compaawd the quotatiofrom the vendor/supplier agetto beobtained.

Storage, Preservation and Processing of Farm Produce is the process of treating and handling food to stop or
greatly slow down spoilage (loss of quality, edibility or nutritive value) caused or accelerated byongianisms.

Some methods, however, use benign bacteria, yeasts or fungi to add specific qualities and to preserve food.
Maintaining or creating nutritiohavalue, texture and flavor is important in preserving its value as food. This is
culturally dependent, as what qualifies as food fit for humans in one culture may not qualify in another culture.
Preservation usually involves preventing the growth of bagctéungi and other microrganisms as well as

retarding the oxidation of fats which causes rancidity. It also includes process to inhibit natural ageing and
discoloration that can occur during food preparation such as the enzymatic browning reaqtiolesnadoich

causes browning when apples are cut. Some preservation methods require the food to be sealed after treatment to
prevent recontamination with microbes; others such as drying, allow food to be stored without any special
containment for long peras. Food preservation refers to any one of a number of techniques used to prevent food
from spoiling. All food begin to spoil as soon as they are harvested or slaughtered, some spoiling is caused by
such micreorganisms as bacterial and mold. Other speilagults from chemical changes within the food itself

due to natural process such as enzyme action or oxidation. For thousands of years humans have used methods of
preserving food, so that they can store food to eat later.
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The Principles Underlying of Food Preservation
The art of food preservation is based on the following reasons:

i. Destruction of micreorganisms

ii. Prevention of their entry into the food
iii. Arrest or prevention of purely chemical reactions
iv. Arrest of the action of food enzymes

Reasons ér Preserving Food
Foods are preserved for the following reasons:

i. To prevent spoilage
ii. To avoid wastage, especially when they are in season
iii. To prolong its shelf life
iv. To allow for the use of foods during the -gason
V. To eliminate the purchase of foodben they are most expensive

Preparation of Food for Preservation

It must be emphasized that only wholesome foods should be preserved as preservation methods will not improve
the quality of the food. We should therefore ensure that any food to beveksenst be of good quality. Also,

to achieve the maximum effect of any preservation method employed, the food must be prepared accordingly.
Some of the preparation that should be embarked upon before preserving our foods is:

i. Clean the food thoroughly

ii. Cut the food into desired sizes
iii. Ensure that the food is of good quality i.e. wholesomeness of the food
iv. Package food appropriately and label if needed

2. Meeting Working Capital Requirements

Our business is predominantly working capital intensive. \WWad fthe majority of our wding capital
requirements in the ordinary course of our business from our intecoalads. We operate in a highly
competitive and dynamic market conditions and may have to revisstnmates from time to time @tcount
of external circumstances, business or strategy, foreseeabletwipo Consequently, our funegquirements
may also change.

The details of Working Capital Requirement (on a standalone basis), is as under:
(Amounts idakhg

Sr. Particulars As at As at As at
No. 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2022
(Restated (Unaudited) (Projected)
A Current assets
(a) Inventories 3033 2800 5365
(b) Trade receivables 11,624 5682 7000
(c) Cash andbank balances 22 57 100
(e) Otherassets 2014 1150 1375
Sub-Total 16692 9689 13840
B Current liabilities
(a) Borrowings 3505 2540 3500
(b) Trade payables 12229 4000 5000
(c) Other current liabilities 3317 1259 1350
Sub-Total 19051 7799 9850
C Net Working Capital ( A - B) -2359 1890 3990
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D  Working Capital Gap - 4249 2100
Funding Pattern

Funding throughnternal 3325 600
Accruals /Other Borrowings
Funding throt 924 )
Rights Entitlement already
brought in

1500

Working Capital funding -
through Rights Issue
proceeds to be utilized

Notes onWorking Capital for the FY 2021-22

Debtors Holding daydecreased from 15#aysin FY 20202021 to 94 days iRY 20212022
Debtors  onaccount ofncreased sales gbodsand better credit Management policies ensuring tin
recovery of dues

Creditors payments daykecreased from 114 days in FY 202021 to73 days for FY2021-
2022 due to reduction in credit period

Inventory  Inventory dayslecreased from 79 days in FY 202021 to75 days for FY2021-2022.

Creditors

3. Prepaymenbf Loans availed by ouCompany

Our Company has taken loan from Tata Capital Housing Finance Limitedua@bmpany intends to utilize
368lakhsout of the Net Proceedstards prepayment of loan

The selection of borrowing proposed to be repaid and / epgickset forth below shall be basewd various

factors, including (i) cost of the borrowings to our Company, imguépplicable interest rates; (ii) any
conditions attached to the borrowings restricting our ability to prepay the borrowings and time taken to fulfil, or
obtain waivers for fulfilment of, such requirements, (iii) receipt of consents for prepayroentthe respective

lender (iv) terms and cdatitions of any such consent and waig},provisions of any law, rules,
regulations governing such borrowings, and (vi) other commercial considerations including, among others, the
amount of thdoan outstanding and the remaining tenor of the loan.

The prepayment or repayment will help reduce our outstanding indebtedness asehdebitg costs, assist us in
maintaining a favourable debt to equity ratio and enable utilisation of our intearabés for further investment

in business growth and expansion. In addition, we believe that the leverage capacity of oury@alripgrove

our ability to raise further resources in the future to fund potential business development opportuniti@ssand p
to grow and expand our busises

The following table provides detail of the loans availed by our Company, which are proposed to @ repaid
from the Net Proceeds:

No. Name of Entity Outstanding Nature of  Purpose of Interest Proposed
Unsecured Borrowing availing rate(%) repayment or
Loans as on Loans p.a. prepayment
March 05, 2021 from Net
(in Rs. lakhs) Proceeds ( in
lakhs)

1. M/s Tata Capital 373.21 Home Nor+ 10.7%(variable) 365.18*
Housing Loan Residential (Rounded Off to Rs
Finance Limited Property 365.00lakhs)

Purchase

*The position as on 30/06/2021

Note: The abovementioned property situated at Shop N, 41Floor, Office No. 1001, 10th Floor, Express
Zone, Pathanwadi, Western Express, Village Mal&hst (Dindoshi), Goregaoimaharashtra 400097 and the
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company is earning rental income of R¥),64,373.a.
4. General Corporate Purpose

We intend taleploy 640Lakhsfrom grossproceeds of the Rights Issue towards general corporate purposes. The
general corporate purposes for which our Company proposes to utilize issue proceeds includeditittest to
entering into brand building exercises and streggitty our marketing capabilities, generahintenance,
partnerships, ti@ips orcontingencies in ordinary course of business which may not be foreseen or any other
purposes aapproved by our Board of Directors. Our management, in accordance with thespaliour Board,

will have flexibility in utilizing the proceeds earmarked for general corporate purposes. However, not more than
25% of thegrossproceeds of the issue would be deployed for the General Corporate purposes.

5. Expenses for the issue

The Issue related expenses consist of fees payable to the Lead MdregprCounsel, processing feethe
SCSBs, Registrars to the Issue, printing and stationery expextsertising expenses andaher incidental and
miscellaneous expenses for listitige Rights EquityShares on the Stock Exchang@sir Company will need
approximately 78lakhs towards these expessa breakup of the same is dsllows:

(T in | akh:t

Activity Estimated % of Total As a %

Expense Expenses of Issue

size
Fees payable to the intermediaries (including Lt o] [ 6] [ 6]
Manager fees, Legal Counsel fees, selling comuoniss
registrar fees and expenses)
Advertising, Printing, stationery and distribution [ 6] [ 6] [ 6]
Expenses
Statutory and other Miscellaneous Expenses [ 6] [ 6] [ 6]
Total 78.00 [ 5] [ 8]
Appraisal

None of the Objects of the Issue have been égatdy any bank or financial institution.

Schedule of Implementation and Deployment of Funds

As estimated by our management, the entire proceeds received from the issue would be writigeey
2021:22.

Deployment of Funds towards the Objects of th Issue

We have incurred 3 8 . 4 Ouptb&pkl B7s 2021towards the Objects of the Issue which has been certified by
Statutory AuditoM/s Goyal Nagpal & Covide theircertificate dated\pril 27, 2021 The said amount has been

met by the Company from its own resources andahgeswill be adjusted against the issue proceeds.

Bridge Financing Facilities

Our Company has not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as on the date of this Draft

Letter of Offer, which are proposed to be repaid from the IssoeeBds.

Monitoring of Utilization of Funds
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Since the proceeds from the Issue are less th@r000lakhs, in terms of Regulation 41(1) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for thisHesuever, as per SEBI

Listing Regulationthe Rights Issue Committee appointed by the Board would be mpgithe utilization of the
proceeds of the Issu&he Company will disclose the utilization of the Issue Proceeds under a separate head in
our balance sheet along with the relevant details, for all such amounts that have not been utilized. The Company
will indicate investments, if any, of unutilized Issue Proceeds in the Balance Sheet of the Company for the relevant
Financial Years subsequent to receipt of listing and trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges.

Pursuant to Clause 32 of the SEBI Listing Blagjon, the Company shall, on a quarterly badisclose to the

Audit Committee the uses and applications of the Issue Proceeds. In accordance with Ctaude FEBI

Listing Regulation, the Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchanges, on a quba®Hdy a statement on
material deviations, if any, in the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue from the objects of the Issue as stated
above. This information will also be published in newspapers simultaneously with the interim or annual financial
reallts after placing the same before the Audit Committee.

Interim Use of Proceeds
Our Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by our Board from time to time, will have fletdbility
deploy the Net Proceeds. Pending utilization of the Net Bdsctor the purp@s described above, o@ompany

intends to deposit the Net Proceeds only with scheduled conaineaciks included in the secoschedule of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 or make any such investazemay be allowed by SEBI frotime to time.

Interest of Promoters, Promoter Group and Directors, as applicable to the objects of the Issue

Our Promoters, Promoter Group and Directors do not have any interestOhjéuts of the Issue.
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENE FITS

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AND ITS
SHAREHOLDERS AS PER THE CERTIFICATE ISSUED BY STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE
COMPANY

The Board of Directors,

VIKAS LIFECARE LIMITED

( Formerly known as Vikas Multicorp Limited)
G-1 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh,

New Delhi110026 India

Dear Sirs,

Sub: Statement of possible special direct tax benef|
and its shareholders (fithe Statemento).

We hereby confirm that the enclosed statement sstie possible special direct tax benefits available to the
Company and the sharehol ders of thAeetoCompamayendedr frt
to time, presently in force in India. Several of these benefits are dependent on the Comipaeliareholders

fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of the Act. Hence, the ability of the Company or

its shareholders to derive the tax benefits is dependent upon fulfilling such conditions, which based on the business
imperatives, the Company may or may not chooselfib.

This statement is only intended to provide general information to the investors and hence is neither designed nor
intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individtuak of the tax consequences,

the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her own tax consultant with respect to the specific
tax implications arising out of their participation in the rights issue of equity shares of the Compianyapiy

in view of the fact that certain recently enacted legislation may not have a direct legal precedent or may have a
different interpretation on the benefits, which an investor can avail. Neither are we suggesting nor are we advising
the investora invest money based on this statement.

The contents of the enclosed statement are based on the information, explanations and representations obtained
from the Company and on the basis of their understanding of the business activities and operat®ns of th
Company. We do not express any opinion or gfexany assurance as to whether:

1. The Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future; or

2. The conditions prescribed for availing the benefits, where applicable have been/wowt be m

This statement is intended solely for information and for inclusion ilDthé Letter of Offer in relation to the

Issue of equity shares of the Company and is not to be used, circulated or referred to for any other purpose without
our prior writtenconsent. Our views are based on the existing provisions of law referred to earlier and its
interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time.

We shall not be liable to any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment exve gixtertt of fees
relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from bad faith or intentional
misconduct. We will not be liable to any other person in respect of this Statement.

For Goyal Nagpal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 018289C

CA Virender Nagpal

Partner

M No.: 416004

UDIN: 21416004AAAAFO1561
Date: April 27, 2021
Place:Delhi
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Statement of Special Tax Benefits available to the Company & its Shareholder under the Income Tax Act,
1961 andother Direct Tax Laws presently in force in India

Special Tax Benefits
l. Benefits available to the Company
There are no special tax benefits available to the Company.
Il. Benefits available to the Shareholders
There are no special tax benefits availabldnéshareholders for investing in the proposed right issue of

shares of the Company.

For Goyal Nagpal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 018289C

CA Virender Nagpal

Partner

M No.: 416004

UDIN: 21416004AAAAF0O1561

Date: April 27,2021
Place:Delhi
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SECTION IV T ABOUT THE COMPANY
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information contained in O6lndustry Overviewd i
Neither we, nor any other person connected with the Issue has independenty teisfinformation. Industry

sources and publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources
generally believed to be reliable, but that their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not
guaraneed and their reliability cannot be assured. Industry publications are also prepared based on information

as of specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect current trends.

Shareholdershould note that this is only a summary of the industwhilch we operate and does not contain all
information that should be considered before investing in the Equity Shares. Before deciding to invest in the Equity
Shares,shareholdersshould read this entire Letter of Offer, including the information in thetiees "Risk

Factors" and "Financial Informationbeginningon pagesl8 and 86, respectively. An investment in the Equity
Shares involves a high degree of risk. For a discussion of certain rigikanirectionwith an investment in the
Equity Shares, pl easebegpnngonhpgagel8secti on O6Ri sk Factors

FMCG
Introduction

Fastmovi ng consumer goods (FMCG) sector i serdomdcarads f o
accounting for 50% of FMCG sales in India. Growing awareness, easier access and changing lifestyles have been
the key growth drivers for the sector. The urban segment (accounts for a revenue share of around 55%) is the
largest contributor tdhie overall revenue generated by the FMCG sector in India. However, in the last few years,

the FMCG market has grown at a faster pace in rural India compared to urban Indiauri&emand rural

segments are growing at a rapid pace and FMCG products aéooB886 of the total rural spending.

I ndiads | argest fast moving consumer goods ( FMCG)
disinfectants, and personal hygiene products as they anticipate a surge in demand for such items amid the covid
19crisis.

In the last few weeks, FMCG companies have launched gadget disinfectants, vegetables cleaners, sanitizers,
immunity-boosting foods and have more disinfectants in the pipeline to capitadithe heightened demand for
such goods.

The food and bewyr ages i ndustry accounts for ~3% of I ndi ads
country, with more than 7.3 millioworkforces The nationwide lockdown set this industry on a downward spiral
with some predictions suggesting thatnearlyaquarfer al | restaurants may shut do

US$50 billion restaurant industry is set to l@aseUS$9 billion in 2020 according to the National Restaurant
Association of India (NRAI).

To offset these challenges and regain profitabilitg ifdustry has been adapting and innovating since the
lockdown was lifted. New service offerings and COVID hygiene protocols are emerging in the sector to gain
customer confidence and lift revenues.

~

Urban — Rural Industry Break-up Segment Wise Break-up of Revenue

i B Food and
Beverages

Healthcare

FY19 : u Urbam Rural FY19

SECTOR 5 s Pl
COMPOSITION 3

Figure 1: Sector Composition
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Investments/ Developmentaind Key Market Movements

The Government has allowed 100% Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in food processing anbisindleetail

and 51% in multbrand retail. This would bolster employment, supply chain and high visitaitityMCG brands
acros6 organizedretail markets thereby bolstering consumer spending and encouraging more product launches.
The sector witnessed healthy FDI inflows of US$ 17.8 billion from April 2000 to September 2020.

Some of the recent developmentshia FMCG sector are as follows:

I n November 2020, E ma mi Ltd. announced its entry in
range.

In December 2020, FreshToHome (FTH), which sells online fresh fish and meat, announced that it aims to more
than double its revenue over the next 12 months to Rs 1,500 crore, supported by {nidmesgransion,
including its¢TH Dailybservice.

In November 2020, NIVEA, by launching the first evec@mmerce readto-s hi p ki t , ' NI VEA CAF
collaborationwith Amazon India, has taken a step towards being more sustainable through its packaging.

In November 2020, Bahraim Investcorp stated it had invested in Xpressbees, an Indiatugtariogistics, as

part of a group of local and global investors. Witlore than 1,000 customers across sectors including e
commerce, pharmaceuticals, consumer goods, retail, manufacturing, electronics and consumer durables,
Xpresshees has presence in >2,000 cities and towns in India. The size of the investment wasseat. discl

I n November 2020, Tradelndia announced to conduct
geographical barriers and generate new opportunities in the manufacturing industry and MSME sector.

FMCG Market Size

The retail market in Indigs estimated to reach US$ 1.1 trillion by 2020 from US$ 840 billion in 2017, with
modern trade expected to grow at 20 25% per annum, which is likely to boost revenue of FMCG companies.
Revenue oFMCG sector reached Rs. 3.4 lakh crore (US$ 52.75 billion) in FY18 and is estimated to reach US$
103.7 billion in 2020. FMCG market is expected to grow-40% in 2020.

Rise in rural consumption will drive the FMCG market. It contributes around 36% tvédrall FMCG spending.

In the third quarter of FY20 in rural India, FMCG witnessed a dedlgi# growth recovery of 10.6% due to
various government initiatives (such as packaged staples and hygiene categories); high agricultural produce,
reverse migratin anda lower unemployment rate.

',Eﬁ;_‘:;f

2020E 2025F

MARKET

SIZE Trend point: FMCG is the 4th largest sector in the Indian economy and is expected to grow 9-10% in 2020

Note: E - Estimate, F - Foracast
Figure 2: Projected Growth in the FMCG Sector
Indian Industry Overview and Road Ahead
Rural consumption has increased, led by a combination of increasing income and higher aspiratioméreels. T

is an increased demand for branded products in rural India. The rural FMCG market in India is expected to grow
to US$ 220 billion by 2025 from US$ 23.6 billion in FY18.
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On the other hand, with the share of unorganized market in the FMCG sectgy;, thkirorganised sector growth
is expected to rise with increased level of brand consciousness, augmented by the growth in modern retail.

Another major factor propelling the demand for food services in India is the growing youth population, primarily
in urban regions. India has a large base of young consumers who form majority of the workforce, and due to time
constraints, barely get time for cooking.

Online portals are expected to play a key role for companies trying to enter the hinterlands. Irdeom=tibated

in a big way, facilitating a cheaper and more conve
40% of all FMCG consumption in India will be made online by 2020. The online FMCG market is forecast to
reach US$ 45 billion i2020 from US$ 20 billion in 2017.

It is estimated that India will gain US$ 15 billion a year by implementing GST. GST and demonetization are
expected to drive demand, both in the rural and urban areas, and economic growth in a structured manner in the
long term and improved performance of companies within the sector.

Government Initiatives

Some of the major initiatives taken by the Government to promote the FMCG sector in India are as follows:

i On November 11, 2020, Union Cabinet approved the produlitiked incentive (PLI) scheme in 10
key sectors (including electronics and white goc
and promote the O6Atmanirbhar Bharaté initiative.
i Developments in the packaged food sector will contribute to inedeasces for farmer and reduce the

high levels of waste. In order to provide support through the PLI scheme, unique proddcilitres
high-growth potential and capabilities to generate mediontargescale job8 have been established.

i The Government ofndia has approved 100% FDI in the cash and carry segment and intsiagte
retail along with 51% FDI in muHbrand retail.

i The Government has drafted a new Consumer Protection Bill with special emphasis on setting up an
extensive mechanism to ensurmgle, speedy, accessible, affordable and timely delivery of justice to
consumers.

i The Goods and Services Tax (GST) is beneficial for the FMCG industry as many of the FMCG products

such as soap, toothpaste and hair oil now come under the 18% tax brackstthgaprevious rate of
23-24%. Also, GST on food products and hygiene products have been reducéfotaitd 1218%
respectively.

i GST is expected to transform logistics in the FMCG sector into a modern and efficient model as all major
corporations areermodelling their operations into larger logistics and warehousing.

Reports

Fast moving consumer goods (FMCG) is the fourth largest sector in the Indian economy. There are three main
segments in the sector food and beverages, which accounts for 19settbr; healthcare, which accounts for
31% of the share; and household and personal care, which accounts for the remaining 50% share.

FMCG mar ket is expected to grow 5 6% in 2020. FMCGOH:«
grew 5% in tle quarter ending September 2019, supported by moderate inflation, increase in private consumption
and rural income.

Indian online grocery market is estimated to exceed sales of about Rs. 22,500 crore (US$ 3.19 billion) in 2020, a
significant jump of 76% er the previous year.

FMCG companies are looking to invest in energy efficient plants to benefit the society and lower cost in the long
term. Dabur had plans to invest Rs. 250 300 crore (US$ 38.79 46.55 million) in FY19 for capacity expansion and
possibé acquisitions in the domestic market. The sector withessed healthy FDI inflow of US$ 16.54 billion during
April 2000 June 2020. Investment intentions related to FMCG sector arising from paper pulp, sugar, fermentation,
food processing, vegetable oils armhaspati, soaps, cosmetics, and toiletries industries worth Rs. 19,846 crore
(US$ 2.84 billion) was implemented until December 2019.
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Growing awareness, easier access, and changing lifestyle are the key growth drivers for the consumer market. The
focus onagriculture, MSMEs, education, healthcare, infrastructure and tax rebate under Union Budget 2019 20
was expected to directly impact the FMCG sector. Initiatives undertaken to increase the disposable income in the
hands of common man, especially from raaas, will be beneficial for the sector.

(Source:Error! Hyperlink reference not valid. , Monitory Fund)
Impact of Covid-19 on FMCG sector & consumer behaviour

The novel coronavirus will be around for a while. It has established thadrifl our approach towards it will
never be the same again. Naturally, such a change impacts some businesses adversely while giving an impetus to
others.

In the immediate to medium term, there is a lot of changes in consumer behaviour, due to whichorp@es

will be forced to adapt their strategy for customer acquisition and retention. The composition of the consumption
basket has changed due to COVID and some of these changes will be more permanent than others. An increased
focus on health and hygiemwill become the norm. Demand in the discretionary categories is likely to come back
slowly but not immediately.

For the average consumer, we are seeing a surge in demand for products that enhance personal hygiene in and
around homes and workplaces. Rroid such as soaps, handwashes, sanitisers, disinfectants, wipes, masks, home
cleaning products such as floor cleaners, kitchen cleaners, toilet cleaners are seeing a surge in demand and this
trend is expected to continue into the future as cleanlinesByayieine are going to be the new mantras. FMCG
companies servicing these requirements are likely to do well. Similarly, companies which focus on food staples,
and convenience foods such as instant noodles, biscuits, frozen foods, flour, cooking ails nineta, and

nutrition are going to be in demand. Products that help in building immunity against illnesses are also in significant
demand from the consumers.

Having said that, some categories within the FMCG sector are likely to take a back sedtilier lawill be wise

for companies to shift their focus from nessential categories such as deodorants, fragrances, skincare and other
cosmetics, gourmet foods, etc. It will also be imperative to manage inventory better to avoid concerns surrounding
freshness and expiry of products.

Plastics and Polymers

Introduction

The Indian plastics industry made a promising beginning in 1957 with the production of polystyrene. Thereafter,
significant progress has been made, and the industry has grown andidi/eegiidly. The industry spans the
country and hosts more than 2,000 exporters. It employs about 4 million people and comprises more than 30,000
processing units, 880% of which are small and mediwsized enterprises.

1 InFY20, plastic and linoleum expdrom India stood at US$ 7.55 billion.

1 During April 2019 to January 2020, plastic export stood at US$ 7.045 billion with the highest
contribution from plastic raw material at US$ 2.91 billion, plastic sheets, films, and plates at US$ 1.22
billion and paclkging materials at US$ 722.47 million.

1 India exported plastics worth US$ 813 million in October 2020, and the export during April 2020 to
October 2020 was US$ 5.58 billion.

1 The total plastic and linoleum export during April 2020 to November 2020 wa<t198%illion and for
the month of November 2020, it was US$ 507.06 million.

1 The Indian plastics industry produces and export a wide range of raw materials;ptadtied extruded
goods, polyester films, moulded/ soft luggage items, writing instrumdagtigpwoven sacks and bags,
polyvinyl chloride (PVC), leather cloth and sheeting, packaging, consumer goods, sanitary fittings,
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electrical accessories, laboratory/ medical surgical ware, tarpaulins, laminates, fishnets, travel ware, and
others.

1 The Indianplastics industry offer excellent potential in terms of capacity, infrastructure, and skilled
manpower. It is supported by many polymer producers, plastic process machinery and mould
manufacturers in the country.

T Among the i ndust r yetagailabiidyjoforaw materiale in e dowtry. Thus,tplastic
processors do not have to depend on import. These raw materials, including polypropyledenkityh
polyethylene, lowdensity polyethylene, and PVC, are manufactured domestically.

Recent Devéopments

The Department of Chemicals and Petrochemicals has approved 10 Plastic Parks in the country, out of which 6
parks have been given final approval in the below states:

Assam (1 nos.)

Madhya Pradesh (2 nos.)
Odisha (1 nos.)

Tamil Nadu (1 nos.)
Jharthand (1 nos.)

=A =4 =4 -4 A

The Detailed Project Reports are under evaluation for two Plastic Park in Uttarakhand and Chhattisgarh
respectively and proposal for setting up of two new Plastic Parks are under process.

These Plastic Parks will help to achieve environmbnsaistainable growth and increase employment.
Plastics Export Promotion Council

The Plastics Export Promotion Council (PLEXCONCIL) is the apex Government body responsible for the
promotion of plastic export. PLEXCONCIL members comprise Kingedium/small-scale manufacturers and
exporters. The council supports exporters by participating in international trade fairs, exploring new markets,
organising buyerseller meets both in India and overseas, and engaging in various other promotion and need
basedactivities.

In FY20 (till January 2020), plastic exports stood at US$ 7.045 billion with the highest
contribution from plastic raw materials at US$ 2.91 billion; plastic sheets, films, and plates at US$
1.22 billion; and packaging materials at US$ 722.4million.

Recycling ¢ Plastic

1. Plastic Waste: A Global Concern

Plastic products have become an integral part of our daily life as a result of which the polymer is produced at a
massive scale worldwide. On an average, production of plastic globally £ts@eévillion tonnes per year. Its

broad range of application is in packaging films, wrapping materials, shopping and garbage bags, fluid containers,
clothing, toys, household and industrial products, and building materials.

It is estimated that approxately 70% of plastic packaging products are converted into plastic waste in a short
span. Approximately 9.4 million TPA plastic waste is generated in the country, which amounts toTZ 200

Of this, about 60% is recycled, most of it by the informal@edt/hile the recycling rate in India is considerably
higher than the global average of 20%, there is still over 9,400 tonnes of plastic waste which is either landfilled
or ends up polluting streams or groundwater resources. While some kinds of plastit dicompose at all,

others could take up to 450 years to break down. The figure captures per capita plastic consumption in FY 2014
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15.

Per Capita Plastic Consumption
in 2014-2015 (in kg)

Europe China Brazil India

Global Average: 28

Pl astic waste is I ndi ads and the worl doéds mosdl9 form
pandemic hamade matters worse: CSE

Centre for Science and Environmentds (CSE) new back
the backdrop of discussions at a webinar attended by key bureaucrats and experts

1 79 per cent of the plastic made in the Mtanters our land, water and environment as waste; some of it
also enters our bodies through the food chain, says the CSE analysis

f I'ndia has not yet acted on the Pr-usenplastivbi The st er 0
gover nment 0 sforauthabanchasaavibéen rescinded

T CSE offers an flflactionabl eod agendai calle forcbetterf r o n't
understanding of the characteristics of the product and the politics of recycling, segregation at source,
and a ban on plass that cannot be recycled, among other things

Consider the available statistics: A global material balance study on plastics points @St peatcentof the

total plastics produced in the world enters our environment as waste9 @afycentof thetotal plastic waste in

the world is recycled. A Central Pollution Control Board (CPCB) report (2®)&uts the total annual plastic

waste generation in India at a humung8t&million metric tonnes per year Even this data, frightening as it is,
mightbe an underesti mati on. While I ndiads plastic was
definitely growing. Richer states like Goa and Delhi produce as mugh gigms and 37 grams per capita per

day respectivelyi against a national avage o grams per capita per day

(Source:https://www.cseindia.ordPlastic Waste Management Issues, Solutions & Case Stivitesh 2019)

In accordance with the Plastic Waste Management Rules, 2018 (PWM, RQE3) based on information
submitted by 35 State Pollution Control Board or Pollution Control Committee (SPCBs/PCCs), a consolidated
annual report for the year 2018 has been prepared, including Statse observations of the current status of
implementation of Plastic Waste Management Rules in each State/UT.
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3.1. Estimated plastic waste generation during the year 2018-19 is 33,60,043

Tons/Annum:
Fig.1. shows the State and UT-wise plastic waste generation (Tons/Annum) across
the country.
STATE/UT -WISE PLASTIC WASTE GENERATION
zh Ke
Fig.1: State/UT wise Plastic waste generation
Recycling

According to the CPCB6s 2015 report, recycling of p

Primary recycling (conversion of waste plastics into products having a performance level comartiale
of original products made from virgin plastics)

Secondary recycling (conversion of waste plastics into products having less demanding performance
requirements than the original material)

Tertiary recycling (process for producing chemicals/fuelsidar products from waste plastics)
Quaternary recycling (process for recovering energy from waste plastics by incineration)

In most cities where plastic is segregated, it is primarily secondary recycling that is done to the waste it is sorted,
cleaned, miked and then made into pellets for further use in products. These products, in most cases, have less
demanding performance requirements than the original material.

Types of plastic waste and what can be recycled

Thermoplastic is a generic category andhim this, different types of plastic materials are manufactured for
different uses. It is important to understand which of the plastic material, used for what, can be recycled. It is also
important to understand what does this recycling entail and wtta i®cycled product used for. Unfortunately,

there is little information available on these aspéctmost of the recycling happens in the informal and small
scale industrial segment, which works O6invisiblyod.

What is generally understood is that pojyehe (PP and PS) and la¥ensity polystyrene (LDPE) are only
partially recyclable; most of the times, they are not recycled due to their economic unviability. The 2015 CPCB
study had noted that 94 per cent of the total plastic waste was thermoplastatspwit saidd would be
recyclable; only 6 per cent was thermoset plastic which could not be recycled. However, what is not clear is if this
study, which was based on the waste characteristics derived from landfill sites, can be the best way to establish
the recyclability of plastic waste in the country.
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Categories of plastic and their recycling potential

Name of plastic Code Recyclable Few applications Type of recycling
or not
Polyethylene 1 YES Water bottles, soft dnk Converted back to polymer anc
Terephthalate bottles, food jars, films, used for making apparel
(PET) sheets, furniture, carpets,
paneling
High-density 2 YES Milk pouches, bottles, carry  Converted to pellets and us®
Polyethylene bags, recycling bins, base cu; produce new HDPE
(HDPE)
Polyvinyl Chloride 3 YES Pipes, hoses, sheets, wire Pyrolysis, hydrolysis and
(PVC) cable insulations, multilayer  heating are used to convert PV
tubes, window profile, waste into calcium chloride,
fencing, lawn chairs hydrocarimn products and heav
metals. These are used to
produce new PVC or as feed fc
other manufacturing processes
or as fuel for energy recovery
Low-density 4 YES Plastic bags, various Conveted to pellets and used t
Polyethylene containers, dispensing bottles produce new LDPE
(LDPE) wash bottles
Polypropylene 5 YES Disposable cups, bottle caps, Converted to pellets and used
(PP) straws, auto parts, industrial produce new PP
fibres
Polystyrene (PS) 6 NO Disposable cups, glasses, Not recyclable
plates, spons, trays, CD
covers, cassette boxes, foam
Others (O) 7 NO Thermoset plastics, multilaye Not recyclabled however,

and laminates, nylon SMC,
FRP, CD, melamine plates,
helmets, shoe soles

multilayer packaging could be
crushed and tmed into sheets
and boards for roofing, using

adhesives

The details of Statewise utilization of plastic waste is given below:
Eight (8) States/UTs namely; Arunachal Pradesh, Bihar, Daman Diu & Dadra Nagar Haveli, Jammu &

il

Kashmir, Kerala, Maharashtrislanipur & Sikkim have not submitted the details in this matter.
14 States/UTs namely: Andhra Pradesh, Assam, Chhattisgarh, Goa, Gujarat, Himachal Pradesh,
Jharkhand, Karnataka, Madhya Pradesh, Odisha, Puducherry, Tamil Nadu, Telangana & Uttar Pradesh

aresending plastic waste to cement plants fepoacessing.

15 States/UTs namely: Andaman & Nicobar Islands, Andhra Pradesh, Assam, Haryana, Himachal
Pradesh, Jharkhand, Madhya Pradesh, Meghalaya, Mizoram, Nagaland, Puducherry, Tamil Nadu,

Telangana, Uttarfadesh & West Bengal are using plastic waste for polymer bitumen road construction.

16 States/UTs namely: Andaman & Nicobar Islands, Andhra Pradesh, Chhattisgarh, Goa, Jharkhand,

Karnataka, Lakshadweep, Madhya Pradesh, Nagaland, Punjab, Tamil Nadu, ffelahtaakhand and

Uttar Pradesh are recycling the plastic waste.
2 States/UTs namely: Himachal Pradesh & Delhi are sending the plastic waste to Waste to Energy plants.

Uttar Pradesh is utilizing the plastic waste in waste to oil plant. Further, Chemd&ma and Madhya

Pradesh are using the plastic waste as RDF.

No. of registered Manufacturing/Recycling Units:

As

per

t he

provi sion

613(1)6

of

PWM Rul es,

with the concerned SPCBs/P&CThere are 4773 (429#lastic Mfg., 7Compostable Mfg., 28FILP Mfg. &
185 Recycling) Registered units in 30 States/UTs and there are no plastic manufacturing units in Andaman and
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Nicobar Islands, Arunachal Pradesh, Bihar, Lakshadweep & Sikkim.

No. ofunregistered plastic manufacturing/recycling units:

There are 1080 unregistered plastic manufacturing/recycling units running in 12 States/UTs, namely; Assam,
Bihar, Jammu & Kashmir, Karnataka, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Puducherry, Punjab, TamillN&du &
Pradesh. Further, Chhattisgarh, Daman Diu and Dadra Nagar Haveli, Delhi PCC, Himachal Pradesh, Uttarakhand
& West Bengal have not provided the details in this matter.

(Source: Central Pollution Control Board, Annual Report (2489 on Implementatn of Plastic Waste Management Rules, 2016,
Report on Managing Plastic Waste in India Challengesl #genda2020Q
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information in this section, including information with respect to our plans and strategies, contain
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Before deciding to invest in the Equity Shares,
Shareholders shoultead this entire Draft Letter of Offer. An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high
degree of risk. For the purpose of disdoasof certain risks in connection with investment in the Equity Shares,
you should read Risk Factors beginningon pagel8 of this Draft Letter of Offerand for the purpose of
discussion of thasks and uncertainties related to those statements, as well as for the discussion of certain factors
that may affect our business, financial condition or results of operations, you shouldrieacclal Statement$
and™anagement 6s Di sisafBirancial Condition andA\ResultsyfOperatiohveginningon
pages86 and 154 respectivelyof thisDraft Letter of Offer Our actual results may differ materiglfrom those
expressed in or implied by these forwdodking statements. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information
used in this section is derived from our Restated Financial Statements.

Our Company was incorporated on Novembefl®5 with thename of Alshatha Management Consultants
Private Limited in accordance with the provision of Companies Act, 1956. Subsequently the name of our
Company was changdd Akshatha Service Private Limited, pursuant to which the Registrar of Companies
National Cagtal Territory of Delhi and Haryana issued a fresh certificate of incorporation on May 29, 2001.
Thereafter, the name of our Company was further changed to Moonlite Technochem Private Limited, and
accordingly, the Registrar of Companies National Capiteit®ey of Delhi and Haryana issued a fresh certificate

of incomporation on December 29, 2008uICCompany was subsequently converted from private limited company
into public limited company and upon such conversion, the name of our Company was chavigedlite
Technochem Limited and accordingly, on November 1, 2016, a fresh certificate of incorporation was issued by
Registrar of Companies, Delhi. The name of our Company was changed again to Vikas Multicorp Limited and a
fresh certificate of incorporatindated January 24, 2017 was issued under the seal of Registrar of Companies,
Delhi. Thereafter, the name of our Company was once again changed to Vikas Lifecare Lamttedfresh
certificate of incorporation dated April 9, 2021 was issued under thefsRagistrar of Companies, Delhi.

Pursuant to the order of the National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench, New Delhi dated October 31,
2018 approving the Scheme of Arrangement, the ORecy
6Vi kaseE&h Limiteddéd was demerged from Vikas Ecotech
completion of said demerger, the equity shares of the Company were listed on the NSE and the BSE on May 8,
2019.

At present our Company is principally engagethmbusiness oRecycling Plastic Wast&kgcycling Materials)

and trading of Polymer Compounds. Until 2019, the business of our Company was engaged in the trading of
various Polymer Compounds such as Ethyleingl acetate EVA Compounds), Polyvinyl chloide resinsiPVC

resing), chlorinated Parrafin, Polyethylene CompouR& Compoundg andThermoplastic Rubb&eompounds

(TPR Compoundsg. However, subsequent to the acquisition of 'Recycled and Trading Compounds Division' of
group concern 'Vikas Ecotech Lited' under the scheme of arrangement approved by National Company Law
Tribunal, Principal Bench, New Delhi, our Company also started manufacturing Polymer Compounds such as PE
Compound, Polyvinyl Chloride Compound\(C Compoundg, V blend SOE Compound?olypropylene
CompoundgPP granuleg, TPR Compounds from FY 20120 onwards.

Our Company is also certified under 1SO 9001:2015, for trading and manufacturing of PVC Compounds, EVA,
PP, PE, BASE Polymers, additives and chemicals (meant for plastic pnogdss Dynamic Growth Agency.

Our manufacturing facility is located at-&, Vigyan Nagar, RIICO Industrial Area, Shahjahanpur, Alwar,
Rajasthan.

Over the years, we have established ourselves as a successful trader of polymer compound. Our products cater
various industries such as agriculture and infrastructure, packaging, organic and inorganic chemicals, electrical,
FMCG, footwear, pharmaceuticals, automotive, and other consumer goods.

Impact of COVID -19
The outbreak of COVIEL9 was recognized as alpic health emergency of international concern on January 30,
2020 and as a pandemic by the WHO on March 11, 2020. In response to the-COMIEbreak, the governments

of many countries, including India have taken preventive or protective actions, siagboatg countrywide
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lockdowns, as well as restrictions on travel and business operations.

Our manufacturing facilities was temporarily shut during the pandemic from March 22, 2020 till May 21, 2020
and thus our production, revenue and profitability ingsacted. We have implemented greater safety procedures
and requirements at our manufacturing Facility. Due to limited availability of labour, logistics and supply chain
constraints, our manufacturing Facility was initially operating atcptimal capady utilization in the current
Fiscal.

We resumed operations in a phased manner as per the directive issued by the Government of India and the state
government from time to time. Our plant utilizatiovas improved, raw material suppliers resumtzbir

opeations and supply and logistiegere becomingnore regularHowever due to ongoing consequential wave

of COVID-19 in the Country and temporary lockdowns imposed in various places, we are facing difficulty in
resuming our operations in regular manrtidowever, we have continued to source raw materfaésn our

suppliers and have been able to continue supply of our Products to our customers.

Theongoing and théuture impact of COVIB19 or any other severe communicable disease on our business and
business perations may depend on several factors including those discussed in sectioRidkdeattors' on

pagel8of this Draft Letter of OfferWe are continuouslsnonitoring the economic conditions and have outlined

certain meases to combat the pandemic situation and to minimize the impact on our business. For more details,
see sectiontitedManagement 6 s Di scussion and Anal yGperatodf Fi na
on pagel54of this Draft Letter of Offer

Financial Performance

During Fiscals 2020, 2019 and 1281898 Jakkqg ur r2dhkhemdire 9f7r o
20, BkKhe . 8@spectively. OQur EBI TDA dur i nlgkhskFi982d0al s 20
lakhsa n d l&kisiéspectively while our Profit after tax (PAT) during Fiscals 2020, 2019 and 2018 was
1 3 9lakis 3 1aBh®a 64 lakiGi@spertdrely.

Our Area of Operation
Trading of polymer compounds

Until year 2019, ouCompany was only engaged in the trading of various polymer compounds such as EVA
Compound), PVC resins, Chlorinated Paraffin CompoundR, cdpounds and PE compounds like Linear-low
density polyethylene compounds and Hugmsity polyethyleneompounds.

The above polymer compounds are widely used in various industries such as agriculture and infrastructure,
packaging, organic and inorganic chemicals, electrical, FMCG, footwear, pharmaceuticals, automotive, and other
consumer goods.

EVA compoundare sof, flexible plastic with lowtemperature toughness and are used in making hot glue sticks.

PVC compound are commonly uséar thermoplasticmateria] which is used in a variety of applications
including health care, electronics and others, and also dupt®ranging from piping and siding, blood bags and
tubing, to wire and cable insulation, windshield system components and many more.

Chlorinated Paraffin Compound are used as additives to paints, coatings and sealants to improve their resistance
to chenicals and to water, and also as flame retardants for plastics, fabrics, paints and coatings.

TPR Compounds are used ashiche applications like orthopedic soles; ufiree cleaning bristles for micro
sized dusting brushes, sports goods etc. alongmétbonventional applications like footwear and other consumer
goods.

PE compound such as LLDPE compound (Linear-ttemsity polyethylene) is used for preparing a variety of

film application such as general purpose film, stretch film, garment packagimgyltural film, ice bags, bags

for supplemental packaging and garbage bags. Similarly HDPE compounddgtighy polyethylene) being a
costeffective thermoplastic is used in several packaging applications including crates, trays, bottles for milk and
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fruit juices, garbage containers, housewares, pipes and fitting, pipes for gas, water, sewage, drainage, sea outfalls,
industrial application, large inspection chambers and manholes for pipe sewage etc.

Our Company is a del credere agent of ONGC Petrotibadi Limited andDPal for supply of PE Compounds]
Manufacturing of Polymer Compounds.

From year 2019 onwards, our Company started manufacturing of Polymer CompoundsREcBasapound,
PVC Compounds, V bfel SOE Compound, PP granule®RICompounds.

Our manufacturing facility is located at-&, Vigyan Nagar, RIICO Industrial Area, Shahjahanpur, Alwar,
Rajasthan.

Capacity Utilisation

The details of installed capacities for manufacturing of the Polymer Compounds granted to us and the capacity
utilised by us are detailed through the table given below;

Polymer Compound Installed Capacity Capacity Utilised in
FY 201920*
EVA Compound 1,000 MT/Annum 400MT/Annum
V-blend SOE Compound 1,000 MT/Annum 450MT/Annum
TPE Compound 1,000 MT/Annum 600MT/Annum
TPR Compound 2,000 MT/Annum 1000MT/Annum
PVC Compound 2,500 MT/Annum 950MT/Annum
PP Compound 2,500 MT/Annum 600MT/Annum

*Our Company started manufacturing of Polymesr@pounds in year 201éhwards
Raw materials

We purchase our raw materialeifin multiple suppkrs on a purchase order basise @b not have long term
contracts for the supply of our raw materials and procure the same through purchaseMedease long
established relationships with a number of such suppliers, and suebstanigshed relationship with multiple
suppliers ensure stable supply without dependency on a single source.

On receipt of the raw materials from the suppliers, our quality control team tests the materials and only after
such testing of the materials, theatjty control department confirms whether the material is to be approved or
rejected.

The primary raw materials essential to manufacture Polymer Compound depends upon the nature of the Polymer
Compounds. For instance, in order to manufacture PE Compahedgw material required are 8] IM-4,

LLDPE, power oilwhereadi Octyl Phthalate, polypropylene along with 4&] IM-3 and IM_4 is required for
manufacturing of PP Granules.
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Manufacturing process of Polymer compound

The brief detds of manufacturing process of polymer compoaredepicted through below flow chart;

As per production plan arrange all raw material for blending

l

As per formulation weigh all material additive and color etc

\ 4

Extrude material by extruder (twin screw extruder or single screw
extruder) Granulized by pelletizing dieface or strain

\ 4

Feed all weighed material in blending Equipment Ribbon Blender, High
speed mixer up to proper mixing

l

Extrude material by extruder (twin screw extruder or single screw
extruder) Granulized by pelletizing die face or strain

A 4

Granulized material classified by classifier

\4

Homogenize all granulized material put / feed in silo for proper
homogenization for colour and property equalize

A 4

After confirmation from Q.C.

\ 4
Weigh material for packing ( 25 KG)

l

Stacked material on pallet for transferto store and dispatched
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Manufacturing of Recycled Material

INFY 201920, our Company acquired 6Recycled and Trading
Ecot ech Li mscheee & armangenemt approved by National Company Law Tribunal, Principal
Bench, New Delhi.

Our Company aimed to initiate manufacturing of Recy
Compounds Divisiond undevedlydNdtienal€ompdny Law Tribunay, Erimeipalt ap p
Bench, New Delhi at optimal level. However due to outbreak of ongoing C&¥|Bhe manufacturing facility

is operating at minimal capacity utilization.

Our Company is in the process of starting the manuifiseag of recycled material in phased manner in adherence

with guidelines issued by Government of India and State Government from time to time. Our recycled products
would find its usage in various industries like pipes, electric cable, automotive irdufbotwear and other

plastic industries.

Raw Material

Our Company intends to procure industrial waste from various collection centers on the basis of purchase orders.

Capacity Utilisation

The details of installed capacities for manufacturing efRlecycled Material granted to us are detailed through
the table given below;

Recycling Material Installed Capacity Capacity Utilised*
Polyethylene from MLP 1,000 MT/Annum NIL
Polystyrene from MLP 1,000 MT/Annum NIL
PET from PET Waste Plastic 1,000 MTTAnnum NIL
PVC from PVC Waste Plastic 1,000 MT/Annum NIL
Polyethylene from Tetrapak 1,000 MT/Annum NIL
Waste

Polypropylene from MLP 800 MT/Annum NIL
PET from MLP 900 MT/Annum NIL
Fibre Pulp from Tetrapak 900 MT/Annum NIL
Waste

*Our Company is in pycess of starting the manufacturing of Recycled Matarate specificallyit is in trail
stage and hence capacity utilised is NIL.
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Manufacturing process of Recycled Material

The brief details of manufacturing process of recycletena are detailed below;

As per recycling plan sort all raw materials for grinding for sizing

l

All sized grind material is subjected to Metal Separators.

\ 4

Feed all weighed material in blending Equipment Ribbon Blender, High
speed mixer up to proper mixirg

\ 4

After proper mixing Material sent for collector and weighed and sent for
Kneader/ Extruder (twin screw extruder or single screw extruder)
Granulized by pelletizing die face or strain

l

Granulized material/ Pelletization

l

Weigh material for packing (25KG)

Key Strengths

Our competitive strengths are as follows:

Experienced management team

We are led by a group of individuals, having background and experience in the chemical and recycling industry.
Our management comprisespgybfessionals who have the requisite academic expertise and relevant experience
in business management, commerce, etc. They hold requisite qualifications. Our Prantbtair management

has a vast experience in chemical industry.

Our team is well qudiied and experienced in the industry to which our Company caters and has been responsible
for the growth of our operations. We believe the stability of our management team and the industry experience
coupled with their strong repute, will enable us to oo to take advantage of future market opportunities and
expand into new markets.

Quality Assurance

Our Company has always focused on providing quality product and services to our customers. This is necessary
in order to ensure we retain our existiwystomers and widen our customer base by providing assurance,
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reliability, and responsive services to our customers. We endeavor to maintain the quality of our services and
follow strict procedures to ensure quality services and timely delivery at congpedites.

Long term relationship with the clients

Our company focuses on providing the customers with the desired and standard quality product. By providing the
desired quality and standards we aim to achieve highest level of customer satisfagtimcarerepeated orders

from customers. Because of our good reputation with the clients we have been able to attain orders from a diverse
range of client base.

Business Strategies
We intend to pursue the following principal strategies to leverage owyetdive strengths and grow our business:
Entering into new geographies

We intend to cater to the increasing demand of our existing customers and also to increase our existing customer
base by enhancing the distribution reach of our products in diffpegts of the country. We propose to increase

our marketing and sales team which can focus in different regions and also maintain and establish relationship
with customers. Enhancing our presence in other regions will enable us to reach out to apatggoporurther,

our Company believes in maintaining long term relationships with our customers in terms of increased sales. We
aim to achieve this by adding value to our customers through innovation, quality assurance, timely delivery, and
reliability of our products.

Exploring newer applications of our existing products as well as focusing on new product line

Our Company aims to expand the sale of our products to other industries where such products have application.
Our Company also intendstoverdur i nt o 60 Food protection and Personal
with the total investment oépprox Rs. 1@ Croresin two years ands process of acquiringortfolio of
trademarks, comprising of popular andll-establishecdhational brands.

Our Company also intends to tap into recyclingof Mlltae y er ed Packages (MLPG&6s), anc
of joining hands with the renowned research institution to acquire technology and to set up its own manufacturing
units for recycling of MLPG6s.

Our Gompany also intends to enter into namely Producer Responsibility Organization (PRO), Extended Producer
Responsibility (EPR) as an extension of its recycling of plastic waste business, personal hygiene and other items
of fastmovingconsumer goods. This Wénable our Company to venture into new products, processes, segments,
businesses which are under the existing circumstances conveniently and advantageously could be combined with
the present activities of the Company

Improving operational efficiencies

Our Company intends to improve efficiencies and achieve cost reductions to unable our products to have
competitive advantage. We believe that this can be achieved through economies of scale. As a result of these
measures, our Company will be able to insests market share and profitability.

Attract and retain talented employee

Employees are essential for the success of every organization. We rely on them to operate our manufacturing
facilities and deliver quality performance to our clients. We corlgtamiénd to continue our focus on improving

health, safety and workplace environment for our employees and provide various programs and benefits for the
personal wetbeing and career development of our employees. We intend to strive to further redunpltyee

attrition rate and retain more of our skilled workers for our future expansion by providing them with better, safer
and healthier working environment.
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Focus on consistently meeting quality standards

Our Company intends to focus on adheringht® quality standards of the products. This is necessary so as to
make sure that we have repetitive orders from our customers. Quality of the product is very important for the
Company from both customer point of view and regulatory point of view. Praviiendesired and good quality
product helps us in enhancing our brand value and maintaining long term relationships with our customers.

Invest significantly in Research and development

We intend to increase our initiatives in R&D in order to constastthgy industry verticals to identify product
inefficiencies in areas in which we could add value. Going forward, we intend to expand our research and
development capabilities, by increasing our investment in employing qualified individuals from theyindiestr
believe that continued investments in R&D will enable us to increase our productivity, improve our operating
efficiency, and enable us to penetrate existing and new market segments.

Quality control and quality assurance

Our Company has received 19001:2015 certification with respect to the trading and manufacturing of various
Polymer Compounds. Various-process quality checks are performed to monitor product quality during the
manufacturing process.

We believe that maintaining a high standafdjwality of our products and our Manufacturing Facility is critical
to our Company and continued success. We have put in place systems that cover all areas of our business processes
from manufacturing to product delivery for ensuring consistent hightguefficacy and safety of our products.

Sales Marketing and Distribution

We sell our products to our customers in India and as well as outside India. We awaseteam dedicated

to marketing, distribution and sale of our products, in India anolbab We seek to maintain direct relationships

with our key customers to better understand their requirements. Where required, we transport our products directly
to our customers by land, air or sea ways, based on the circumstances involved and threergguiaieour
customers. We rely on freight forwarders to deliver our products. We do not have formal contractual relationships
with our freight forwarders. The pricing for freight is negotiated on each shipment basis.

Human resources
Our work force is aritical factor in maintaining quality and safety standards and that good relations with our

workforce is critical in strengthening our competitive position in the market. As on December 31, 2021, we had
20 permanent employees on our roll

Equipment and Machinery

Our manufacturing facilities have been built with keeping in mind efficiency, safety and environmental factors.
Our factory complex has all the key ingredients for a successful manufacturing unit. We have eadieaaibr

in procuring top of th line equipment that can effectively cater to specific customer needs. The major equipment
and machinery installed at our manufacturing facility includes Kneader Machine, PlastiSptégd Mixer,
Rolling Machine & Grinding Machine, Single Screw Extrudeigch Hydrates Dispenser Kneader, Twin Screw
Extruder Dehumidifier Air Dryer with Crystallizer, PVC Pipe Extruder MachiRalverzer, Homogerzer, Metal
Serarator, Hi speed Mixer and others

Information technology

We have implemented a modern infotioa technology system, which helps us in day to day functioning of our
business.

Regulatory and environmental matters
We are subject to extensive environmental laws and regulations, including regulations relating to the prevention
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and control of watepollution and air pollution, environmental protection and hazardous waste management in
relation to our manufacturing facility. These laws and regulations govern the discharge, emission, storage,
handling and disposal of a variety of substances that magdskin or result from our operations. Our Company

has obtained the necessary environment related approvals in relation to our manufacturing facilities.

Health and safety

We aim to comply with applicable health and safety regulations and other requisemeur operations and
comply with legislative requirements, requirements of our licenses, approvals, various certifications and ensuring
the safety of our employees and the people working at our facility or under our management.

Intellectual property

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, our Company does not owns any intellectual property rights in relation
to its business. For, further information, please see section"tRis Factor' beginningon pagel8 of this Draft
Letter of Offer.

Insurance

We have obtainethsurancewith respect to our manufacturing facility, coveriimger alia buildings, plant and
machinery, furniture and stock located therein. Insurance coverage taken by the Company during the curren
financial year as well as for Fiscals 2020, 2019 and 2018 for stocks, buildings, furniture, plant and machinery as
below:

Sr. Fiscal Total insurance coverage taken for stocks, buildings, furniture, plant and machinery
No.

1. 2020 25.66 Crores

2. 2019 25.66 Crores

3. 2018 6.00 Crores

While, our Company believes that we have adequately insured our assets, we can provide no assurance in this
regard for further details, see section titl@dsk Factors beginningon pagel8 of this Draft Letter of Offer

Properties

The details of the material properties used by our Company for our operations are set forth below:

Sr. No. Particulars Address Leased/Owned

1. Registered office Vikas Apartments, &, 34/1 East Owned
Punjabi Bagh NewDelhi-110026

2. Manufacturing facility at G-83, Vigyan Nagar, Reco Leased

Shahjahanpur (Rajasthan) Industrial area, Shahjahanpur,
Rajasthan 301706

There are certain other commercial properties which is owned by the Company for the purpos¢noéimves
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OUR MANAGEMENT
Our Board of Directors

Our Articles of Association requings to have not less than thieed not more than fiftedbirectors. As on date

of this DraftLetter of Offer, we have siBirectorson our Board,comprising oftwo Exeautive Directors, one
Non-ExecutiveDirector Non-Independenandthree (3) Independent Directoiscludingtwo women directors

Our Company is in compliance with the corporate governance norms prescribed under the SEBI Listing
Regulations and the Companiést, 2013, in relation to the composition of our Board and constitution of
committees thereof.

Set forth below are details regarding our Board as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer:

Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, Addres: Age Other Directorships
Occupation, Temrm and Nationality (years)
Ms. Richa Sharma 31 Nil

Designation Non-Executive- Independent Directer
Chairperson

Address D-2/32, Street No. 5, Mahavir Enclave, N
Delhi - 110045

DIN: 08709599

Date of birth November 23, 1989

Term: 5 Years

Period of directorship: FromSeptember 30, 2020

Occupation Assistant Professor

Mr. Vivek Garg 46 1. Emanate Pipe Private Limited

2. Maharaja Agarsen Academy Priv
Designation Managing Director Limited

3. Vikas Surya Buildwell Private Limite:
Address House no. 10, Road No. 4, East Pun 4. A.G. Agrotech & Power Privatieimited
Bagh, Punjabi Bagh, West Delhi, Delhi 110026 5. Vikas Ecotech Limited

DIN: 00255443

Date of birth November 26, 1974

Term: 5 Years

Period of directorship:Since July 25, 2008

Occupation Business
Mr. Vikas Garg 47 1. Vikas Ecotech Limited

Designation Non-Executive- Norrindependent
Director

Address House no. 7, Road No. 41, West Punjabi
Bagh, Punjabi Bagh, West Delhi, Delhi 110026

DIN: 00255413
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Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, Addres: Age

Occupation, Tem and Nationality (years)

Date of birth June 15, 1973
Term: Liable to retire by rotation
Period of directorshipFromJune 72013

Occupation Business
Mr. Vijay Kumar Sharma 54

Designation Whole Time Director cum Chief
Executive Officer

Address House No. 1075, SectdO, Faridabad,
Haryanal21006

DIN: 08721833

Date of birth May 27, 1966

Term: 5 Years

Period of directorship:From September 30, 2020

Occupation Professional
Ms. Meena Bansal 31

Designation Non-Executive- Independent Director

Address House No. 617, Neardyal Market, Alipur,
North West Delhi, Delhi 110036

DIN: 08400953

Date of birth December 20, 1989

Term: 5 Years

Period of directorship:July 1, 2019 till date

Occupation Professional
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Gupta 32

Designation Non-Executive- Independent Director
Address H. No.i D-40, Street No. 5, Near Bindapt
DDA Flats Raja Puri, Uttam Nagar, West Delhi,
Delhi-110059

DIN: 07003962

Date of birth December 6, 1988

Term: 5 Year

Other Directorships

Nil

Nil

Nil
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Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, Addres: Age Other Directorships
Occupation, Tem and Nationality (years)

Period of directorship:From November 15, 2016

Occupation Professional

In compliance with Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013, not less thathital® of our norindependent
Directors are liable to retire by rotation.

Brief Biographies of our Directors

Ms. Richa Sharma, Chairman and Independent Diretor

Ms. Richa Sharma is the Chairman and independentawatinector on the Board of our Compar8he joined
our Company on September 30, 2020. She holds Mas&tegree in Industrial Chemistry and is a Gold medalist.
She also holds Ph.D. in Chemical Scies from Amity University, Noida, Uttar Pradesh

She hadeen awarded witBHAVAN (Building Energy Efficiency Higher and Advanced Network) fellowship
award during her Ph.D. funded by IntloS. Science and Technology Forum (IUSSTF), Department of Science
& Technology, Government of India.

She holds more than five years of experience in R&D in sphere of Flyash based Composite Pigments & their
Application in NIR Reflective Coatings. She also serves as an Assistant Professor, Applied Chemistry in Maharaja
Agrasen Institute of Technology, Rohini, Delhi.

Mr. Vivek Garg, Managing Director

Mr. Vivek Garg isthe Managing Directoo f our Company. He hol ds bBahhel or 6
University. He joined our Company aduly 25, 2008nd is associatedith our Companyor more than twelve

years.He is actively involved in dajo-day working, financial and strategic decision making of our Company.

He holds more than 16 years of experience in chemical industry and plastic industry.

Mr. Vikas Garg, Non-Executive Non-IndependentDirector

Mr. Vikas Garg imNon-ExecutiveNon-Independenbirectoronthe Boar@ f our Company. He ho
degree in commerce from Delhi University. He joined our Companjuoe 7, 201&nd is associated with our
Compaly for more thareightyearsHe also serves as promoter cum managiregtbr of Vikas Ecotech Limited.

He holds more than 18 years of experience in Polyn@n@unds and I&micals industry.

Mr. Vijay Kumar Sharma, Whole -Time Director & CEO

Mr. Vijay Kumar Sharma it wholetime director on the Board of our Company. He also serves as CEO of the
Company He holds posgraduation degree in Business Management and also holds bachelors' degree on Law.
He joined our Company on September 30, 2020. He holds than19 years of experience in area of industrial
relations, human resource management, project management and business development.

Ms. Meena BansalNon-Executive Independent Director

Ms. MeenaBansals a norexecutive hdependenvomendirector an the Board of our Compan$he is anember
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and is a practigiaified Chartered Accountanshe joined
our Company oduly 1, 201%nd is associated with our Company for more tha@ year She holdsnore than
twelveyears of experience @rea of financial accounting, audit and taxation.

Mr. Pankaj Kumar Gupta, Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Pankaj Kumar Gupta is a n@axecutive independent director on the Board of our Company. He is aamemb
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and is a practicing qualified Chartered Accountant. He joined
our Company on November 15, 2016 and is associated with our Company for more than four year. He holds more
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than ten years of experiencearea of finance, accounts, audit and legal documentation.
Confirmations

1. Neither Company nor our Directors are declared as fugitive economic offenders as defined in Regulation
2(1)(p) of the SEBI | CDR Regul at ivens,coamdni lcawd f e
under Section 12 of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

2. None of the Directorsof our Companyhaveheld or currentlyhold directorshipin any listed company
whose shares have been or were suspended from being traded ontengto€k exchanges in the five
years preceding the date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer, during the term of his/ her directorship in
suchcompany.

3. None of our Directors of our Company are or were associated in the capacity of a director Vistie@ny
company which has been delisted from any stock exchange(s) at any timpastthe

4, None of our Directors have been debarred from accessing capital markets by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India. Additionally, none of our Directorsare or were, associatedvith any other company
which is debarred from accessing the capital market by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

5. None of our Directors have been identified as a wilful defaulter, as defined in the SEBI Regulations and
there are nwiolations of securities laws committed by them in the past and no prosecution or other
proceedings for any such alleged violation are pending agharst

Management Organization Structure

Set forth is the organization structure of our Company:

Mr. Vivek Garg,
Managing Director

Mr. Vijay Kumar .
Sharma Mr. Vikas Garg

Executive Director Non Executive
Director
& CEO

Mr. Pankaj Kumar
Gupta

Independent Director

Ms. Richa Sharma Ms. Meena
Independent Director; Independent Director,

Mr. Vishal Jai Kuma
Key Managerial Garg

Personnel Production and

Marketing

Mr. Vijay Kumar
Sharma

Ms. Rashika Gupta
Executive Director Company Secretary

Mr. Chandan Kumar

CFO : ¢
Compliance Officer
& CEO
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Corporate Governance

The provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Companies Act with respect to corporate governance
are applicable tas.

Wearein compliancewith therequirementsf theapplicableregulationsincludingthe SEBIListingRegulations,

Companies Act and the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, in respect of corporate governance including constitution of

our Board and Committees thereof. Our corporate governance framework is based on an effective independent
Board, separationofth Boar dés supervisory role from the execut
Board Committees, as required untiaw.

Our Board undertakes to take all necessary steps to continue to comply with all the requirements of the SEBI
Listing Regulationsind the Companies Act. Our Board functions either directly, or through various committees
constituted to oversee specific operational areas.

Committees of our Board

Our Board has constituted following committees in accordance with the requiremertCohtipanies Acnd
SEBI Listing Regulations:

a) Audit Committee;
b) St akehol der €@dmmRecjaadk i onshi p
C) Nomination and Remunerati@@ommittee.

Details of each of these committees aréolisws:
a) Audit Committee

Our Audit Committeewaslastreconstitutd by our Boardof Directorsin theirmeetingheldon February
12, 2020with the following members forming a part of the s@oimmittee:

Sr. No. Name of Member Designation
1. Mr. Pankaj Kumar Gupta Chairman
2. Ms. Meena Bansal Member
3. Ms. Richa Sharra Member

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Audit Committee.

The scopefunctionsandthetermsof referencenf our Audit Committeejs in accordancevith Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Bégou$ which are as
follows:

1 Overseeing the companyds financi al reporting proc
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficienteadible;

2. Recommendation for appointment, remunerationtands of appointment of auditors of t@mpany;
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the staiditoss;
4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before

sulmission to the board fapproval,

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval with particular reference to Matters r
Statementcharges, if any, in accountingpolicies and practicesand reasonsfor the same,Major
accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management, Significant
adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit fin@loggpliance with listing and
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

other legal requirements relating to financial statements, Disclosure of any related party transactions

and Qualifications in the draft audit report;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application sfrhigeld through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other
than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring

agency monitoringhe utilisation of proceedsof a public or rights issue,and making appropriate

recommendations to the Board to take up steps imtatter;

Review and monitor the auditords i nde pemssence

Approval or ay subsequent modification of transactions of the company with relatéds;
Scrutiny of intercorporate loans andvestments;
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wheiteigarecessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controlsnisk managemerstystems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the

internal controkystems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage

and frequency of internaludit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there

Reviewing the findings of anyiernal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there

is suspecteftaudorirregularityor afailure of internalcontrolsystem®f amaterialnatureandreporting

the matter to thboard;

Discussiorwith statutoryauditorsbeforethe auditcommencesaboutthe natureandscopeof auditas

well as postaudit discussion to ascertain any areaasfcern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,

shareholders in case of npaynent of declared dividends anceditors;

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blowarechanism;

Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whdime Finance Director or any other person heading
the finance function or discharging that function) afiesessing the qualifications, experience and

background, etc. of the candidate;

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of theCAuatitittee;

Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment biyallding company in the
subsidiary(if any) exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is

lower.

Reviewing the Management Discussion and Analysis of the financial condition and results of

operations;

Reviewing the stements of significant related party transactions submitted bpamagement;

Reviewing management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors

and ensuring suitable followp thereon;
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25.

26.

b)

c)

Reviewing internal audit reportelating to internal controkeaknesses;

Reviewing the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor of the

Company;and

a) Reviewing statement aleviations quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of
monitoring agncy, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1),

b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer

document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

As required under the SEBI Lisg Regulations, the Audit Committee shall meet at least four times a
year with maximunintervalof four monthshetweertwo meetingsandthequorumfor eachmeetingof

the Audit Committee shalbetwo membersr onethird of the memberswhicheveris greaer, provided
thatthereshouldbeaminimum of two independent directors present.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Our Stakeholders Relationship Committee was last reconstitutedbyoary 12, 2020rhe members
of the said Committee are as follows:

Sr. No. Name of Member Designation
1. Ms. Richa Sharma Chairman
2. Ms. Meena Bansal Member
3. Mr. Pankaj Kumar Gupta Member

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The scope and function of the Stakleleos Relationship Committee is in accordance with Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations and the terms of reference, powers and
scope of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of our Company include:

Resolving the grievaces of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares, regeipt of annual report, neeceipt of declared dividends, issue
of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.;

Review of meases taken for effective exercise of voting rightssbareholders;

Reviewof adherencéo the servicestandardsdoptedoy the listed entity in respecbf variousservices
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Ageiot;

Review of the variousneasures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices
by the shareholders of thtempany.

As required under the SEBI Listing 4dations, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall meet

at least oncayear,andthechairpersomf thecommitteeshallbe presenattheannualgenerameetings

to answermueries of the security holders. The quorum of the meeting shall be eithengmbers or

one third of the members of the committee whichever is greater, including at least one independent
director inattendance.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Our Nomination and Remuneration Committee last reconstituted by our Boardeofdds in their
meeting held oifrebruary 12, 202®ith the following members:
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10.

Sr. Name of Member Designation
No.

1. Ms. Meena Bansal Chairman
2. Ms. Richa Sharma Member
3. Mr. Pankaj Kumar Gupta Member

The Company Secretary acts as the secrefaitye Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Thescopeandfunctionof the NominationandRemuneratiolCommitteeis in accordanceavith Section
178 of the Companiesact, 2013andSEBI Listing Regulationsandthe termsof referencepowersand
role of ourNomination and Remuneration Committee aréodews:

To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their
appointment and/ aemoval,

To carry out eval uparfoimance; of every Directoros

To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director, andrecommendo the Board a policy, relatingto the remuneratiorfor the Directors,key
manageriapersonnel and othemployees;

To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors angdhgd;

To devise a policy on Boawiversity;

To recommend/review remuneration of the Managing Director(s) and WihweDirector(s) based on
their performance and defined assessrogtdria,

To administermonitorand formulatedetailedtermsandconditionsoft h e E mpStockptiens 6
Scheme;

To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time tortdi@aenforced by any
statutory notification, amendment or modification, as maggmicable;

To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties;
and

Torecommendo the board, all remuneration, in wager form, payable to senioranagement.

As requiredunderthe SEBI Listing Regulationsthe Nominationand RemuneratiorCommitteeshall
meetatleast oncea year,andthe chairpersorof the committeeshall be presentat the annualgeneral
meetingso arswerqueries ofthe shareholdersThe quorumfor eachmeetingof the said committee
shall be eithertwo membersor onethird of the members of the committee whichever is greater,
including at least one independent directgoriesence.

In addition to theabove detailed committeesnstitutedunder theSEBI Listing Regulationsand Companies
Act, our Company has alstonstitutedRights Issue Committed@ he brief detail of the same is detaileddvel

Rights IssueCommittee

Our Company, vide its Board msation dated February 6, 2021 has constituted a Rights Issue Committee
consisting of Mr. Vivek Garg, Mr. Vikas Garg and Mr. Chandan Kumar. Mr. Vivek @Gattge Chairman of the
committee. The Board has authorised the committee to finalize the terms dfttie issue, to tee all decisions
relating to therights issuancluding approving, sending, finalizing postal ballot notice and to do all such acts,
deeds, things as may be necessary for the purpose tdshes
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Our Key Managerial Personnel

In addiion to our Managing Director and Whole Time Director, whose details have been provided under
paragraph above titled 6éBrief Profile of our Direct
Personnel as on the date of filing of this LetteDffer:

Mr. Chandan Kumar, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Chandan Kumar is Chief Financial Officer of our Company. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and is a practicing qualified Chartered Accountant. He joined our Comgaagtember

8, 2018 and is associated with our Company for more than two year. He holds more than seven years of experience
in area of finance and account.. Chandan Kumais our Permanent employee.

Mr. Vishal Jai Kumar Garg, Head of Production and Marketing

Mr. Vishal Jai Kumar Garg is the Head of Production and Marketing departments of our Company with more than
20 years of experience in the polymer compounds and additives indtssinined our Company aiune 4, 2009

and is associated with our @pany for more than twelve yeatse holdsexperience in sourcing, supply chain
management, processing and sales of polymer compounds and specialty adithtikas.been instrumental in
initiatives with the ugcycling of plastic wastes, working in proptsand deals with the various private /
government companies / authorities and agencies working in recycling of plaktiddshal Jai Kumar Gargs

our Permanent employee.

Ms. Rashika Gupta

Ms. Rashika Gupta is the Company Secretary and Compliariceradf the CompanyShe joined our Company

as compliance officer on March 26, 20aad subsequently she was appointed as Company Secretary of the
Company on April 2, 2021. She is enrolled as an Associate Company Secretary withsfivete of Company
Secretaries of Indeand hol ds a Master 6s d argundetlereg/ears of@xparieree ic e . S|
handling various regulatory compliance of listed and unlisted companies. She was previously associated with
Hexaxis Advisory Services. She is a peretremployee of the Company.

Relationship of Key Managerial Personnel with our Directors, Promoter and / or other Key Managerial
Personnel

Mr. Vivek Garg, the Managing Director of the Company, is the brother of our Promoter cum Director Mr. Vikas
Garg
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OUR PROMOTERS

Our Promoters are Mr. Vikas Garg, Vikas Garg HUF, Ms. Seema Garg, Ms. Sukriti Garg, Mr. Vinod Kumar
Garg, Vinod Kumar Garg HURs. Shashi Garg, Mr. Vaibhav Garg.

Mr. Vikas Garg

Mr. Vikas Garg iaNon-ExecutiveNon-Independenbirectoronthe Board f our Company. He ho
degree in commerce from Delhi University. He joined our Company on June 7, 2013 and is associated with our
Company for more than eight years. He also serves as promoter cum managtogafindikas Ecotech Limited.

He holds more than 18 years of experience in Polymer Compounds and Chemicals industry.

Mr. Vikas Garg currently also holds directorships in the following companies:

1. Vikas Ecotechimited

Vikas Garg HUFE

Vikas Garg HUFbecame a promoter of the Company in the year 2016. Mr. Vikas Garg is Karta of Vikas Garg
HUF and holds the control over it. It was originally incorporated in January 1, 2001. Ms. Seema Garg, Ms. Sukriti
Garg, Ms. Vrinda Garg and Mr. Vasu Garg are the mendfdfdJF along with Mr. Vikas Garg.

Ms. Seema Garg

Ms. Seema Gargs Commerce graduate and having an experience of business management and organization
development. She becamp@romoterof the Companyn the year 2016

She does not hold directorship any company.

Ms. Sukriti Garg

She is graduated in the field of architectures andrhea promoterof the Companyn the year 2016
She does not hold any directorsiipany company

Mr. Vinod Kumar Garg

He is Commerce Graduate and has an experigaeer 20 years in the field of finance and accounts.
Mr. Vinod Kumar Gargcurrently also holds directorships in the following companies

JMB Buildwell Private Limited

JHR Developers Private Limited
NewWave Realtors Private Limited
Vikas Jagan Develops Private Limited
Vikas Infrastructures Private Limited
Vikas Surya Developers Private Limited
Vikas Portfolio Private Limited

Vibhuti Promoters Private Liited

. Vikas auto privatd.imited

10. Mangal Farms Private Limited

11. Anubhav Utilities Private Limited

12. Excel Apartments Private Limited

CoNoA~WNE

Mr. Vinod Kumar Gargurrentlyalso holdsa partnership inndraprastha MultitradeLP

Vinod Kumar Garg HUFE
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Mr. Vinod Kumar Gargbeame the promoter of the Company in the year 2016. Mr. Vinod Kumar Gang is
Karta of HUFand holds the control over it. Mr. Vinod Kumar Garg andshig Mr. Vaibhav Garg are members
of the Vinod Kumar Gar¢giUF.

Ms. Shashi Garg

She is a commerce graduate by qualification and having as experience in the area of Corporate Social
Responsibilityand Corporate Governance of overyEars.

Ms. Shashi Gargurrently also holds directorships in the following companies
1. NewWave Realtors Private Limited
2. Vikas Surya Developers Private Limited
3. VikasPortfolio Private Limited
4. ExcelApartments Privateimited

Mr. Vaibhav Garg

Mr. Vaibhav Garg is a Commerce graduate and having an experience ofyaas3n Marketing and Business
development

Mr. Vaibhav Gargeurrently also holds directorships in the following compsnie
1. JMB Buildwell Private Limitel
2. JHRDevelopers Private Limited
3. Vikas Portfolio Private Limited
4. Anubhav Utilities Private Limited

Mr. VaibhavGargcurrentlyalso holds partnership indraprastha MultitradeLP.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration and paent of dividends will be recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by the
Shareholders, at their discretion, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Assoaradibie Companie#ct,

and other applicable law$he dividend,if any, will dependon a numberof factors,including but not limited,
consolidated net operating profit after tax, working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, cash
flow required to meet contingencies, outstanding borrowings, and applicable taxde fpgyailr Company. In
addition, our ability to pay dividends may be impacted by a number of factors, including restrictive covenants
under loan or financing arrangements our Company is currently availing of or may enter into to finance our fund
requiremerg for our businesactivities.

We have not declared any dividend in the previous five (5) financial years immediately preceding this issue.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For details of the related party transactions, as per the requirements undebbpplazounting Standards

06Rel ated Party Disclosureso6 and SEBI | CDR Regul ati o
15,2021, Fiscal 2020 and Fiscalo0 1 9 s e e A Fi niaRestdted Fina®ial StatenmigtRelated Party
Disclosur® beginningon pageB6 of this Draft Letter of Offer
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SECTION V 7 FINANCIAL INFORMATION

RESTATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Sr. No. Particulars Page Nos.
1. The Statutory Auditorés Repor 89
2. Restated Financial Statements 92

[The remainder of this page has been intentionally liefihk}

86



THE STATUTORY AUDI TOR6S REPORT

Auditors' Report on the restated summary statements of assets and liabilities as at January 15, 2021, March
31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 summary statement abfits and losses (including other comprehensive income),
summary statement of cash flows and changes in equity for the period ended January 15, 2021 and each of
the years ended March 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, of Vikas Lifecare Limited (Formerly known @gikas
Multicorp Limited 0) (collectively, the "Restated Summary Statements")

To,

The Board of Directors

Vikas Lifecare Limited

(Formerly known agVikas Multicorp Limited)
G-1, 34/1,

East Punjabi Bagh,

New Delhi110026

Dear Sirs:

1. We have examined ttegttached Restated Summary Statemeniéilads Lifecare Limited (Formerly
Knownas fAVi kas Mul it ber i Chanperetl i ¢hls yeport and prepared by the
Company for the purpose of inclusion in the Letter of Offer in connection with its Rigie. The
Restated Summary Statements, which have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company,
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of:

a) Subsection (1) of Section 26 of Part | of Chapter Il of the Companies Act 2013AtH8;

b) Relevant provisions of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended ("ICDR Regulations"); and

C) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (as amended) issuedstiyutiee In
of Chartered Accountants of I ndia (Al CAI ),

In terms of the relevant provision of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and other provisions relating to
accounts of Vikas Lifecare Limited For mer |l y Known as i MWWekMisGoyalil t i co
Nagpal & Co., Chartered Accountants, have been subjected to the peer review process of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of I ndia (I CAI') and hol d
of the ICAL.

Management's Responiility for the Restated Summary Statements

2. The preparation of the Restated Summary Statements, which are to be included in the Offer documents
is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The Management's responsibility includes
designing, imfementing and maintaining adequate internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Restated Summary Statements. The Management is also responsible for identifying
and ensuring that the Company complies with the ICDR Regulations.

Audit ors' Responsibilities

3. We have examined such Restated Summary Statements taking into consideration:
a) The terms of reference and terms of our engagement agreed with you as per the our engagement
letter, requesting us to carry out the assignment, in connagtib the proposed Right Issue of
the Company;

b) The Guidance Note;

C) Concepts of test checks and materiality to obtain reasonable assurance based on the verification
of evidence supporting the Restated Summary Statements; and

d) The requirements of Section 26tbe Act and the ICDR Regulations;

Our work was performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your compliance with
the Act and the ICDR Regulations in connection with the Right Issue.
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Restated Summary Statements as peldited Financial Statements

4, These Restated Summary Statements have been compiled by the management of the Company from:

a) Audited financial statements of the Company as at and for the period ended January 15, 2021,
which were prepared in accordance with litdian Accounting Standards as prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended, and other accounting principles gen
which have been approdédy the Board of Directors at their meeting held on January 12, 2021,

b) Audited financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020 and
March 31, 2019, which were prepared in accordance with Ind AS, which have been approved
by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on June 25, 2020 and April 27, 2019 respectively;
and

c) Audited financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018,
which were prepared in accordance with accounting principles genaxagpted in India
(Alndi an GAAPO) at the relevant time which h
their meeting held on September 2, 2018. The management of the Company has adjusted
financial information for the year ended March 31, 2018 inefuéh such Indian GAAP
financial statements using recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS and has included
such adjusted financial information as comparative financial information in the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2019famed to in para 4(b) above.

5. For the purpose of our examination, we have reldi@
2020, April 27, 2019 issued by us and audit report dated September 2, 2018 was issued by the previous
auditors, on theiiancial statements of the Company as at and for the period ended January 15, 2021 and
for each the years ended March 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 as referred in Paragraph 4 (a) (b) and (c) above;

and
a) Based on the above and according to the information andrejins given to us, we report
that the Restated Summary Statements of the Company, as attached to this report read with basis
of preparation and respective significant accounting policies given in Annexure V as described
in paragraph 1 have been prepair@ccordance with the Act, ICDR Regulations, Guidance
Note, and these Restated Summary Statements:
0] have been made after making adjustments for the changes in accounting policies. As
the accounting policies as at and for the period ended January 15y@@2haterially
consistent with the policies adopted as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020, 2019
and 2018, no adjustments have been made to the audited financial statements of the
respective years presented on account of changes in accountingspolicie
(i) have been made after incorporating adjustments and regroupings for the material
amounts in the respective financial year to which they relate;
(iii) there are no qualifications in the auditors' reports on the audited financial statements
of the Company as danuary 15, 2021, March 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 and for period
ended January 15, 2021 and each of the years ended March 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
which require any adjustments to the Restated Summary Statements.
6. We have not audited any financial staterseritthe Company as of any date or for any period subsequent

to January 15, 2021. Accordingly, we express no opinion on the financial position, results of operations,
cash flows and statement of changes in equity of the Company as of any date or foodrsupsequent
to January 15, 2021.

7. The Restated Summary Statements do not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the
audited financial statements mentioned in paragraph 4 above.

8. This report should not in any way be construed assauance or relating of any of the previous audit
reports issued by us or the Previous Auditors, nor should this report be construed as a new opinion on
any of the financial statements referred to herein.

9. We have no responsibility to update our reportdvents and circumstances occurring after the date of
the report.

88



10. Our report is intended solely for use of the Board of Directors for inclusion in the Offer documents to be
filed with recognized Stock Exchange in connection with the proposed Right @sueeport should
not be used, referred to, or distributed for any other purpose.

For Goyal Nagpal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 018289C

Virender Nagpal

Partner

M. No.: 416004

UDIN: 21416004AAAAFG2328

Date: April 15, 2021
Place Delh
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RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Annexure |: Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at January 15, 2021, March 31, 2020, March
31, 2019 and March 31, 2018
(Rs. In Lakhs)

. Note  As at Jaruary As at March As at March As at March
Particulars

No. 15, 2021 31, 2020 31, 2019 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
a) Property, Plant an
Equipment 3 518.35 351.58 354.62 316.78
b) Investment Property 4 651.56 659.48 422.22 444.44
¢) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 1,272.16 994.15 4,800.24 12,082.26
(i) Loans 6 106.85 180.00 180.00 82.10
(i Trade Receivables 7 2,303.86 5,999.01 881.26 -
(iv) Other financial asset: 8 1,042.55 435.11 431.13 93.07
d) Deferred Tax Asset
(Net) 9 9.23 22.22 55.95 461
e) Other Asset 10 330.39 135.86 266.26 -
Total Non-Current
Assets 6,234.94 8,777.40 7,391.66 13,023.26
Current Assets
a) Inventories 11 2,706.59 3,033.02 2,823.46 1,483.27
b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 12 5,442.00 11,623.71 13,504.68 11,268.91
(i) Cash & cash
equivalents 13 15.91 21.72 154.45 12.39
(iii) Loans 14 2.87 0.50 1.45 3.75
(iv) Other financial asset: 15 106.78 69.53 74.19 61.54
c) Other Assets 16 1,396.05 1,943.54 546.21 526.28
Total Current Assets 9,670.19 16,692.02 17,104.43 13,356.15
Total Assets 15,905.14 25,469.42 24,496.10 26,379.41
EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity Share capital 17 6,634.95 6,634.95 6,634.95 6,634.95
b) Other Equity 18 24.09 -1,28258 2,390.02 9,600.76
Total Equity 6,69.04 5,35237 9,02497 16,235.72
Liabilities
Non- current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 1,412.35 549.67 836.44 14.36
b) Provisions 20 6.30 7.79 7.83 -
c¢) Other Liabilities 21 536.60 508.44 230.30 -
Total Non-Current
Liabilities 1,955.25 1,065.91 1,074.57 14.36
Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 2,903.91 3,505.41 3,087.49 1,988.92
(ii) Trade Payables 23
(@) Total Outstanding
dues of micro & small
enterprises 1786.77 - - -
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Particulars

(b) Total Outstanding
dues of creditors othe
than micro & small
enterprises

(i)  Other financial
liabilities

b) Other Liabilities

c) Provisions

d) Current Tax Liabilities
(Net)

Total Current
Liabilities

Total Equity &
Liabilities

Note
No.

24
25
26

27

As at Jaruary
15, 2021

2027.01
29.91
41108
0.59
131.57
7,29084

15,905.14

As at March
31, 2020

12,228.88
21.39
3,23171
1.20
62.54
19,05114

25,469.42

As at March
31, 2019

9,032.67
2,18135
1.34
93.70
14,39656

24,496.10

As at March
31, 2018

6,360.07

1,714.35

65.99
10,129.33

26,379.41
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Annexure |I: Restated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended January 15, 2021 and years ended
March 31, 2020, March 31, 219 and March 31, 2018
(Rs. In Lakhs)

_ Note Period ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Particulars No Jan 15, 2021 March 31, March 31, March 31,
' 2020 2019 2018
Income
Revenue From
Operations 28 5,155.39 15,515.51 21,582.36 19,535.16
Otherlncome 29 171.82 370.85 194.52 554.20
Total Income 5,327.22 15,836.36 21,776.88 20,089.36
Expenses
Cost of Material
Consumed 30 1,227.41 13,486.94 5509.62 i
Purchase of Stoeln- 31 2,555.10 2,122.70 14,946.85
Trade 18,957.30
Changes in inventories o
Finished Goods and
stockin-trade 32 604.87 -1,363.90 -109 -429.99
Employee Benefit
Expenses 33 45.97 99.29 115.82 169.28
Finance Costs 34 401.73 501.09 620.98 671.41
Depreciation expense 35 54.81 74.17 72.21 8049
Other expenses 36 144.70 544,70 613.15 424.00
Total Expenses 5,034.58 15,465.00 21,76963 19,872.48
Profit before
exceptional items and
tax 292.64 421.36 7.25 216.87
Exceptional Iltems 37 -211.95 -170.74 288.58 -
Profit Before Tax 80.69 250.62 295.72 216.87
Tax expense: 38
Current Tax 61.53 83.92 112.63 65.99
Taxes of Previous Year - -6.11 26.66 -
Deferred Tax (credit) 11.90 33.08 -51.34 2.60
Total Tax Expense 73.43 110.90 87.95 68.8
Profit for the period 7.25 139.73 20787 148.29
Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI)

- Iltems that will not be

reclassified to profit or

loss 39

"(a) Fair valuation of

financial instruments

through OCI 1,296.18 -3,814.33 -7,418.62 3,499.12
' Tax on Fair valuation of

Financial Instruments - - -
" (b) Remeasurement

gains/(losses) on definec

benefit plans -4.33 2.64 -
' Tax on remeasurement

of Defined Benefit

Obligation 1.09 -0.64 -
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Particulars

Total Other
Comprehensive Income
for the period

Total Comprehensive
Income for the period
Earnings per Equity
Share

Basic ( in
Diluted ( i

Period ended

Note  5n 15 2021
No.
1.292.94
1,300.19
40
0.0011
0.0011

Year ended

March 31,
2020
-3,812.33
-3,672.60

0.0211
0.0000

Year ended

March 31,
2019
-7,418.62
-7,21075

0.0313
0.0313

Year ended
March 31,
2018

3,499.12

3647.41

0.0223
0.0223
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Annexure lll; Restated Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended January 15, 2021 and
years ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 amdiarch 31, 2018

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Period Year ended Year ended Year ended
Particulars ended Jan March 31, March 31, March 31, 2018
15, 2021 2020 2019
A. Cash flow from operating
activities:
Net Profit before tax
80.69 250.62 29582 216.87
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
54.81 74.17 72.21 80.49

(Profit)\Loss on sale of PPE &
Investment Property - -19.34 -2.21 -0.11
Finance costs

401.73 501.09 620.98 671.41
Share Profit from Partnership Firm -19.34 -138.80 -24.30 -
Foreign Exchange difference
-16.57 57.77 -93.81 -
(Profit)/Loss on Sales of Investmer
211.95 67.43 -141.58 -5.09
Provision for Gratuity
2.22 2.48 9.17 -
Rental Income -34.21 - - -
Dividend Income - - -20.55 -20.55
Interest income -15.77 -86.06 -37.46 -69.26
Operating profit/(loss) before
working capital changes 665.51 709.36 67827 873.76
Movements iWorking capital
Inventories 326.43 -209.56 -1,345.19 -1,180.37
Trade receivables 9,893.43 -3,294.55 -3,023.22 -8,529.89
Financial Assets & other assets 313.35 -1,265.32 -727.48 -150.90
Trade payables
-8,415.10 3,196.21 2,672.60 5,200.24
Other financial liabilities
8.51 21.39 2.50 -
Other current liabilities
-2,794.58 1,328.50 694.90 1,482.22
Cash generated from operations
-2.44 486.03 -1,04762 -2,304.94
Income tax paid (Net of refunds) 7.50 -108.98 -111.57 -13.50
Net cash flow from operating
activities (A) 5.06 377.05 -1,15919 -2,318.44
B. Cash flow from investing
activities
Purchase of property, Plant and
Equipement -211.55 -50.11 -90.12 -325.63
Stock converted into Investment in
Property - -669.94
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
- - 4.50 2.85
Proceedsrbm loans 73.15 -
Proceeds from Investment property
218.12 431.00 - -
Proceeds from Investments
- 63.14 29.28 5.09

94



Particulars

Rent Received
Dividend Income

Interest received

Net cash flow from / (used in)
investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow fom financing
activities
Proceeds/(Repayments) in loteym
borrowings

Increase in Share capital due to
demerger

Increase in Share capital due to
issued bonus share

Decrease in resendhie to issued
bonus share

Increase in Capital Reserve due to
demerger
Proceeds/(Repayments) in short
term borrowings

Finance cost

Net cash flow from / (used in)
financing activities (C)

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash
and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period

Cash and caskequivalents at the
end of the year

Components of Cash & Cash
Equivalents (Refer Note No. 14)
Cash on hand

Cheques in Hand
Balances with Banks

Cash & Cash equivalents in Cash
Flow Statement

Period
ended Jan
15, 2021
34.21

15.77

129.69

862.68

-601.50
-401.73

-140.55
-5.80
21.72

15.91

7.80

8.11

15.91

Year ended
March 31,
2020

86.06

-139.86

-286.76

417.92
-501.09

-369.93
-132.74
154.45

21.72

13.16
0.12

8.44

21.72

Year ended
March 31,
2019

20.55

37.46

1.68

1,920.65

-620.98
1,299.67
142.07
12.39

154.45

3.49
148.50

2.46

154.45

The accompanying Notes forms integral part of these Restateddrh Statements

Year ended

March 31, 2018

20.55

69.26

-227.87

2.50

2,387.34

1,213.61

-1,213.61

569.57

256.04
-671.41

2,544.03

-2.28

14.67

12.39

9.24

3.15

12.39
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Annexure IV: Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended January 15, 2021 and years ended
March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

(A) Equity Share Capital
Equity shares of Rs. 1 each issued, subscribediudigcpaid up

(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars No of Equity Amount
Share
Issued, subscribed and fully
paid
Equity shares face value of Rs. 1
each share
As at April 1, 2017 303,401,400 3,034.01
Changes in equity share capital 360,094,095 3,600.94
As at March 31, 2018 663,495,495 6,634.95
Changes in equity share capital - -
As at March 31, 2019 663,495,495 6,634.95
Changes in equity share capital - -
As at March 31, 2020 663,495,495 6,634.95
Changes in equitghare capital -
As at January 15, 2021 663,495,495 6,634.95
(B) Other Equity
Particulars Reserves & Surplus Equity Total Equity
Capital Securities Retained Instruments
Reserve Premium Earnings through Other
Reserve Comprehensive
Income
As at April 1, 2017 28.46 1,985.87 290.86 4,292.21 6,597.39
- - 148.29 - 148.29
- - - 3,499.12 3,499.12
569.57 - - - 569.57
Other Comprehensive Income, n -1,213.61
of tax - -922.75 -290.86 -
Profit for the year
As at March 31, 2018 598.03 1,063.12 148.29 7,791.33 9,600.77
Other Comprehensive Income, ni - - -7,418.62 -7,418.62
of tax
Profit for the year - 20787 20787
As at March 31, 2019 598.03 1,063.12 35616 372.71 2,390.02
Other Comprehensive Income - -3,812.33 -3,812.33
Profit for the year - 139.73 - 139.73
As at March 31, 2020 598.03 1,063.12 49589 -3,439.61 -1,28258
Other Comprehensive Income 1,299.42 1,299.42
Profit for the period 7.25 7.25
As at January 15, 2021 598.03 1,063.12 50314 -2,140.19 24.09

The accompanying Notes forms integral part of these Restated Financial Statements
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Annexure V: Statement of Significant Accounting policies and Other Explanatory Notes for igated
financial statements for the period ended January 15, 2021 and years ended March 31, 2020, March
31,2019, and March 31, 2018

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Company Information

Vikas Lifecare Limited (formerly known as Vikagulticorp Limited) (the Company) is a public
company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the companies act applicable in
India. Its shares are listed on recognised Bombay stock exchange and National Stock Exchange in India.
The egistered office of the company is locatetbet, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Deltil0026 The
Company is principally engaged in the business of Manufacturer and Trader of PVC and Plastic Products.

2. Basis of Preparation, Accounting judgements, estimas and assumptions and significant
Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of compliance
The Restated Summary Statements, which have been approved by the Board of Directors of the

Company, have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of:
€) Section 23 of Paitof Chapter Il of the Companies Act 2013 (the "Act");

(b) Relevant provisions of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended ("ICDR Regulations"); and
(c) The Guidance Note on RepoitssCompany Prospectuses (as amended) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of I ndia (Al CAI ),
2.2. Basis of preparation and presentation

The Restated Summary Statement of Assets and Liabilities of the Company as at Jark@2y asd

as at March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018 and the related Restated Summary Statement of
Profit and Loss, restated Summary Statement of Changes in Equity and Restated Summary Statement of
Cash Flows for the period ended January 15]1288d for each of the years ended March 31, 2020 and

March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, and accompanying annexures to financial information (hereinafter
collectively called ARestated Summary Statement s
Letter of Offer (AiRHPO), to be filed by the Comg
with proposed Right issue offer.

The Restated Ind AS financial information has been compiled from:

€) the audited financial statements of the Company asdhfor the period ended January 15, 2021
which are prepared in accordance with I ndia
Financi al Reportingd specified under the Sec
accounting principles generallyagcé ed i n I ndia (referred to as

(b) Audited Ind AS financial statements of the Company as at and for the years ended March 31,

2020 and March 31, 2019 prepared in accordance with Ind AS;

(c) Audited financial statements of the Company as at and foyebhe ended March 31, 2018
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006 (as amended)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
(Al ndi an GAAPO) . As per requir eament s
SEBI / HO/ CFD/ DI L/ CI R/ P/ 2016/ 47 dated March 31
Note, the Company has adjusted financial information for the year ended March 31, 2018 Indian
GAAP financial statements using recognition and measurement principled 8Slmand has
included such adjusted financial information as comparative financial information in the
financial statements.
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2.3.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 were the first, the Company had prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. Thieansition to Ind AS has been carried out from accounting standards notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (61 GAAPO), whiestflndAS consi
101.

The Restated Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
certain Land and Building from "Property, Plant and Equipment”, financial instruments and defined
benefit plans which are measurddfar value at the end of each reporting period. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfetitg lrmlan orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current cicnoem r e n t as per the Co
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule l1etd¢h

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of the Restated Standalone Financial Statements requires management to make
estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the reported balances of assets and diadbilities
disclosures as at the date of the Standalone Financial Statements and the reported amounts of income and
expense for the periods presented

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considerd to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates considering different
assumptions and conditions

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in Wihie estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
values of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

® Estimation of defined benefit obligation
Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments. These include
the estimation of the appsdate discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due
to the complexities involved in the valuation and its lkb@gn nature, the employee benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are rediewed
each reporting date.

(i) Estimation of current tax and deferred tax
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable phefits. T
amount of total deferred tax assets could change if management estimates of projected future
taxable income or if tax regulations undergo a change.

(iii) Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets
Management reviews the estimated useful lives and résidiue of PPE and Intangibles at the
end of each reporting period. Factors such as changes in the expected level of usage,
technological developments and product-tifele, could significantly impact the economic
useful lives and the residual valuesh#de assets. Consequently, the future depreciation charge
could be revised and may have an impact on the profit of the future years.

(iv) Impairment of trade receivables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value ed lbgduc
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are
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written off when management deems them not to be collectible. Impairment is recognised based
on the expected credit losses, which are the present valueadgh shortfall over the expected
life of the financial assets.

(V) Fair value measurement
Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments
(where active market quotes are not available) andfinancial assets. Ais involves
developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the
instrument. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is
not always available. In that case management usdsethianformation available. Estimated
fair values may vary from the actual prices
at the reporting date (refer note 42).

(vi) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets
The evaluation of applicabii of indicators of impairment of assets is based on assessment of
several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount
of the assets.

(vii) Provisions and contingencies
From time to time, the Company is subject tcalggroceedings, the ultimate outcome of each
being subject to uncertainties inherent in litigations. A provision for litigation is made when it
is considered probable that a payment will be made and the amount can be reasonably estimated.
Significant judgenent is required when evaluating the provision including, the probability of an
unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of potential
loss. Provisions for litigations are reviewed at each accounting period and mevisame for
the changes in facts and circumstances. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes forming
part of the Restated Standalone Financial Statements. Contingent assets are not disclosed in the
Restated Standalone Financial Statements untesglaw of economic benefits is probable.

2.4, Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cuergnbn
classification.

An asset is current when it is:

i Expected to be realized otémded to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
i Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

i Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

1 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used &olisddiliey for

at least twelve months after the reporting period.
i Current assets includes current portion of-garrent of financial assets.

All other assets are classified as neaurrent.
A liability is current when it is:

1 Expected to be settled immmal operating cycle;

1 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

1 Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

1 There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reportig period.
Current Liabilities includes current portion of noarrent financial liabilities.
All other liabilities are classified as nawrrent.

= =

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified ascno®nt assets and liabilities.
2.5. Equity, reservesand dividend payment

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
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2.6.

are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Retained earnings include current and
prior period retainegrofits. All transactions with owners of the Company are recorded separately within
equity.

Property Plant & Equipment
() Initial recognition and measurement

An item of property, plant anelquipmentecognized as an asset if and only if it is probable tha
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

ltems of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation/amortization and accumulated impanttesses. Cost includes expenditure that

is directly attributable to bringing the asset, inclusive of-refandable taxes & duties, to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. When padsan item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life,
they are recognized separately. Items of spare parts,-syaredjuipment and servicing
equipment which meet the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized. Property,
Plant and Equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are
disclosed as 'Capital Woilk-Progress'.

(i) Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when
it is prokable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the
enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount fthe item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of theodadsy servicing of Propéy, Plant

and Equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

(i) De-recognition
Property, Plant and Equipment are derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected
from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposatefanf iproperty, plant
and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iv) Revaluation

Land and Building (Property, Plaahd Equipment) are revalued at fair valuation. Surplus from
revaluation has been transferred to Revaluation Reserve under the head of Other Equity

(v) Depreciation/amortization
Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a written down value over iheatst useful
life of each item of Property, Plant and Equipment.
Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the year is

charged on proata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on their estimated useful life as
prescribed by Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 as follows:
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2.7,

2.8.

2.9.

(1) Buildings 30 years

(2) Plant & Machinery 15 years
3) Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
(4) Vehicles 08 years

(5) Office Equipments 05 years

(6) Electrical Installation 10 years

@) Computer 03 years

(8) Leasehold Improvements Over the period of lease

9) The residual value, useful life and methods of PPE are reviewed at each financial year

end and adjusted prospectively

Capital work -in-progress

The cost of seltonstructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, borrowing costs, any
other costs directly attributable to bring the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the mamnmetended by management.

Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Initial recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the companyhantbst of the asset can
be measured reliably.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have infinite useful lives, are

recognized at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes any directly
attributable incidental expses necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when
it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurrediavillto the
enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

De-recognition

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their
use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an itemwargfible assets are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of intangible
assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Amortization

Amortization is made at useful life of Intangible AssetStaaigtt line method.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable and impairment loss is recognistrek famount by which the asset's

carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest evels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of

the cash inflows from other assets or Company of assets (cash generating units). If at the balance sheet
date, there is an indication that a previously assasgeairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of
depreciated historical cost and the same is accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.
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2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13.

Investment Property

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation on building is provided over the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the
first-in-first-out formula, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or

conversion costs and other costs imed in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Cost incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as
follows:

1 Raw materials: Purchase cost on firsfirst out basis

1 Finished goods and work progress: Cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing
costs

1 Inventory related to real estate division: Valued at cost incurred

Net realisable value is thestimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in production of finished goods are not written
down below cost except in aswhere material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of
the finished products will exceed their net realisable value.

Obsolete, slow moving, defective inventories, shortage/ excess are identified at the time of physical
verification ofinventories and wherever necessary provision/ adjustment is made for such inventories.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and cash in handesind short
deposits with an original maturity dftee months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of change
in value.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another &ty.

0] Financial assets:

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

(a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the a&fseancial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

(b) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at:
i Financial assetat amortised cost
i Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
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i Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
(c) Equity Instruments:

All investments in equity instruments in entities other than subsidiariéégoan ventures are
measured at fair value. Equity instruments if held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all
other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either at FVTOCI or
FVTPL. The Company makes such election on anringnt by instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instruments, excluding dividends, are recognizénd i@Cl. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment as the company transfers
cumulative gain or loss within the equity.

Equity instruments if classified as FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the profit and loss.

(d) De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar

financi al assets) is primarily derecogni zed

when:

i The cantractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

i The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset.
(e) Impairment of Financial Asset

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial aageteguent to initial recognition in
Statement of Profit and loss.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets other than Trade receivables, the
company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly;d@th ECL is used to provide
impairment loss. However, If credit risk is increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improvesdio extent that there is
no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based orMichth ECL.

For trade receivabl es Co mp a nrgquireageppedted Iffetindes i mp |
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical
default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every
reporting date these historical defardtes are reviewed and changes in the forward looking
estimates are analysed.

(i) Financial liabilities
(a) Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly

attributable cost. Feed recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as finance cost.

(b) Subsequent measurement
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Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized
cost is calculated by takingtm account any discount or premium on acquisition and any
material transaction that are any integral part of the EIR. Trade and other payables maturing
within one year from the balance sheet date are carried at transaction value and the carrying
amounts aproximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of»astieg liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as thecdgnition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognized in the statemteof profit or loss.

2.14. Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts arid #renetention to

settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of deftipinsolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

2.15. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell @t aspaid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
i In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

i In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value
measurement of a ndimancial asset takes mt account a mar ket particip
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The company uses valuation techniques
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. All
assets and liabilities for which fair value iseasured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 17 Quoted (unadjusted) marketiges in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 27 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or Indirectly observable

Level 37 Valuation techniques for which thewest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levelheinhierarchy by rassessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is signify cant to the fair value measurement as a
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2.16.

2.17.

2.18.

whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company determines the policies and procedures for both
recurring fair valle measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured
at fair value, and for nerecurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued
operations.

Impairment of Financial Assets

All financial assets xxept for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at least at each
reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a company of
financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairenapplied for each category of
financial assets.

In accordance with IndS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets carried at amortised cost.

ECL is the weighté average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive, discounted at
the original effective interest rate, with the respective rifkdefault occurring as the weights. When
estimating the cash flows, the company is required to corisider

i All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the
expected life of the assets.
i Cash flows from the sale obllateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provision are measured at the Present value of the management's best estimate (these estimated are
reviewedat each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate) of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of reporting period. Provisions involving substantial
degree of estimation in measurement are recognized thvbemis a present obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will & confirmed only by the occurrence or rmeturrence of one or more uncertain
future events which is not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of rEsowill be required to settle the
obligation or estimate of the amount cannot be measured reliably.

No contingent asset is recognized but disclosed by way of notes to accounts only when its recognition is
virtually certain.

Revenue Recognition

Revenuas recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Amount of
sales are net of goods and service tax, sale returds,alawances and discounts but inclusive of excise

duty.

Ef fective 01 April 2018, the company adopted I n
using the modified retrospective method. Under the modified retrospective method, an entity aghplies |
AS 115 only for contracts that are not completed on or before 31 March 2018.

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the company follovesegp Pprocess:

Q) Identifying the contract with a customer

(2) Identifying the performance obligations

3) Determining he transaction price

(4) Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
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2.19.

2.20.

(5) Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

The company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practice to determine the
transaction price.

In all cases, the total transaction price is allocated amongst the various performance obligations based on
their relative standalone selling price. The transaction price excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. The consatation promised include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the company satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

For each performance obligation identified the company determines at contract inception whether it
satisfies the performance obligation over time or satisfies the performance obligation at point in time. If
any entity does not satisfy a performance oblayatver time, the performance obligation is satisfied at

a point in time.

A receivable is recognised where the company's right to consideration is unconditional (i.e. any passage
of time is required before payment if the consideration is due).
When eithemparty to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as
contract asset or contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity's performance and
the customer's payment.

While this represents signiint new guidance, the implementation of this new guidance had no impact
on the timing or amount of revenue recognised by the company in any year.

Company continues to account for export benefits on accrual basis.

Other income
All other income is recogn&d on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists on their receipt.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the company and the amount of income can be medsaliably. Interest is accrued on time
proportion basis, by reference to the principle outstanding at the effective interest rate.

Dividends
Income from dividend on investments is accrued in the year in which it is declared, whereby the
C 0 mp a n Yyt eceive isgektablished.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (including disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will
be recovered principally through a sale transactioreratian through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probabloncurrent assets classified as held for sale are measured at lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale areleyteciated or amortised from the date when they
are classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets and liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other asdelimbilities in the
Restated Standalone Balance Sheet.

Foreign Currency Conversions/Transactions

Foreign Currency Transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Gains and losses arising out of subsequetnigtions are accounted for on actual payments
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2.21.

or realisations as the case may be. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency as on
Balance Sheet date are translated into functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing tn that da
and Exchange differences arising out of such conversion are recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Lossaept to the extent it relates to any business combination or to an item
which is recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

(@)

(b)

Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside statement of profit or losgiizedo
outside statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current
tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positi@en in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differeretegebn the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and angused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses ca@ete util

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.ddngnized deferred tax assets arassessed at

each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are meadat the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items regrized outside statement of profit or loss is recognized outside
statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabgitare offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable company Group and the same taxation authority.

During the year, the Company decided toreise the option permitted under Section 115BAA

of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance,
2019 from the current financial year. Accordingly, the provision for income tax and deferred
tax balances have been reaetfiremeasured using the new tax rate.
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(c) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as
current tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only t
the extent that it is probable that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward.

In the year in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, éatediby way of
credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset.

The company reviews the AMAT credit entitl e
down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probablet thvédk pay normal tax during the
specified period.

2.22. Employee Benefits
0] Short Term Employee Benefits

Shortterm employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognizd for the amount expected to be paid under performance related pay if
the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(i) PostEmployment benefits

Employee benefit that are payable after the completion of employment arErRplstyment
Benefit (other than termination benefit). Company has identified two types of post employment
benefits:

(@ Defined contribution plans

Defined contibution plans are those plans in which the company pays fixed contribution into
separate entities and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance are Defined Contribution Plans in which
company pays a fixed contribution and will have no further obligation beyond the monthly
contributions and are recognised as an expenses in Statement of Profit & Loss.

(b) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a pestmployment benefit plan otherah a defined contribution plan.
Company pays Gratuity as per provisions of
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amount of future benefit that empdes have earned in return for their service in the current

and prior periods; that benefit to employees is discounted to determine its present value.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. Tle net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of
the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. Any actuaria gailosses pertaining to
components of reneasurements of net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in OCl in
the period in which they arise.

2.23. Borrowing Cost
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Borrowing cost include interest calculated using the effective interest methodizatian of ancillary

costs and other costs the company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized
during the period of timéhat is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the periivdydvhich the active development is
delayed due to, other than temporary, interruption. All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement
of profit and loss as incurred.

2.24. Earning Per Share

Basic Earning Per Share is calculated by dividing thenadit pr loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit after tax during the year and the
weighted aerage number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

2.25. Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 effective from April 1, 2019 using modified retrospective
approach. For the purpose of paegtion of Standalone Financial Information, management has
evaluated the impact of change in accounting policies required due to adoption of Ind AS 116 for year
ended March 31, 2020. Accordingly the Company has not restated comparative informatiad, timstea
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings as on April 1, 2019.

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contraeictAscamt
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a define
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified assetse Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an
identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direcetbkthe asset.

As a lessee, The Company recognises a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which conesiestial amount of the lease

liability adjusted for anjease payments made at or beforecthramencement date, plus any initial direct

costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any leasgiviesereceived.

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the direghethod from theommencement

date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful livesfaight of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The leasdiability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that aedchat the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, t h e ngCaten poa keasds swithi reasonablyngnmlar a | b
characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate
specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole.

Lease payments indied in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including

in-substance fixed payments and lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option;
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2.26.

2.27.

2.28.

2.29.

2.30.

The lease liability isneasured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities-ferraHegtses

that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases-vélog/assets. The Compamgcognises the

lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on dig&dights over the lease term.

The Company applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar endate.

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance witlinthieect method prescribed in Ind AB
6Statement of cash fl ows.

Segment reporting

The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial inforimatiailable and for

which operating profit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer (who is the Companyb6s chief o
resources and in assessing performance

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies of

the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their refetiop to the operating activities of the segment. Inter
segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on
market / fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Corapany as

whol e and are not all ocable to segments on a re
revenue |/ expenses |/ assets [/ liabilitiesd.
Dividend

Final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholidéesiand
dividends are recorded as a liability on the da
Recent Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) and note on C@MID

Recent accounting pronouncements which are not yet effective

Ministry of Corpora ¢ Af fairs (AMCAO) notifies new standar (
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020

Note on COVID-19

The Company had closed its manufacturing plants and offices with effecMarch 22, 2020 following
countrywide lockdown due to Cowitl 9 . Subsequent to the year end,
facilities and offices had resumed operations in gradual manner, in later part of the first quarter of the
current fiscal, adheringtthe safety norms prescribed.

The Company has assessed the impact of Gt®ighandemic on its business operations and has
considered relevant internal and external information available up to the date of approval of these
financial statements, in detemmaition of the recoverability and carrying value of property, plant and
equipment, inventories, and trade receivables and based on the current estimates, the Company expects
the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered.

Further, the management lesles that there is impact of Covi® pandemic on performance of the
Company in the short term but no significant impact on financial position and performance is likely in
long-term. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changesuie fatonomic
conditions.
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Annexure VI: Statement of Restatement Adjustments to Audited Financial Statements for the period ended
January 15, 2021 and years ended March 31, 2020, March 31,2019, and March 31, 2018

PART A: Statement of Restatement Adjustmers to Audited Financial Statements

Reconciliation between audited total comprehensive income and restated total comprehensive income

(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars As at Jan 15, As at March 31, As atMarch 31, As atMarch 31,
2021 2020 2019 2018
Audited totalComprehensive Income 1,292.94 (3,81233) (7,418.62 3,499.12
Restated Adjustments: - - - -
Restated total comprehensive income 1,29.94 (3,81233 (7,418.62 3,49912
Reconciliation between audited equity and restated equity
(Rs.in Lakh)
Particulars As at Jan 15, As atMarch 31, As atMarch As atMarch 31,
2021 2020 31, 2019 2018
Audited Equity 6,65904 5,35237 9,024.97 16,2%.72
Restated Adjustments: - - - -
Restated Equity 6,65904 5,35237 9,024.97 16,2%.72

PART B: Regrouping

Appropriate regroupings have been made in the Restated Financial Information, wherever required, by
reclassification of the corresponding terms of income, expense, assets, liabilities and cash flows, in order to brin
them in line with the accounting policies and classification as per latest financial statements of the Company for
the period ended 15th January 2021.
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Annexure VII: Notes to Restated financial statements for the period ended January5, 2021 and years
ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

( (Rs in Lakf
Free Plant and  Furniture Vehicl Office
Particulars Buildings  Machiner _and es Equipment Total
* y Fixtures 0s

Year Ended March 31, 2018
Deemed Cost as at 1st April 37.47 1.94 7.28 96.14 0.43 143.26
2017
Additions 128.40 127.58 0.37 69.28 - 325.63
Disposals/Transfer - - - -12.55 - -12.55
Adjustments - - - - - -
Gross carrying amount at 165.87 129.53 7.65 152.86 0.43 456.34
the end of Rerting Period
Accumulated Depreciation : - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation at 30.34 1.85 6.05 53.00 0.39 91.63
the Beginning
Depreciation charge during 7.56 24.07 0.54 25,55 0.02 57.74
the year
Disposals - - - -9.91 - -9.91
Adjustments - - - 0.11 - 0.11
Accumulated depreciation 37.90 25.92 6.59 68.74 0.41 139.56

and Impairment at the end of

Reporting Period

Net Carrying amount 127.97 103.61 1.06 84.12 0.02 316.78
March 31, 2018

Year Ended March 31, 2019

Gross carrying amount at the 165.87 129.53 7.65 152.86 0.43 456.34
Beginning

Additions - 89.92 0.20 - - 90.12
Disposals/Transfer - - - -17.58 - -17.58
Adjustments - - - - - -
Gross carrying amount at 165.87 219.45 7.85 13528 0.43 528.87

the end of Reporting Period
Accumulated Depreciation :

Accumulated depreciation at 37.90 25.92 6.59 68.74 0.41 139.56
the Beginning

Depreciation charge during 7.84 20.59 0.16  21.39 0.01 49.99
the year

Disposals - - - -15.29 - -15.29
Adjustments - - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation 45.74 46.51 6.75 74.83 0.42 174.26

and Impairment at the end of

Reporting Period

Net Carrying amount 120.12 172.93 1.10 60.45 0.01 354.62
March 31, 2019

Year Ended March 31, 2020

Gross carrying amount at the 165.87 219.45 7.85 135.28 0.43 528.87
Beginning

Additions - 49.49 0.24 - 0.39 50.11
Disposals/Transfer - - - - - -
Gross carrying amount at 165.87 268.93 8.09 135.28 0.82 578.99
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the end of Reporting Period
Accumulated Depreciation :
Accumulateddepreciation at 45.74
the Beginning

Depreciation charge during 1.12
the year

Disposals -
Adjustments -
Accumulated depreciation 46.86
and Impairment at the end of

Reporting Period

Net Carrying amount 119.01
March 31, 2020

Period Ended January 15,

2021

Gross carrying amount at the 165.87
Beginning

Additions 138.07
Disposals/Transfer -
Gross carrying amount at 303.94

the end of Reporting Period
Accumulated Depreciation :
Accumulated depreciation at 46.86
the Beginning

Depreciation charge during 3.44
the year

Disposals -
Adjustments -
Accumulated depreciation 50.30
and Impairment at the end of

Reporting Period

Net Carrying amount 253.64
January 15, 2021

46.51

36.04

82.55

186.38

268.93

25.66

294.59

82.55

29.47

112.02

182.58

6.75

0.19

6.94

1.15

8.09

8.09

6.94

0.03

6.97

1.12

74.83

15.65

90.48

44.80

135.28

48.02

183.30

90.48

13.78

104.26

79.04

0.42

0.16

0.58

0.24

0.82

1.90

2.72

0.58

0.17

0.75

1.97

174.26

53.15

227.41

351.58

578.99

213.66

792.65

227.41

46.88

274.29

518.35

*Building No. F4, First floor , 43/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New DelhiD026 hypothecated against cash

credit limit from Union Bank of India
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Annexure VII: Notes to Restated financialstatements for theperiod ended January 15, 2021 and years
ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

4. Investment Property

(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars Land Buildings Total
Year Ended March 31, 2018
Deemed Cost as at 1st April 2017 - 467.19 467.19
Additions - - -
Gross carrying amount at the end of Reporting
Period - 467.19 467.19
Accumulated Depreciation :
Accumulated depreciation at the Beginning - - -
Depreciation charge during the year - 22.76 22.76
Accumuated depreciation and Impairment at the enc - 22.76 22.76
ReportingPeriod
Net Carrying amount March 31, 2018 - 444.44 444.44
Year Ended March 31, 2019
Gross carrying amount at the Beginning - 467.19 467.19
Additions - - -
Gross carying amount at the end of Reporting
Period - 467.19 467.19
Accumulated Depreciation :
Accumulated depreciation at the Beginning - 22.76 22.76
Depreciation charge during the year - 22.22 22.22
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment ateéhd of - 44.98 44,98
ReportingPeriod
Net Carrying amount March 31, 2019 - 422.22 422.22
Year Ended March 31, 2020
Gross carrying amount at the Beginning - 467.19 467.19
Additions / Deletion - -467.19 -467.19
Addition on account of Corersion of Stock in Trade
into Investment in Property * 460.08 209.86 669.94
Gross carrying amount at the end of Reporting
Period 460.08 209.86 669.94
Accumulated Depreciation :
Accumulated depreciation at the Beginning - 44.98 44.98
Deprecation charge during the year - 21.02 21.02
Disposals /Adjustments - -55.53 -55.53
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment at the en
ReportingPeriod - 10.46 10.46
Net Carrying amount March 31, 2020 460.08 199.40 659.48
Period EndedJanuary 15, 2021
Gross carrying amount at the Beginning 460.08 209.86 669.94
Additions / Deletion - - -
Addition on account of Conversion of Stock in Tra
into Investment in Property * - - -
Gross carrying amount at the end of Reporting
Period 460.08 209.86 669.94
Accumulated Depreciation :
Accumulated depreciation at the Beginning - 10.46 10.46
Depreciation charge during the year - 7.92 7.92

Disposals /Adjustments - - -
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Particulars

Accumulated depreciation and Impairmenttet énd of
ReportingPeriod
Net Carrying amount January 15, 2021

Year Ended March 31, 2018

Deemed Cost as at 1st April 2017

Additions

Gross carrying amount at the end of Repding
Period

Accumulated Depreciation :

Accumulated depreciation at the Beginning
Depreciation charge during the year

Accumulated depreciation and Impairment at the en
ReportingPeriod

Net Carrying amount March 31, 2018

Year Ended March 31, 2019

Gross carrying amount at the Beginning

Additions

Gross carrying amount at the end of Reporting
Period

Accumulated Depreciation :

Accumulated depreciation at the Beginning
Depreciation charge during the year

Accumulated depreciation and Impairment at the en
ReportingPeriod

Net Carrying amount March 31, 2019

Year Ended March 31, 2020

Gross carrying amount at the Beginning

Additions / Deletion

Addition on account of Conversion of Stock in Tra
into Investment in Property *

Gross carrying amount at the end of Reporting
Period

Accumulated Depreciation :

Accumulated depreciation at the Beginning
Depreciation charge during the year

Disposals /Adjustments

Accumulated depreciation and Impairment at the en
ReportingPeriod

Net Carrying amount March 31, 2020

Period Ended January 15, 2021

Gross carrying amount at the Beginning

Additions / Deletion

Addition on account of Conversion of Stock in Tra
into Investment in Property *

Gross carrying amount at the end of Reporting
Period

Accumulated Depreciation :

Accumulated depreation at the Beginning
Depreciation charge during the year

Disposals /Adjustments

Land

460.08

460.08

460.08

Buildings

18.39
191.48

467.19

467.19

22.76

22.76

444.44

467.19

467.19
22.76
22.22
44.98
422.22

467.19
-467.19

209.86
209.86
44.98

21.02
-55.53

10.46
199.40

209.86

209.86

10.46
7.92

Total

18.39
651.56

467.19

467.19

22.76

22.76

444.44

467.19

467.19
22.76
22.22
44.98
422.22

467.19
-467.19

669.94
669.94
44.98

21.02
-55.53

10.46

659.48

66994

669.94

10.46
7.92
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Particulars Land Buildings Total
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment at the en

ReportingPeriod - 18.39 18.39
Net Carrying amount January 15, 2021 460.08 191.48 651.56
* Company has converted Stock in Trade to Property,

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment Property
(Rs. in Lakh)

As at Jan 15, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020 2019 2018

Rental income derivec - -

from investment properties 34.21 24.96

Direct operating expense - -

(including  repairs  anc

maintenance) generatin

rental income -

Profit arising from - -

investment propertie:

before depreciation anc

indirect expenses 34.21 24.96

Depreciation -7.92 -10.46 - -

Profit arising from - -

investment propertie:

before indirect expenses 26.29 14.49

Particulars

Premises given on lease

The Company has given investment property (larditanlding) on operating lease for 3 years and is renewable
for further as per mutually agreeable terms.
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Annexure VII: Notes to Restated financial statements for the period ended January 15, 2021 and years ended March 31, 2020¢Wal, 2019 and March 3,

2018
Investments Nominal
Value
per
share
Investments stated & Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive
Income
Investment in Equity
Instruments (Quoted)*
-Vikas Ecotech Limited
1

Investments stated at Cost
Investments in  Partnership
Firm**
-Ravi Crop Science

Less: Amount transferred to Other
Non Current Finacial Assets due to
Dissolution of Partnership Firm

Total Non-current Inv estments

Particulars

Quoted Investment Carried
amortized Cost

Quoted Investment Carried at F¢
Value through Profit & Loss

As at15
Jan-2021

32,787,561

Number of shares

As at 31-
Mar-2020

As at 31-
Mar-2019

As at 31-
Mar-2018

36,913,548 38,166,140 41,166,140

As at15
Jan-2021

1,27216

60744

-607.44

1,272.16

15/Jan/21

(Rs. in Lakh)
Amount
As at 31- As at31- As at31-Mar-
Mar-2020 Mar-2019 2018
406.05 4,350.94 12,082.26
588.10 449.30 -
994.15 4,800.24 12,082.26
31/Mar/2
0 31/Mar/19 31/Mar/18
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Investments Nominal
Value
er
o, Asatls
Jan-2021
Quoted Investment Carried at Fe
Value through  Comprehensiv
Income
Aggregate amount of impairment |
value of investments
Investment in Partnership firm
Name of Firm Name of Partner
Ravi Crop Science Vikas Multicorp Limited
Kartar
Om Prakash

Ankit Bhutani

Number of shares

As at 31- As at 31-
Mar-2020 Mar-2019

% of PSR

90%

2%

6%

2%

As at 31-
Mar-2018

As at15
Jan-2021

1272.16

Capital
Contribution
Jan 15, 2021

607.44

Amount
As at 31- As at 31-
Mar-2020 Mar-2019
406.05 4,350.94
(3,944.89 (372.71)
Capital Capital
Contributi  Contributio
on 2020 n 2019
588.10 449.30
(448.53) (400.05)
(59.50) (68.76)
3.62 0.54

As at 31-Mar -
2018

12,082.26

Capital

Contribution
2018

The Company is holding 90% of M/s Ravi Crop Science but Companyndbesercise significanbfluence on the entity and hence not classified as an subsidiary
for the purpose of Ind AS 28.s%per Ind AS28 If an entity holds, directly or indirectly (eg through subsidiaries), 20 per cent or more of the voting power of the, inves

it is presumed that the entity has significant influence, unless it can be clearly demonstrated that tthie isaset A substantial or majority ownership by another
investor does not necessarily preclude an entity from having significant influeme@artnership dissolved w.e.f 30.06.2020 through duly signed dissolution deed at

Jammu..
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Annexure VII: Notes to Restated financial statements for the period ended January 15, 2021 and years
ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018

6 Loans
(Rs. in Lakh
_ As atJan As at As at As at
Particulars 15. 201 March March 31, March31
' 2020 2019 2018
Unsecured, Considered good
Security Deposit 106.85 180.00 180.00 82.10
Total 106.85 180.00 180.00 82.10
7 Trade Receivables (Rs. in Lakh
_ As atJan As at As at As at
Particulars 15. 201 March March 31, March31
' 2020 2019 2018
Unsecured, Considered good
- from related parties - - - -
- from others 2,303.8¢ 5,800.7¢€ 881.26 -
Significant increase in credit risk - - - -
- from others - 198.25 - -
Credit Impaired - - - -
- from others 272.23 272.23 189.05 -
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss -272.23  -272.23  -189.05 -
Total 2,303.8¢ 5,999.01 881.26 -
Allowances for expected credit loss (Rs. in Lakh
Particulars As atJan As at As at As at
_ 15 201 March March 31, March 31
i) ' 2020 2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 272.23 189.05 - -
Add : Provision during the year - 83.17 189.05 -
Balance at the end of the year 272.23 272.23 189.05 -
8 Other financial assets (Rs. in Lakh
_ As atJan As at As at As at
Particulars 15. 21 March March 31, March 31
' 2020 2019 2018
Balance with Government Authorities
- Unsecured Considered good 5.01 5.01 1.03 8.59
Fixed Deposits with banks hetd margin money* 430.10 430.10 430.10 84.48
Other Receivables 607.44 - - -
Total 1,042.55 435.11 431.13 93.07
Bank Deposits with more than maturity of Twelve
* Months.
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9 Deferred tax assets (Net)

Particulars

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset

Accelerated depreciation

Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Remeasurement of Defined benefit plan

Total (a)

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability

Ind AS Adjustments
Total (b)

Tax Credits

MAT Credit Entitlement
Total (c)

Total Assets/ (Liability) (a)+(b)+(c)

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax (Net)

Particulars

Opening Balance

Tax (income)/expense during the year recognised in

profit or loss

Tax (income)/expense during the year recognised in

MAT Credit Entitlement

Closing balance of deferred Tax

10 Other Assets
Particulars

Capital Advances
Unsecuredconsidered good

Advance to Suppliers
Unsecured, considered good

- Advances to Related Parties

- Other Advances
Total

11 Inventories
Particulars

Inventories*

(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value on FI

basis)
Raw Materials

As atJan
15, 21

9.76

0.56
10.32

-1.09
-1.09

9.23

As atJan
15, 21

22.22
-11.90

-1.09

9.23

As atJan
15, 21

32.31

298.08
330.39

As atJan
15, 2@1

1,063.17

(Rs. in Lakh’

As at As at As at
March March 31, March 31
2020 2019 2018
22.24 1.55 4.61
- 53.69 -
0.62 0.71 -
22.86 55.95 4.61
-0.64 - -
-0.64 - -
22.22 55.95 4.61
(Rs. in Lakh’
As at As at As at
March March 31, March 31
2020 2019 2018
55.95 4.61 7.21
-33.08 51.34 -2.60
-0.64 - -
22.22 55.95 4.61
(Rs. in Lakh
As at As at As at
March March 31, March 31
2020 2019 2018
19.00 - -

116.86 266.26 -
135.86 266.26 -

(Rs. in Lakh
As at As at As at
March March 31, March 31
2020 2019 2018

784.02 809.29 707.17
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*%

Finished Goods - - - -

Real Estate Division 177.71 177.71 190.59 195.59
Manufacturing Division 38.73 36.91 - -
Packing Material 0.34 2.44 - -
Stock in TradeTraded Goods 1,426.65 2,031.94 1,823.5¢ 580.51
Total 2,707 3,033 2,823 1,483

Inventories (excludes Real estate division) have been offered as security against the working capiti
facilities provided by the bank

Destruction of stock at godown at Rajasthan on Dated 08.04.2019. Company has ré@gjnéd_oss of
stock amounting to Rs. 1.03 Crore.

12 Trade Receivables (Rs. in Lakh’
s EiJaT As at As at As at
Particulars 15. 201 March March 31, March 31
’ 2020 2019 2018

Unsecured, Considered good
- from related parties

- from others

Total

5,442.0C 11,623.71 13,504.6¢ 11,268.91

5,442

11,624 13,505 11,269

Trade receivables have been offered as security against the working capital facilities

* by the bank.

13 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

Balances with banks
- Current Accounts
Cash on hand
Cheques in Hand

Total
* Non cash transactions

As atJan
15, 21

8.11
7.80

15.91

The Company has not entered into any non cash investing and financing activities

14 Loans
Particulars

Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered good
Advances to Employees
Unsecured, Considered good
Total

15 Other Financial Assets

Particulars

As atJan
15, 2@1

2.87
2.87

As atJan
15, 221

(Rs. in Lakh
As at As at As at
March March 31, March 31
2020 2019 2018
8.44 2.46 3.15
13.16 3.49 9.24
0.12 148.50 -
21.72 154.45 12.39
(Rs. in Lakh’
As at As at As at
March March 31, March 31
2020 2019 2018
0.50 - 1.65
- 1.45 2.10
0.50 1.45 3.75
(Rs. in Lak)
As at As at As at
March March 31, March 31
2020 2019 2018
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